








































































































































































BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Godrej Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Godrej Finance Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
refened to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as

amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31,2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the finalcial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements'
section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the 'Code ofEthics'
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit ofthe frnancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters
were addressed in the context ofour audit ofthe financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description ofhow our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

National lnsurance Building, 2nd Floor, 2O4,Dr.D. N. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, lnd
Tel.: +91 -22-2207 7 942 I 2201 4930 . Email: auditteam@bnpindia.in

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section ofour report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements. The results ofour audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
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Continuation Sheet

How our audit addressed the key audit matterKey audit matters

Assessment of impairment loss provision on loans based on Expected Credit Loss
model under IND AS 109

I

Our audit procedures were focused on assessing
the appropriateness of management's judgement
and estimates used in the impairment analysis that
included, but were not limited to, the foilowing:

o Revierved the Board approved ECL Policy
conceming the assessment of credit and
other risks.

o Obtained an understanding of the
modelling techniques adopted by the
Company including the key inputs and
assumptions.

o Tested controls placed for key inputs, data
and assumptions impacting ECL
calculations to assess the completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data and
reasonableness of economic forecasts,
weights, and model assumptions applied.

. Performed the following substantive
procedures on sample ofloan assets:

- tested appropriateness of staging of
borrowers based on DPD and other
loss indicators.

- tested the arithmetical accuracy ofthe
ECL computation by using the same
input data as used by the Company.

- verified the completeness and
adequacy of the disclosures made in
the financial statements and ensured
compliance with Ind AS.

o Obtained written representations from
management on whether they believe
significant assumptions used in
calculation of expected credit losses are
reasonable.

As per Ind AS 109, "Financial Instruments",
allowance for loan losses are computed using
expected credit loss ('ECL') estimation
model. The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant judgement
and estimates. The key areas where we
identified greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased levels of
audit focus are:

. The application of ECL model
requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk ofcompleteness and
accuracy of the data that has been
used to create assumptions in the
model.

o Judgmental models are used to
estimate ECL which involves
determining Probabilities of Default
("PD"), Loss Given Default ("LGD"),
and Exposures at Default ('EAD).
The PD and the LGD are the key
drivers of estimation complexity in
the ECL and as a result are considered
significant judgmental aspect of the
Company's modelling approach.

o Ind AS 109 requires the Company to
measure ECL on an unbiased forward
- looking basis reflecting a range of
future economic conditions.
Signifi cant management judgement is
applied in determining the economic
scenarios used and the probability
weights applied to them.

As a part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the impairment of loans and
advances to customers, has a high degree of
estimation uncertainty, with a potential range
of reasonable outcomes greater than our
materiality for the Financial Statements as a

whole and hence rve have identified this as a

Key Audit Matter.
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Key audit mattens ow our audit addressed the kev audit matterH

ory system used for the financial reporting process
) Information Technol

The Company's key financial accounting and
reporting processes are high_ly dependent on
information technology considering the
significant number of transactions that are
processed daily across multiple Information
Technology ('IT') systems. The Financial
accounting system of the Company is
interfaced with several other IT systems
including Loan Management & Originating
systems as well as several other systemic
workflows.

IT general and application controls are
critical to ensure that IT systems are able to
process the data, completely, accurately and
consistently for reliable financial reporting,
changes to applications and underlying data
are made in an appropriate manner. Adequate
controls contribute to mitigating the risk of
potential fraud or elrors as a result ofchanges
to the applications and data.

These include implementation of preventive
and detective controls across critical
applications and infrastructure.

Due to the pervasive natue of role of
information technology systems in financial
reporting, we planned our audit by assessing

the risk of a material misstatement arising
from the IT systems as significant for the
audit, hence this a Key Audit Matter.

During the course of audit, we deployed our
intemal experts to carry out the review of IT
general controls. Our key audit processes were as
under:

r review of the IT applications and IT
infrastructure of the Company in order to
identily the IT applications and the
infrastructure which has a significant
impact on the financial reporting process,
as "Key IT systems/applications"

o obtaining an understanding ofCompany's
Key IT applications, databases and
operating systems.

o review of reports of information security
audits conducted by the Company either
intemally or through extemal experts.

. testing design and operating effectiveness
of IT controls such as IT govemance and
policy framework, access controls, change
management controls, program
development & system implementation,
IT operations & backup controls, data
integrity and protection controls, business
continuity and disaster recovery, incident
management, batch processing &,
monitoring etc.

. testing of compensating controls and
performing altemate procedures,
whenever necessary-

. testing the accuracy of the information
produce'd by the Company's key IT
systerns/applications.

. testing of compliance with the
requirements relating to 'Audit Trail'
under 'the Companies Act,2013'.

We employed various techniques such as inquiry,
review of documentationi record/ reports and
observation, for the purpose of IT review.

BATLIBOI & PUROHIT
Chartered Accountants

Continuation Sheet
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Information Other than the Financial statements and Auditors report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis and Board's report including annexures to Board's report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The aforesaid other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the frnancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as

required under SA 720'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performaace including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity ofthe Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in Indi4 including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 ofthe Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding ofthe assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other inegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance ofadequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
ofthe financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

a
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken
on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from lraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

required to draw attention in our auditor's rcport to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifr our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying tansactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in intemal control that we identifu during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

Page 5 of 16
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Chartered Accountants

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences ofdoing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2024, included in these
financial statements, have been audited by predecessor Auditor, who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements vide their report dated April 30,2024.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Comparies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessaly for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company
so fax as it appears from our examination ofthose books, except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 3 (vi) below.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1, 2025
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2 (ii) above and 3(vi) below.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B" to this report;

2

ll.

1

1ll.

lv.

vl
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Ghartered Accountants

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us, remuneration

paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the

provisions ofsection 197 of the Act.;

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

vlll

1.

11

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
positionl

The Company has made provision as required under applicable laws or accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Benefrciaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures per{ormed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice thal has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which along with access management too1,
have feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except in case
ofone software where the feature of recording audit trail was not enabled for changes
performed by privileged users at the application level for certain records.

tll.

1V.

vi
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course ofperforming our procedures, other than the aforesaid instances ofaudit trail not
enabled, where the question of our commenting does not arise, we did not notice any
instance ofaudit trail feature being tampered with. The Company has preserved the audit
trail for the prior financial year in compliance with statutory record retention
requirements, except in relation to certain records of the software for which the audit
trail feature was not enabled.

For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101048W

{/ ^lKaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership No.: 111749

UDN: 251 1 l749BMOLHF7889

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 05,2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section
of our report to the Members of Godrej Finance Limited of even date)

To the best ofour information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course ofaudit, we state that:

(D (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation ol Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programrne ofphysical verification ofits Property, Plant
and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equiprnent are verified in a phased
manner over a period of 2 years. In accordance with this programme, certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour ofthe lessee), held by
the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ixc) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
ofuse assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) As disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks and financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course
of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly retums/statements filed by the
Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the
unauCited books ofaccount of the Company.

The Company is a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company ('I{BFC)
registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and as a part of its business

activities is engaged in the business oflending across various types ofloans. During
*re year, in the ordinary course of its business, the Company has made investments
in, provided guarantee/security to and granted loans and advances in the nature of
loans, secured and unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnershi

(iiD
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other parties. With respect to such investments, guarantees/security and loans and
advances:

(a) The Company's principal business is to give loans accordingly, reporting under
clause (iii)(a) is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, having regard to the nature of the Company's business, the
investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
ofthe grant ofall loans and advances in the nature ofloans and guarantees provided
are not prejudicial to the Company's interest;

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Having
regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to fumish
entity-wise details of amount, due date for repayment or receipt and the extent of
delay in this report (as suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting under this clause), in
respect of loans and advances which were not repaid / paid when they were due or
were repaid / paid with a delay, irr the normal course of lending business. Further,
except for 360 loans classified as credit irnpaired ('stage 3') with aggregate exposure
of principal and interest ofRs. 47 crores, 251 loans where credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition ('stage 2') with aggregate exposure of
principal and interest of Rs. 46 crores and 198 loans where the credit risk has not
increased signiffcantly since initial recognition but have some overdue ofup to 30
days ('stage 1') with aggregate exposue ofprincipal and interest ofRs. 43 crores as

at March 31, 2025, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset

classification / staging in Note 5.1 to the financial statements in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, the parties in respect of 25,388 loans with aggregate exposure of
principal and interest of Rs. 8477 crore are repaying the principal amounts, as

stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, as disclosed in Note 5.1 to
the financial statements, the total amount outstanding of loans classified as credit
impaired ('stage 3') (including loans overdue for more than ninety days) as at March
31,2025 is Rs. 47 crores (360 loans). In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable
steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of
principal and interest.

(e) The Company's priucipal business is to give loans and is a registered NBFC,
accordingly, reporting under clause (iii)(e) is not applicable.

(0 The Company has not granted anl' loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifting any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited l,iability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iiix0 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Page 10 of 16
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The Company has not advanced loans or made investments in or provided guaranty
or security to parties covered by section 185 ofthe Act and the provisions ofsection
186 ofthe Act is not applicable to the Company. Hence reporting under paragraph
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any

amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 lo 76

of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) ofthe Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance ofcost records has not been specified by the Central Govemment
under section 148(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Hence reporting under paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not
applicable

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues

applicable to it.
As informed, Company does not have any dues ofsales tax, wealth tax, value added
tax, excise duty and custom duty.

(iv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31,2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, outstanding dues ofsales
tax, Goods & Service tax and income tax that have not been deposited by the
Company on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the
statute

Nature of
dues

Amount
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Period to which
the amount

relates
(Financial Year)

Forum
where

dispute is
pending

Income tax Act,
t96t Income toi 3.t4 AY 2011-12 AO

Income tax Act,
1961

Income tax AY 2016-17 crr (A)

Income tax Act,
t96t Income tax 3.21 AY 2017-18 AO

Income tax Act,
l96l ]ncome tax 1.40 AY 2017-t8 AO

Income tax Act,
t96t Income tax 0.88 AY 2019-20 AO

Page 11 of 16
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Chartered Accountants

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
urecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a)

(viii)

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any goverrlment authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company and maturity profile of financial assets and financial liabilities provided
in the notes to the financial statements, we report tlat no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate orjoint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(") (a) The Company has not mised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer/further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fuIly, partly or optionally) during the year

(xi) (a) No fraud/material ftaud by the Company or no fraud /material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 ofthe Companies
Act,20l3 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Fotm ADT 4 as

prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Govemment.

G) As represented to us by tlle management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Compaay during the year.

Page 12 of 16
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(xii) (a) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related pa(ies are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) The intemal audit reports ofthe Company issued till the date ofthe audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 ot 1934)

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Ce(ificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank oflndia as per the Reserve Bank of India Ac! 1934

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)
(c) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group does not have more than one Core Investment Company, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year,
however it has incurred cash losses of Rs 1431.28 lakhs in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation ofthe statutory auditors during the year.

(xix) On the basis ofthe financial ratios disclosed in Note 43.1 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates ofrealization offinancial assets and payment offinancial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
ofthe Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period ofone year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
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date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company is not required to contribute towards Corporate Social Responsibility,
hence reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) and (b) ofthe Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm

{.*

umber:101048W

Kaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership No.: 111749

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 05,2025
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Continuation Sheet

Annexure B - to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Godrej
Finance Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintahing intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('lCAf). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness ofthe accounting records. and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibiliry is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal frnancial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
intemal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for extemal pulposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the compaly's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the dsk that the intemal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the intemal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
intemal control stated in the Guidance Note issued bv the ICAI.

For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101048W

{l Ll
Kaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership No.: 111749

UDIN: 25 1 1 1 749BMOLHF7889

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 05,2025
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The Board of Directors
Godrej Finance Limited
Godrej One, Pirojshanagar,
Eastem Express Highway,
Vikhroli (East),
Mumbai - 400079

Independent Auditors' Additional Report

We have been engaged by Godrej Finance Limited (the "Company") to verifu ard report on matters
specified in the Reserve Bank of Indias Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016, DNBS. PPD.03/66.15.001 12016-17 dated September 29, 2016 (the
"Directions"), for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The compliance with the Directions is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including
the preparation and maintenance of all relevant records and other supporting documents. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to
compliance with the Directions.

2. The Management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the requirements ofthe
NBFC Master Directions and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and for
maintenance of proper books of account and such other records as prescribed by Reserve bank of India
and other applicable laws.

Auditors' Responsibility

3. Pursuant to the requirements ofthe NBFC Master Directions, it is our responsibility to provide a limited
assurance on whether the assertions made by the Company with respect to compliance with the
Directions as at March3l,2025 and the information provided by the management, are in agreement with
the audited books of account and other relevant records maintained by the Company.

4. We have conducted our examination ofthe Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants of India. Our scope ofwork did not include verification
of compliance with other requirements of other circulars and notifications issued by regulatory
authorities from time to time and any other laws and regulations applicable to the Company. Further, our
scope of work did not involve performing audit tests for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
fairness or accuracy ofany ofthe financial information or the financial statements ofthe Company, taken
as a whole. We have not performed an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an

opinion on the financial statements, specified elements, accounts or items thereof, for the purpose ofthis
report. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

5. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
l, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Revie*s of Historical Financial Information and

Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

National lnsurance Building, 2nd Floor, 204, Dr. D. N. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400
Tel.: +91-22-2207 7942 t 2201 4930 o Email: auditteam@bnpindia'in

2. The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company-Middle Layer (NBFC-ML) as defined in Para 2.9.1
of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023 and, accordingly reporting is done for various clauses of the
direction.

Management's Responsibility

I
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The financial statements of Godrej Finance Ltd for the year ended March 31, 2025, have been audited
by us, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion vide our audit report dated May 5,2025. Our
audit of these financial statements was conducted in accordance with the Standard on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143( l0) ofthe Act. This Standard requires that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

6

7 The procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable

assurance engagement and consequently, the level of assurance obtained is substantially lower than the
assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. We
have performed the following procedures:

11.

Examined the audited books of account as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 and other
relevant documents as considered necessary.
Obtained written representation from the Management confirming the compliance with the
Directions as at March31,2025.

8

Conclusion

Based on the information, explanation and management representations provided and procedures
performed by us as stated in paragraph 7 above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the following assertions provided by management, is not in agreement with the aforesaid
audited books ofaccount and other relevant records maintained by the Company:

2

assets/exposures and risk asset ratio Form DNBSO3 on Apri121,2025.

i) The Company's principal business is conducting Non-Banking Financial activities and has

obtained a Certificate ofRegistration No. N- l3-00368 dated 03112/2021 from the Reserve Bank
oflndia. (This is the Date ofrevised Certificate of Registration (COR) post change in name of
the Company from Ensemble Holdings & Finance Limited to Godrej Finance Limited. Original
COR was issued on March 18, 1998.)

ii) The company is entitled to continue to hold the Certificate of Registration in terms of its
principal business criteria i.e. asset/income pattern as on March31,2025.

iiD The Company has met the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction
- Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2023

dated October 19.2023.
iv) The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non-acceptalce ofany public deposits at the

meeting held on April30,2024.
v) The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the vear.
vi) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,

accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtlul debts as

applicable to it in terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based

Regulation (Reserve Bank) Directions,2023 dated October 19,2023.
vii) The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndian

Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") referred to in section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015.
viii) The Capital Adequacy Ratio ("CRAR') of the Company as on March 31,2025 as disclosed in

the unaudited Retum submitted to the RBI in form DNBSO3 is 23.09o/o. The CRAR is updated
as23.09%o in the audited financial statements. The said ratio is in compliance with the minimum
CRAR requirement of l5oZ aS prescribed by the RBl.

ix) The Company has frrmished to the RBI the unaudited annual statement of capital funds, risk

I\,,UN,l8A]
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x) The Company is not classified as NBFC Micro Finance Institutions (MFI) as defined in the
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company Scale Based Regulation (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2023 dated October 19,2023.

Restriction of use

9. This report is addressed to the Board of Directors ofthe Company solely for the use ofthe management
of the Company for submission to RBI as required by the NBFC Master Directions and is not to be used
for any other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume
any liability or any dury ofcare for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. This Report relates only to the
items specified above and does not extend to any financial statements ofthe Company taken as a whole.

For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: r 0l048w

{* il
Kaushal Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: I l, 17 49
UDIN: 251 I 1749BMOLI{V2438
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21 ,2025
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Godrej Finance Limited
Statement ofcash nolr for rhe y€.r €nded March 31,2025

Cr.h ,lorr from op€rrthg ,ctivities

Profi/( L-oss) b€fore lax
Adiusldents for
Net gain on fair value change

Irnpairmenl on financial assels

Depreciation, amodsation and impairment
lntercst income on security deposits

Remeasuements ofthe defmed b€nefit plans

Cash flow hedge reserve (net)

Profit on sale of fixed assets

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

For rhe yc.r etrded For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

9,428.81

193s.s7l
8,272.19
2,246.6s

(19.89)
(11.94)

(1,537.7s)
8.32

12.92O.57)

17 79.47)
2,151.21

1,489.29
(r2.50)
(66.68)

(4.53)

Opersaing crsh flow bcfor€ working capitrl chrnges

Add / (Izss): Adjuslnents lor rto*ina capiral cha,rses
(lncrease)/ Decrease in Other Bank balances

(lncrease)/ Decreas€ in Receivables
(lncrcase)/ Decrease in [.aff
(lncreas€)' Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(lncrEase)/ Decrease in Other non fnancial assets

Increas€/ (Decrease) in Derivative fnancial instrumenb
Increase/ (De.rease) in Trade Palabl€s
IDcreas€/ (D€.crease) in Olher financial liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions
Increas€/ (Decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities

17,390.82

(492.11)

(4,40,123.21)
( r,r99.51)

(136.35)

128.61

2,117.80
(219.70)
313.59
r46.58

456.75

t,525.81

0,152.08)
13 ,49 ,792.7 t\

(797.1s)
(56r.54)

25.41

2,448.21
10,398.43

t4t.56
127.24

Cash (used in) operrtions

(lncome tax paid)/ Income lax reftnd rcceived

Nel cssh (uscd in) op€rating activities -A

(4,22,07 3.48',)

(1,219.11)

(3J7,180.01)

(626.40)

B Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Movement in intadgible assets under development

Proceeds from sale ofproperty, plant and equipment
Purchas€ of invesunents

Proceeds fiom sale of investsnents

Net clsh g€nerated fronv(used itr) investing activities - B

C Crsh flo\r from frnancing ectivities

Net incrersc / (Decrease) in cash and crsh equivderts (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivrlent ss at the end ofth€ year

Proc€€ds Aom issu€ ofequity sharcs (itrcluding s€cudties premiun)
Repayment ofk s€ Obligstions
Proce€ds Aom issue ofdebt securities

RepayrEot of debt s€curities

Proce€ds from borrowings (other lhan Debt se€urities)

Repayment ofborrowings (other than Debt securities)

Net crsh ge,lcrstcd from financing activities - C

14292.82
(649.44)

2,66,464.64
(r,25,920.83)

5,97,6t 5.20
(3,40,062.73)

79,962.29
(494.62\

2,22,380.75

lt ,29 ,982.2t)
335,700.00

( 1,82,922.91)

(4,23.292.59\ (337,806.41)

(1,577 .55)
(1,658.24)

(37.9r)
42.56

(5,r0,415.6?)

5,30,709.4r

(s63.00)
(2,124.22)

68.33

( r0,39,474.48)
t0,18,121.88

(23,911.49) 11,062.60

4,71,199.66 3,34,643.10

24,s3s5L 13,899.49

25,765.O4 11,865.55

sor00.62 25,764.01
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GodreJ Fhance Limited
StrleDa ofProfl rBd Loss for lhc t€.r ended lr.r.h 31,2025

Pr icuhrs

E!pallas
(i) Frrance c6ts
(ii) hlpoi.Dtalon fin ocial il'ts &etrr'
(iii) E npb,yee B.ae6ts Expass
(iv) D.pr.ciation, arnoairrtio, aad impairncit
(v) Olher f'e(as€s
Totrl cpatrs€s

Prollu (Loss) before r.r for rhe ) elr ( III - I\')

(ConErcy : Indian Rupe6 in lakhs)

9E.6E1.14 39,803.13

For the For the
yeer endcd yetr€nded

March.ll, 2025 Mar.h 31, 2024

t4"832.60
10,t35.64

3.57

t320.58

34.346.53

3"418.65
1',t9.47

473.88

973U39

1,356.15

Roeru. froD operrtionr
(i) htlrest ltrcoEe
(ii) Fe. atrd Commission licorne
(iii) Net g6in cn foir value cknges
(iv) Nei Sain oo derEeogtlitioo ot financial instrumeits undcr amortbed cost

Tot.l r"v€rue fron op€rilions

Olb(r lncolr€

Totrll[coee(I+ID

20

2t

22a

23

24

25

26
9

21

rt2 r6.t3
2,75t.21

t2,966.34
tt89.29
7,300.73

44,r86.35
8.2',72.t9

20,326.19
2)46.65

14220.95
ry

vt

89,25233 42,123-70

9,{28.81

Tar ErpGDra
(a) Curr€ol ar
(b) H6€d t r
(c) Sbct / (Exc!sr) prov;sin &r c.rli€ y.ars

28

28

(79r.6r)

(79 r -61)

VII

vIII

Net pron/ Gos!) !ft.r tsr for the ye3r ( V - VI)

Ottar coBpretcnrlvc hcoda
It os rfiat wil lot be r€clEsfied to profii ad loss

(i) R€scasotln.ot Eahs aod (h6!.s) oa defined b.aefit obligtirxs
(ii) Ircooe tlx re&tirg to iilos tiit will sor be reclassmed to Fofir ad lo6s

Itans lhat will be rcclarsifild !o Fof'I ad loss
(i) CasL floY./ h.dgc .es€wc (nct)

(XiCI Conpr.Lerrlva hcoaa/O,'r)

lX Totr! Compreleoslv! lncoma{Losr) for rhe JGar ( \rII + VIID

x Errnings per.qritv shsr. in lrpe?s {frcc vrl!€ Rr. l0 .rch)
Basic and Diluted

t0,'20.42 (x,920.57't

1

0,56t.s0)

(66.68)

(66.6E)

(7r.94)
41.19

8,65t.92 (1,9E7.25)

0.91 (0.4r )

M.tcri.l Actountlng Poli.le6 rnd iccorlparyiIlg nol.s forming prrl ofthc Frnrtrcial
StoLma!t!.

At }er oua r€porl of lvan &te rttrchcd
for B.t bol & Purohlt
Chrrt€r€d AccourtaDb
FuE R%istatioD No.: l0l048w

for,nd on beh.lf of rhc Bo.rd of Directori
Godraj Flnanc. Llmit d
CIN: U67120MH1992PLC06545?

Krurhd Mehtr
Prre€r
Merabetship No: I I1749
Phc.: Mutrlboi
Dar€: May 05, 2025

M.!l.h Shah
Non Erecutiv. Dtector
DINI 06422627
Place: Mum&i
Datc: May 05,2025

PutrJ Gupt
Managing Dircclor & CEO

DIN: 10891578

Dare: May 05,2025

V
Kunll Kr'n.ri
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31.2025

2 Basis ofpreparation & Materi{l a.counting policies

2.1 Statemedt of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended by the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2016. These
financial statemmts together with the compamtive repofling pedod have been preprared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles as laid down in lnd AS, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), Regulation 52 ofthe SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requiremmts) Regulations, 2015 and guidlines issued by Reserve Bank oflndia (RBI) , as amended from time
to time and lhe guidance noteyannouncements issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied along with
compliance wilh oiher statulory promulgations.

The Company uses accrual basis ofaccounting except in case of significant uncertainties. The accounting policies are applied consistently
to all the financial yearc presented in the financial statements.

The finaDcial statements are prepared on a going concem basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continue
its business for the forcseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on going concem assumption. In
making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating to prcsent and future conditions, including
future projeclions of profitability, cash flows and capital rcsources.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved for issue in accordance with the resolulion of
the Board ofDirectom on 05 May 2025.

2.2 Basisofmeasurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accnral basis under the historical cost convention as modified by the application of fair
value measurements required or allowed by the relevanl standards under lnd AS.

Historical cost is genemlly the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the considemtion given in exchange for goods

and services.

The financial statements have been prepared on a histodcal cost basis except for the fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities measurcd at fair value through profit and loss statement (FVTPL).

Functional and Presentation Cufiency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (rounded to the nearest lakhs) which is determined to be the functiotal currency of
the Company and the currency of the primary economic environmert in which the Company operates.

Pres€trtation of financial statemedts
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of profit and loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III to Schedule

m to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'') as amended from time to time. The Statement of Cash Flows has been Feparcd and prcsented as

per lhe rcquiremmts of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flow". The disclosure requiremmts with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and

Staternent of Profit and l-oss, Statement of Changes in Equity as prescribed in the Schedule Itr to the Act, are presented by way of notes

forming part of the financial staternents along with the other notes rcquircd to be disclosed under the notified Ind AS, RBI and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Corporate Information

Godrej Finance Linited was incorpomted on February 1''/. 1992 and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a systemically
Impoflant Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial company (NBFC-ND-S]) as defined under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India ('RBI') Act, 1934 with effect fmm March 18, 1998, holding Cerrificate of Registmrion No .N-13.00368,,.The Non convertible
debentures (NCDS) of the Company are lisred on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE). The Cornpany,s primary business is
advancing loans and financing. The Company has its registered office at Pirojshanagar, Eastem Express Highway, Vikhroli (E;st), Mumbai
-400079-The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Godrej capital Limited w.e.f from March 30, 202i. The Company has been
classified as NBFC- ML (middle layer) by RBI as part of its 'scale Based Regulation' dated o ctober 22, 2o2l .
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Godrej Finance Limited
:{ot€s to the financial statements for the vear ended Nlarch 31, 2025 (Continucd)

2.5 Use ofestimf,tes rnd judgements

The preparation of financial statemenls in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make estimates, judgernents and assumptions
lhat affect the application of accounting policies and lhe reporled amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingenl liabilities) and
disclosures as of the date of the financial stalemenls and the reponed amounts of revenues and exp€nses for the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Accounting cstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could
change from period to period. Appropriate changes in eslimates are recognised in the periods in which the Company becomes aware of the
changes in circumstances surrounding the eslimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recogflised prospectively in the period in
which the eslimate is revised and future periods. The estimales and judgernenb that have significant impact on the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities at each balance she€t date listed here in below under critical accounting estimates and judgemenls.

Information about critical judgernents in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes:

A. Useful lives of proDertr. plant and couipment and inlrnsible rssets
The Companv revie*s lhe estimatql useful lives of property, plant and equipmenl and inlangible assets at the end of cach reF)ning period
or even ear,ier in case, circumstances change such that the amounl re(orded value ofan asset may not be recovemble.

B. Detrrmination of lease term:
lnd AS I 16 - Leases requires lessee !o detemine the lease term as lhe non-cancellable period ofa lease adjusted with any option to extend
or lerminate the lease, if the use ofsuch option is reasonably certain. The Company makes assessment on lhe expected lease lerm on lease

by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extmd or terminate the contract will b€ exercised. ln
evaluating lhe lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvernents undelaken over the lease tenr\
costs relaling to the termination of lease and the importance ofthe underlying !o the Company's operations taking into account the location
ofthe underlying asset and the availability of the suitable altematives. The lease term in future periods is rcassessed to ensure that the lease

term reflects the current economic circumstances-

C. Fsir vxlue of finsnci{l in$trumcnts
The fair value of financial inshuments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to tmnsfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) markel at the measurement date under curent market conditions (i.e. an exit price)
regardless of whether thal price is directly observsble or estimated using another valuation technique. Wlen the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, lhey are determined using a variety of
valuation lechniques that include the use ofvaluation models. The inpuls to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,

bul where lhis is not feasiblg estimation is requircd in establishing fair values. Judgernents and estimates include consider-ations of liquidity
and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (toth own and coun(erparty), funding value adjustrnents, correlation and volatility. For
funher details about delennination of fair value please see Nole - 40.

D, Business model rssessm€lt
Classification and measurcment of financial asset depends upon the resulr of the solely paymenl of principal and interest (SPPI) and the

business model test. The Company detennines the business model al a level that reflec6 how goups of financial asset arE managed together

to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflectiflg all relevant evidence including how the

performance of the asset is evaluated and their performance measured, the risk that affecl fhe perfomance of the assets and how these are

manoged and how the managers of the assels are compensated. The Company rnonitors financial assets measupd at amonised or fair value
lhmugh other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.

E, Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa past event, it is probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requircd to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate ofthe consideration required to settle the present obligation as at the balance sheet

date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

eruvl



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to thc financial statements for the year endcd March 31, 202S (Continued)

F. Continpent liahili fics & Commitmcnts
Contingent liabililies are possible obligations whose exishce will be confirmed only by uncertain luture events or present obligations
where the tmnsfer of economic benefits is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingenl liabilities are disclosed unless the
possibility ofan outflow of resources embodying economic bmefit is remote.
Commitmmls are futurc liabilities, which include undrawn loan commitments, eslimaled amount of contmcts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not pmvided for.

G. Emplovee Benelits
i) Short-term employee benefits
Shofi-term employee benefits in respecl of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefib are recognised as an expense at the
undiscounted amounl in the statemml of pmfit and loss for the year falling due wilhin twelve months in which the related service is
rendered.

ii) Defined ContributioD Plan
The Company's conlribudon paid/payable during the year lowards Provident and other funds is charged to the slaternent ofprofit and loss in
the year in which ernployee renders lhe related service.

iii) MersuremeDt of delined benelit obligrtions
The cost of the dehned benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are detennined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the furure. These include lhe
detennination ofthe discount mte, future salary increases and monality r.t€s. Due to the complexities involved in rhe valuation and its long-
term naturc, a defined b€.rlefit obligation is highly smsitive to changes in these assumptrons. AII assumptions are reviewed at each financial
year md.

The pammeter mosl strbject to change is the discount rate. In detemining lhe appropriate discount l!te, lhe actuary considers the interest
mtes of govemment bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those monality tables tend to change only at interval in r€sponse to
dernographic changes. Future salary increases and gmtuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

The Company has an obligation towards graruiry, a oon funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity occurs

upon complelion of five years of seftice.
Details of the unfunded defined benefit plans for ils employees are given in Note - 39 which is as certified by the actuary using projecled
unit credit method.

iv) Compensrtcd Abserces
Eligible employees ofthe Company are entided to compensaled absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensaled abseoces is determined by actuarial valuation using projected unit crcdit method for lhe uoused

entitlernenl that has accumulated 6s at the balance sheet date.

H. Effective interest rtte
The effqrtive interest rate is the mte that discounts estimated future cash paymenls or receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset

or financial liability to lhe gloss carrying amount ofa financial (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised

cost of a financial liability. This estimation, by nature, rcquires an element ofjudgernent regarding the exp€cted behaviour aod life-cycle of
the instruments and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the insrument.

I. Measurement ofimDairmant ofloans and advrnces
Judgeme is requircd by management in lhe eslimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impairmenr
loss for loans and advances in new businesses. In eslimating these cash flowq the Company makes judgernents about the bonower's
financial situation compare the borrowels profile with customers having similar profile to estimale probability of default and the net

realisable value of collateml, if any. These estimarcs are based on assumptions about a number of factors including forward looking
information, and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to tle impairment allowance.

ReceDt Pronouncementsi
The Ministry of Corpomte Affai6 ("MCA") notifies new slandards or ammdment to the existing standards under Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance

contracts and amendmmts to Ind AS 116 Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April l,
2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant

a:
Oa

*

2.6

e

impact in its financial statements.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the finsncirl stat€ments for the vear ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

2.7 lltrterirleccountingpolicies

2.1.1 Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contmclual provisions
ofthe instrument. Ihe Company determines the classificalion ofits financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its
nalure and chamcteristics.

2.7.1.1 Finrncialassets

i) Initirl rccognition and measurem€nt

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value adjusted for incremental transaction costs and income that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset excef,t for following :

Financial assets measured at FVTPL which are recognised at fair value; and tmnsaction cost are adjusted to profit and loss slatement.

The financial assets include inveshnents in mufual funds, trade and other receivables, loans and advances and cash and banl balances.

However, trade and other receivables that do not contain a significan( financing componmt are measured al tmnsaction price.

ii) Subsequent measurcment

For the purpose of subsequent measuremml, financial assets are classified in the following categories

. At amortised cost, and

. Al fair value thmugh other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and

. At fair value thiough profit and loss (FVTPL).

Debt inshuments xt smortised cost
A 'debt insmment' is measured at the amortised cost ifboth the following conditions are met:
. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset forcollec[ing contractual cash flows, and
. Contractual tems ofthe asset give dse on specified dates !o cash flows that are solely payinents ofprincipal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Finrncirl Assets xt Amortised Cost
Financial assets at amortised cost include loans receivable, and other financial asse$ that arc held with the objective of collecting

contractual cash flows. After initial measureinent, such financial assets are subsequmtly measurcd at amortised cost using the effective

interesl rate (EIR) melhod. Amonised cost is calculated by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisilion and fees or costs

thal are an inlegml pan of the effective interest rate (EIR). The effeclive inleresl rale (EIR) amortisation is included in interest income in the

statement of Prcfil and [rss.

F.h vrlue through other comprebensive income G"\/OCI)
Financial asseb that are held for collection of confilctual cash flows and for selling lhe financial assels, where the assels' cash flows

represent solely paymenls of principal aDd interest, are m@sured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are laken through other

comprehensive income ("OCf'), except for the recognition of impairment gaiis or losses, interest revenue and foteign exchange gains and

losses which are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss. wlen the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to the Starcment of pmfit and loss and recognised in oth6 gainy(losses) (net).

Intercsl income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate (EIR) melhod.

c(,
o

,\
\a-

o
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Falr vrlue through Profit and Loss (rVTPL)
Financial assets (hat do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL').

iii) Recl.ssilications
Financial assets 6re not rEclassified subsequent to their initial recognilion, except in the period in which the Company changes its business

model for managing financial assets.

-a=>.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

iv) Imprirmcnt
The provision for crcdil risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit loss method specified by Ind AS I09 and in
accordance wilh uniform standards applied, encompasses all financial assets measured at amortised cost. The calculation of the provtston
for credit risks generally takes into accounl the exposurE at default, the probability ofdefaull and the loss given defauit.
Financial assets are subjecl to credit risks, which are taken into account by recognising the amounl of the expecled loss; such allowances are
recognised for both financial assets l,ith objective evidence ofimpairment and non-impaired financial 6ssets.

The general approach is used for financial assets measurcd at amortised cost on initial recognition. Financial assels are broken down into
three stages in the general approach.

Stage I consists of financial assels that are being recognised for the first time or that have not demonsmted any significant increase in
probability ofdefaull since inilial recognition. In lhis stage, the model requires the calculation ofan expected crcdi( Ioss for (he nexl twelve
months.

Slage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is a significant increase in crcdit dsk. The Company assumes that the crcdit risk on a

financial asset has increased significantly if it is more lhan 30 days past due.

Stage 3 Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment are allocal€d to stage 3. The Company assumes that the financial
asset is credi( impaired if it is more than 90 days past due.

In stage 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for lhe entire remaining maturity ofthe asset.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when :

- the bormwer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in firll or in pa4 without recouNe by the Company lo actions such as

realising security (ifany is held): or
- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Both historical information, such as avemge historical default probabiliries for each portfolio, and forward-looking information is used to
deterrnine the measurenent pammeters for calculating the provision for crcdit risks.

Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed paymmt over a certain period, the initiation of enforcemenl measures, the
threat of insolvency or over indeblcdness, application for or the initiation ofinsolvency proceedings, or the failure of restructuring measurcs.

Loans are reponed in the balance sheet al the net off Expecled Crcdit Loss (ECL) provision.

l\reasur€ment of ECL

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposurc at a Balance sheet date.

The lrss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the
difference between the contmctual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including fmm the realisalion ofany
colla(eral. It is usually expressed as a percenlage ofthe EAD.

When estimating lhe ECLS, the company adds a management override/overlays to account for stressed scenarios which are then reviewed
on a periodic basis . This takes inlo account the expect€d inherent risk for different segments in the ponfolio and lhe macm economic

envirotunent. The assumptions are periodically validated and modified as appropriate.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately Aom modification losses or gains that are accounted for as an

adjustment ofthe financialasset's gross carrying value.

*
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Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowances are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables that are already subject to
a workout process and for which all collsleral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have b€en

exhausted are written offdirectly. Any valuation allowances previously recognised are utilised. lncome subsequently collected in connection
with loans or receivables alrcady writlen offis recognised in lhe statement ofpofit and loss.

The Probability of Defaull (PD) is an estimate ofthe likelihood ofdefault over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a cerrain
time over the assessed period, if the lacility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Noles to the linoncial statements for the )ear ended Msrch 31, 2025 (Continued)

v) Write - olfs
Financial asse6 are wrinen off either panially or in lheir entirety when fie Company has no reasonable expectations of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines thal the borrower does nol have assets or sources of income tha! could generate sufficiml
cash flows to rePay the amounts. Ifthe amount to be written off is grealer than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first lrealed
as an addition to the allowance that is then applied againsl the gmss carrying amount. Any subsequent r@overies are crcdited to impairment
of financial instrummts in the statemml of prcfit and loss. However, financial assets that are written off may be subject to enforcemenl
activities to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery ofamounls due.

2,7,1.2 Financialliabilities

i) Initial recognition and mersurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value adjusted for incremental transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
linancial liabilities except in the case of financial liabililies recorded at FVTPL where the transaction costs are charged to the Statement of
Profit and l,oss.

ii) Subsaquent measurement
For the purpose of subsequmt meNurement, financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Finlnci.l liabilities rt amortised cost
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are slbsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest mte (EIR) method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when lhe liabililies ar€ derecognised as well as through the effective
inrerest rate (EIR) amortisation pircess.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discounl or premium on acquisition aod fees or costs thal arc an integral part offte
effective interest mte (EIR). The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.7.1.3 De-re.ognition, Modificrtion and Transfer
FlnrDci.l Assct
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a pan of a financial asset or part of a gr,oup of similar financial assets) is primary derecognised

when ;

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
- the Company has tmnsferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without malerial delay to a third party under as 'pass-throlgh' arrangement; and eilher (a) the Company has transfened subslantially all
the risks and rewards of the assec or (b) the Company has neither lransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has tmnsfenrd control of the asse!.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entercd into a pass-thiough arrangernent, it evaluates

if and to what extmt it has retained the risks and rcwards of ownership. Wlen it has neither tmnsfenEd nor retained substanlially all of the

risks and rewards ofthe asset, nor tmnsferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the tmnsfered assel to the e\tent of
the Companys continuing involvemml. ln lhat case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferr€d asset and ihe

associated liability are measured on a basis thal reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has relained.

Continuing involvement thal takes the form of a guamntee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

amounl of the asset and the maximum amount ofconsideration that the Company could be requircd to rcpay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the differcnce between Ole carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amounl allocated to the

portion of the asset derecogfsed) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss.

If the terms of a financial assets are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flow of the modified asset are substantially

different. Ifthe cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed

to have expired. ln this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at lair value.

If the cash flows of ttre modified asset carrid at amonised cost are not substantially differenl, lhen the modification does not result in

derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrfng amount of the financial assa as the presenl

value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cashflows that are discounted at the financial asset's original effective interesl mle and

recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying smount as a modification gain m loss in the the statement ofprofit and loss.

Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carying amount of modified financial asset and arE amortised over the remaining term of the modified

financial asset. If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presenled

together with impairment losses, in other cases, it is presented as interest income.
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Godr€j Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continu€d)

Financi.l Liability
Thc Cornpany derecognises a financial liability wllen its contraclual obligations are disclurged or cancelled or expire.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its tenns are modified and the cash flows of the modified liabiliry are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is rEcognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability cxtinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement ofprcfit and
loss.

2.7.1.4 Offsetting of financial ilstruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal
riSht to oIlset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date of a dedvative contract is entercd into and arc subsequently remeasured 1o their
fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain oss is recognised in lhe staternent of profit and Ioss irnrnedialely unless the
derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Company designates certain derivatives as hedges of highly probable for€cast

transactjons (cash flow hedges). A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a

negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability.

Hedge Accounting Policy
The Company makes use ofderivative instuments to manage exposures to interest mte and foreign currency. In order to manage particular
risks, the Company applies hedge accounting for fansaclions that meet specific criteda. At the inc?tion of a hedge relationship, the
Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and saategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company's dsk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of
the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the Company would assess the effectiveness of changes in lhe hedging instrumert's fair value in
offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to
be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fail value or cash flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to determine that they
actually have been highly effective thmughout the financial reponing periods for which they were designated.

A cash flow hedge is a hedge ofthe exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised

asset or liability (such as all or some future interest pa,.rnents on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast tmnsaction and could affect
profit and loss. For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the ellective portioa of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI within quity (cash flow hedge resewe). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognised irtmediately in Finance Cost in the statement of profit and loss. When the hedged cash flow affects the
statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is rccorded in the coresponding income or
expense line of the staternent of profit and loss. WIen a hedging instument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no

longer meets ihe criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at that time rernains in OCI and

is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss. When a forenast tmnsaction
is no longer expected to occut the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCI is immediately transfen€d to the statement ofprofit and

loss. The Company's hedging policy only allows for effective hedging relationships to be considered as hedges as per the relevant Ind-AS.

Hedge effectiveness is detemined at the inception ofthe hedge relationship, and drough periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to

ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The Company ente6 into hedge relationships

where the critical terms ofthe hedging instrument match with the terms ofthe hedged itern, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment

of effectiveness is performed.

Cash and Crsh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with bad<, deposits with bank (with original maturity of three months or less).

For the purposes ofpresentation in the statenrent of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and currmt account balances

with banks that are readily convertible to a known amount ofcash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2.7.1.6

2.7.1.5 D€rivativefinancial instruments
The Company enters into swap contmcts and other derivative financial instuments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest
rates. Hqiges of foreign exchange risk on firm commilments are accounted as cash flow hedges. The Company does not hold derivative
financial insfuments for speculative purpose.

Cash Flow Hedges
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for thc year cndcd Nlrrch 31, 2025 (Continucd)

2.7.1.7 Fair value meesurement
The Companys accounting policies and disclosures require the measuremenl of fair values for financial instrummts. The managemmt
regularly reviews significant unobservable inpuls and valuation adjustrnents.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, lhe Company uses observable market dala as lar as possible. Fair
values are categorised into differenl levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valualion techniques are as follows :

L€vel l: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in acrive markets for identical assets or liabililies.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are obsewable for the assel or liability, either directly (i.e. as price) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on obsedable market data (unobservable inpuls).

Ifthe inputs used to measure the fair value of an asse! or a liability fall into different levels of lhe fair value hiet'archy, lhen the fair value
rneasurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level ofthe fair value hierarchy as tie lowesl level input that is significant to lhe entire
measurement.

The Company rccognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at lhe end of fte rEponing period during which the change has

occurr€d.

2.1.2 Sharc capit l
An equity insmiment is a contract that evidences residual iniercst in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
lncrernentai cosls dir€ctly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effecls.

2.7.3 Cxsh llow strtemeDt
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for fte effecb of transactions ofa non-cash nature
and any defermls or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.The cash flows fmrn regular r€venue gmeratin& investing and
financing activities of the Company are segegated.

2.7,4 Foreign currency trsnsactions and balances

i) Itritirl recognitiori
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting curency (which is Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amolnt
the exchange mte between the reponing cunency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction.

ii) Conversion:
Foreign currency monetary itens are retmnslated using the exchange rate prevailing 6t the reporting date. Non-monetary iterns, which are
measurcd in t€rrns of historical cost denominated in a foreign currancy, are reponed using the exchange mte at the date ofthe transaction.
Non-monetary items, which are measurcd at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign curency, are translated using lhe
exchange mte at the date when such value was determined.

iii) Erchanqe dilferctrces:
AII exchange differences arising on settlement or tnnslation of monel6ry items arc recognized as income or as expenses in the period in
which they arise.

2.7.5 Prop€rty, Plant and Equipment (Tengible rssets) & Depreciation

i) Recognition rnd mersurement

Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE") are slated at cost, net of accumulated dqrreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany. The
cost comprises purchase price, borowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for lhe intended use. Any tmde discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to th€ financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

ii) Subscqucnt measurement

Subsequent costs arc included in lhe asset's carrying amount only when it is probable lhat future e€onomic benefits associated with the pan

will flow to the Company and its cosl can be measurcd reliably. All other expenses on existing PPE, including day-to-day repair and

maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing pans are charged to the statemmt of profit and loss for the period during which such

expenses are incuned.

Gaios or losses arising ftom derecognition of PPE are measurcd as the difference between lhe nel disposal proce€ds and the carrying

amount ofthe asset and are recognized in the statement ofprofit and loss when the 6sset is derecogtrized.

iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate their cosl, net of their residual value over the estimated useful life ofthe
respective asset. The Company has estimaled the useful lives to depreciate its PPE which is in accordance with those prescribed under
Schedule tr of the The Companies Act ,2013, except vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on lhe nature of
the asse! the estimated usage of the asset. The following are the estimates of the useful lives to depreciate its PPE: The following are the
estimates ofthe useful lives to depreciate its PPE:

Particulars Estimated useful life by the Compxny

Computer Hardware 3 - 5 Years

Office Equipment 5 Ye3rs

Vehicles 5 Years

Fumiturc and Fixtur€s l0 Years
taasehold improvemeots are amortized on a st_aight line basis over the period of lease of the asset.

The management b€lieves that these estimaled useful lives are realistic and reflecl fair approximation of the period over which the asses are

likely to be used. Cons€quently, the useful life of c€'rlain computer-related assets, office equipment and vehicles differ fiom lhe life
prescribed in Schedule tr of fie Companies Acl, 2013.

Prcperty, plant and equipment costing less than 5,000 are fully dep.€ciated in the year of purEhase.

i) R€cognition and measurement

The Company's intangible assets primarily consist of computer softwares. Intangible assets are recognised when il is probable that the
future economic benefits that are attributable !o the asset will flow to the Company and the cosi of the asset can be measurcd reliably.
Intangible assets are stated al original cost net oftax/duty credits availed, ifany, less accumulaled amorlisation and cumulative impairment.

Development costs thal are direcdy attributable to the desigD and testing of identifiable.nd unique software prcducts controlled by the
Company are recognised as inlangible assets.

Development costs include ernployee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as

intangible assets and amorrised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date ofBalance Sheet are disclosed as "lnlangible assets under development".

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected fmm use or disposal. Cains and losses

arising from derecognition ofan intangible asset, measured as the diflereoce between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assets are recognised in the statemenl ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

ii) Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. lntangible assets are amonised as per

management's estimate over a period of 3 lo I0 years or license period whichever is earlier. Intangible assets are assessed for impairmenl

whenever ihere is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amonization method are

reviewed at least at each financial year end. Costs associated with maintaining software progmmmes are recognised as an expense as

incunEd.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to th€ financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

2.7.7.2

2.1.E

2.7.9

Post-Employment Benelits
Defi ned co[tribution sch€mes

All eligible employees oI the company are enlilled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both
the employee and lhe company contribute monthly at a stipulaled percmlage of the covered employee's salary. Contributions are made to
Employees Providenl Fund Organization in respect of Provident Fund, Pension Fund and are charged to Statemmt of Profit and lnss at
actuals. The company has no liability for furure provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

Defined Betrefit schem€s

Grrtuit!
The Company provides for gratuity covering eligible employees under which a lumpsum paymmt is paid to vested employees al retiremmq
death, incapacitation or termination of e,nployment, of an amount reckoned on the respective employee's salary and his lenor of
emplo),rnent with the Company. The Company accounts for its liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial valuation determined

at each Balance Sheet date by an Independent Actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measurcd at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount mtes used for determining lhe presml value

of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on lhe markel yields on Crovemment Securities as at lhe Balance Sheet dale.

Re-measurement, comprising ofactuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net inlerest on the net defin€d benefit liability),
are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a conesponding debit or credil to retained eamings through Other Comprehensive

Income in the period in which they occur-Re-measuremenls are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Othor Long t€rm employee benefits
Accumulated compeDsated abseDces

The Company provides for liabilily of accumulated compensated absences for eligible employees on the basis of an independmt actuarial

valuation carried out at the end of the year, using the pmjected unit crcdit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the

Statement ofProfit and Loss for the period in which they occlr.

Employee Shrre Brsed Payments

Equity-setded scheme:
Equity-settled share-based payments made by the parent Company to the anployees of the Company are measured at lhe fair value of the

equity instruments at the granl date. The fair value determined at the grant date ofthe equity-settled share-based paymenls is expmsed on a

straighr-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equily instrummts thal will eventually vest.Fafu value

determined al the grant date is rcduced by payoent, Ifany, made (o the parcnt, is recognised as deerned contribution to equity from parent.

lmprirment of non-finanaial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate thal the carrying amount may not be

recovemble. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recovemble amount. The

recovemble amounl is the higher of an asset's fair value less cosB of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of ass€lssing impairmmt,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash

inflows ftom other asse6 or groups of assets (cash-geDerating units). NoD-financial assets that suffered an impairmenl are reviewed for
possible reveNal of the impairment at lhe end of each rcponing peaiod.

\

2.7,7 Employee B€DeIits Erpenses
2.7.7.1 Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounled amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

An actuarial valuation involves making vanous assumptions lhat may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the

determination of the discount mte, firture salary increases and mortality mtes- Due to lhe complexities iDvolved in the valuation and its
longterm nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the linanciat ststemeDrs for tho year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

2.7.10 Exrnings per shar€
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the nel profil and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholden by rhe weightedavemge number of equity shares oulstanding durin& the period. The weighted ur".ag" numbe, of equlf',tu.", our"unaing au;ng tt"period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation ofshares)that have changed the number ofequity shares ouLstanding without a cfusponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculaling diluted eamings per share, rhe net profir and loss for the period aflributable to equity shareholde$ and lheweighted avemge number of shares outstandin€ during the period are adusted for the effec(s of all dilulive potential equity shares whichmay involve issue of eqtrity shares..The calculation of diluted eamings ier share does not assume conversi;, exercise, or other issue ofpotenrial ordinary shares that would have an antidilutive effecf on eami-ngs per strare.

2.7.11 Income Taxes
Income tax expmse comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recogniz€{ in the statement ofprofit and loss exceF,t to the extent il relates
to items directly re€ognized in equity or in OCI.

Current incom€ t!x
current income tax assets and liabilities for the currml and prior periods are measured at the amounl expected to b€ recovercd from or paid
to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacled or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable
for the poiod.
Currml ta.x items in correlaiion to the underlying transaction relaling to OCI and equity are recognized in OCI and in equity respectively.

Manag€ment periodically evaluales positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable lax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis ofamouns expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and where it intmds either to sede on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneouslv-

Deferred ircome tlt
Defefied income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognzed for deductible
and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilides and their carrying amount in financial statements,
except whor the defened income tax arises from the iritial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a

business combination and affects neither accowrting nor taxable prcfits or loss at the time of the tmnsaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward ofunused tax credits and any unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible tempomry differences, and the carry forward

ofunused tax crcdits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrtrng amounl ofdefen€d tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheer date and reduced lo the extent that it is no longer pmbable that

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or pan of the defened lax assets to be utilised.

Unrecognised defenrd ux assets are re-assessed at each balance sheel dale and are recognised to the extent that il has b€come probable that

future ta-xable pmfits will allow the defened tax asset to be recovered.

Defen€d tax assets and liabilities are measu€d at the tax mles that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability

is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been macted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to sel offdefened tax assets against deferred tax

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sarne taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.7.12 Leases

The Company's lease assets primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a leasq at

inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the connact conveys the right lo control lhe use of an identified assa for a

period of time in exchange for considemtion. To assess whether a contract conveys lhe righl to confol the use of an identified asset, the

Company assesses whether:
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notas to th€ financial ststements for the Iear ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(i) the contmcl involves the use ofan identified asset
(ii) the Company has subsantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset rhrough rhe period oflhe lease and
(iii) the Company has the righr to direct the use ofthe asset.

At the date of commmcernmt ofthe lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease armngements in which it is a lessee. Shorl lerm leases (lease term oftwelve months or less) and low value leases are recog zed as an
opemting expense on a straight-line basis over the lerm of the lease.

Certain lease armngements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the Iease term. ROU assets and lease

liabilities includes lhese options whm it is reasonably cenain that they will be exercised.

The right-of'use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the inilial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease

payrnents made at or prior to the commencement dale of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are

subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairnent losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a sfaightline basis over the shorter ofthe lease term and useful life of
the underlying ssset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cosl at the presen( value of the future lease pa),rnents. The lease pa),rnents are

discounled using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using lhe incremenlal borrowing mtes in the country of
domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company
changes ils assessment if whether ir will erercise an extension or a lermination option.

t ease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented iD the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing

cash flows.

2.7 -13 Segment reporting
The Company is engaged in the business segmml of Financing, whose opemting resulB arc regularly reviewed by the entity's chief
opemting decision maker to make decisions about resources to be ailocated and to assess its performance, ard for which discrerc financial

information is available. Further other business segments do not exceed the quantitative thresholds as defined by the Ind AS 108 on

"Operating Segment". Hence, there are no sepamte reportable segments, as required by the Ind AS 108 on "Operaling Segmenf'.

2.7.14
2.1.14.t

Revonue rnd Eip€nse Recognidon
lDteresa income
Intercsl income is presenled in the statement of pmfit and loss includes interEst on financial assets measurcd at amortised cost calculated on

an effective interest mte basis. Fee income and expense that are integral !o the effective interest mte on a financial asset are included in the

effective inleresl mte computation. The amonization of income and expenses for financial assets under EIR approach is done on a

systematic basis that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows ofthe financial assets through the expected life ofthe assets.

The intercsl income is calculated by applying the EIR to lhe gross carr),1ng amount of non-credit impaircd financial assets. (i.e. at the

amortised cosl of the financial asset before adjusting for any exp€cted crcdit loss allowance). For crcdit-impaircd financial asseb the inleresl

income is calculaled applying the EIR to the amortised co$ of fte crcdit-impaired financial asset (i.e. the grDss carying amount less the

allowancas for ECLS).

2.7.14.2 Commission and fee income

Commissions eamed by the Company which are not direcdy attributable to disbursal of loans a.e recognised in the statement of profit and

loss as and when incurred.

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integnl part of EIR. The Company recognises the fee and corrunission

income in accordance with the terrns of the relevant contracts / agreemenl and wheo it is probable that the company will collect lhe

considemtion.
Cheque bourrce charges, late payment charges, foreclosure charges or any other charges recovered ftom cuslome6 are recorded as and when

realized.

2.7.14.3 Profit or loss eerned on sxle of investments is recognised on tmde date basis, determined based on the weighted avemge cost of the

investments sold.
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to th€ linancirl strtements for thc !c!r ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

2.7.t1.4 Dividend iIlcome
Dividend income is recognized when:
. the right to receive dividend is eslablished which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend,
. it is probable that lhe economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
. amount ofdividend can be measured reliably.

2.?.14,5 Net grin otr derecognition offinancial instruments under smortised cost cstegor,v
Gains arising out ofdirecl assignmml transactions comprise the differfice between the interesl on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate

al which the direcl assignment is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right ofexcess inleresl spread (ElS). lfte future EIS basis

the scheduled cash fiows on execution ofthe tmnsaclion, discounted at the applicable rate entercd inlo wilh the assignee is

recorded upfront in the staternent ofprofit and loss.

2.7.14.6 Other income
Revenue from services is recognised net oftaxes as and when the service is performed as per the relevant agrcements.

2.7.14.7 Interestexpenses
lnterest expeose is presented in the statement of profit and loss includes interest on liabilities measurcd at amodsed cost calculated on an

effective interest basis. Fee and borrowing costs that are integral to the effective interest rate on a linancial liability are included in the

effective inleresl iale computation. The amortization of expenses for financial liabilities under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis

that exactly discounls estimated future cash flows of the financial liabilities through lhe expecled life of the financial liability.

2.?.14.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds including the ancillary cost are amortised and accounted as interest

expense using the EIR method.

Other borrowing cosls are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

\
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the Iinancial statements for the vear ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

Particulars

3. Cash and cash equivalents

a) Cash on hand

b) Balances with Banls
i) in current accounts
ii) in certificate ofdeposits

c) Cheques, drafts on hand

Total

4. Receivables

4.1 Trade receivables
a) Trade Receivables considered good - Secured

b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Total
4,2 Other Receivables

a) Other Receivables considered good - Secured

b) Other Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Total

* Refer note 4A: Other Receivables ageing Schedule

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

0.37 I .90

40,302.78

9,997.47

25,7 62.64

0.50

50,300.62 25,765.04

221.05
456.04 184.98

1,677.09 _________4_q4!_

-
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

4.2 Other recievables
4A Other Receirables ageing Srh€dule

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakrhs)

Particulars

As at March 31.2025
Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment

Less thaD 6
months

6 months -1
year

1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3
years

Total

(i) Other Receivables Considered Good - Secured 221.05 221.O5

(ii) Other Receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 0.93 632.26
Total 852.38 0.93 8533r

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment
Less than 6
months

6 months -1

year
I -2 Y€ars 2-3 years More than 3

yeats
Total

(i) Other Receivables Considered Good - Secured

(ii) Other Receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 235.76 20.02 0.93 256.71

Total 235.76 20.02 0.93 256.71

Other rcceivables as per above ageing

Add: Unbilled dues

As at March
31,2025

853.31

823.'78

As at l\Iarch
31.2024

256.',7 t
928.27

Total

)e

A

q

&p

tdtrilii''r

631.33

Particulars

1,677.09 r,r84.98

z/*),f\r,)
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Particulars

5. Loans

At amortised cost

A. Product wise Details

At Amortised cost
a) Term loans
b) Pass through certificates

Total (A) - Gross

l-ess: Impairment loss allowance

As at
March 31, 2025

8,61,312.09
ao )i) 67

9,20,514.'7 |

(8,0s0.73)

Totol (A) - Net ________2p&S8_

6.20.584.40

992 930.31

Total (B) - Gross 9,20,514.71

(8,0s0.73)

Total (B) - Net 9,12,463.98

9,20,514.71

Total (C) - Gross 9,20,514.71

(8,050.73)

Total (C) - Net 9,12463.98

8,6t,3t2.09
59,202.62

Total (D) - Gross 9,20,514.',71

(8,0s0.73)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at
March 31. 2024

4,53,532.21
30,651.40

4,84,183.61

(3,s70.6s)

4,80,612.96

B. Security wise Details

At Amortised cost
.r Secured

b) Unsecured

Less: Impairment loss allowance

C. Region wise Details

At Amortised cost
a) Loans in India

- Others
b) Loans outside India

Less: Impairment loss allowance

D. Nature of Loan wise Details

At Amortised cost
a) Term loans
b) Pass through certificates

3,60,8 r 3.14

|,23,370.47
4,84,183.61

(3,570.6s)

4,80,612.96

4,84,183.61

4,84,183.61

(3,570.6s)

4,80|612.96

4,53,s32.2r
30,651.40

4,84,183.61

(3,s70.6s)

q
a

Less: Impairment loss allowance

Total (D) - N€t 9,12,463-98 4,80,612.96

Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to th€ financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the finrncirl strtemenk for thc yerr end€d Mrrch 31. 2025 (Cortlnucd)

(( unency i Indian Rupecs in lakhs)

5.
5.1

lrtns (Conttnued)

Andysis of chrnge! In the Emli c.rrylng rmout tnd correrpondhg lmp.lrment los..llowrnce ln r€lraion to loins

Prrtlcrhrs

As !t Mlrch 11.2025
Stige I St|ge 2 Strgc 3 Tot!l

'Ierm lolns
(Cross)

lmprlrmcnr loss
(Gross)

Imp!lrment loss
(cross) (Cross)

Brlance ls rt the beglnnlng ofthe yelr .1,n2,324.6n 2.91t6.5t 879.15 95.9{i 979.78 ,ll{t. | 6 4,84,t{t3.61 3,570.65

New Assets Originated or Purcha-sed, .el ofrepalmcnts 5,21,993.19 ,1,l4l.lJ3 5,21,993.79 4,l4l.lu
Assets derecosnis€d or reDaid (€xcludins write ofTs) (52,776.81) (336.62) (510.19) (50.71) (438.12) (2rJ6.85) (53,72s.r1) (674.20)

Transfer during lhe ycar

Transfer to Stage I 7.31 t4.19 (l r7.3 r) (r4.39)

Transfer lo Stage 2 (5,038.6r ) ( 112.46) 5,038.61 112.46
'Iransfer lo Stage : 11.102.70) (51r.34) (220.36) (27.01) 1,923.06 558.17

Changes in opening credil exposures (addilional disbursemenr ner of
(27.734.80) (902.14) (450.39) (0.r7) 19.7S 1,587.74 (28,r45.41) 6tts..l:l

Impact ofchanges in credil risk on account ofslaae movemenls (r3.45) 253.12 2.74r.83 2,98t.50

Amounts writtcfl ofT (t.792.11) (2,6s1.48) (1,792.1l) (2.6s4.18)

B.lmce !s !t the end ofthe yerr 9,1r,182.84 5,216.72 4.6t9.51 199.21 4,712.36 2,434.17 9,20,514.71 8,050.71

Ai rl Mlrch 31.2024
Strge I Strgc 2 Strg€ l

Term lorns
(Gross)

Imp!irment loss
(Gross)

Term lolns
(GrosO

Imp!irmcnt loss
(Gross)

Brlance !s !r th€ beglnning ofthe yesr l,l.1,l11..15 865.lll 3s2.84 43.39 29.87 15.50 1,34,496.r6 92.1.70

New Assets Originared or Purchased, net of repayments 3,12,267.88 2,894.58 3,32,267.88 2,{l9,l.Slt

Assers der$osnised or repaid (excludins write offs) (l r,925.52) (77.84) (34.87) (4.30) (l t,960.39) (ri2.l4)

Transfer during the y€ar

Transfer lo Stage I 11.69 9.6() (77.69\ (9.60)

Transfer to Slage 2 (701.45) (54.61) 703.45 54.61

Transfer lo Stage l (r.000.80) (333.31) (57.89) (7.0e) 1,058.68 340.41

Changes in openingcredit exposures (additional disbursement ner of
29,495.43 (108.69) (6.70) (1.66) 29-485.07 (-10n.69)

Impact ofchanges in credit risk on account ofslage movements (8.98) 18.95

Amounls written off (105.1r) (73.s8) ( r05.1l) (71.58)

Brhnce as Et thr cnd ofthc tcrr 4,82,324.68 2,986.51 879.15 95.98 979.?8 4li{r.16 .r,8.r,r81.6r 3,570.65

)\\t
s.

o
t

205.80 2l5.7li



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

Particulars

6. InY€stments

Investments Carried at fair yalue through profit and loss

a) G-Securities
b) Treasury bitls

Of the Above
a) lnvestment in India
b) Investments outside India

As at
March 31, 2025

9,948.02
12,340.15

As at
March 31, 2024

____--_22,4-E_

22,288.17

Total 22-288-17

7. Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

a) Security deposits

b) Excessive Interest Spread (EIS) Receivable
c) Others

8A Current tax assets (net)
a) Advance Income Taxes (net)

[Net ofprovision for income tax Rs.149.24 Lakls (As at March 31, 2024 - Rs.

149.24 l,akhs)l

8B D€ferred tax assets (net)

a) Deferred tax assets

Total

For yearly movement in balances ofdeferred tax assets/( liabilities) refer Note no. - 28

452.24
I,632.47

7 .17

397 .56

490.',lI
0.21

rotal _________2{2!.8!_

, ro,) 1) 9',73.21

2,192.32 973.21

832.80

832.80

Total

888.48

Total

ffiro\ /.:\o\_-,/s,
\/



Godrei Fl.rrce Limited
Nordrolh.nnrncl.lsl.r.m.nl3lorlh.v.rr.d.dMlmt31,2025lco lnu.d)

9. ProD.rh. Plrrtrd E{ulpmenl,Olh.r lnl.qlbLA$.k rnd Rllt ofus.!sr.l3

(CDmcr: lndian Ru!6 ih lakl-;)

(B) ic) (r)

A- Clu.trryL3 .roull

B.L!c. .1 ADiI 0l, 20rJ

Di.p6alAdj6t q,E

69.1!

310.47

4t.8?

15225 198.00

489.77

656 87

61t].6

(40.?5)

l.8ll.5t

(588.58)

t3I.a5

(s88.s8)

1.653 23

B.L.c. .t Mr(h 31,,(D,1

t2 t.l5

I,146.59

407.02

(18.62)

,.199.r4

561.0r

(r&62)

2.878,1.r

629.46

(158.70)

2178.t4

6r9.46

(15&70)

3.955.6?

2.124 2r 2,12,1,21

Brhm.rtMrr.h1l.1015

Rklt{lur. r$etsr

Rl8ht ol ose.$ets Totd

& accd.r.r.d Do..bdo. /.nddt rlo.

B.be. .l Aldl 0r, ,0r3

D.prEiariod / An6lisalio aFuc
DnF6arAdjutnats

4.06

84l4 18.:t7

0.0,

11.11

r0.46

8.50

o2.?2)

42.t0

at0.7t

tt2.12l

448.61

(290.s9)

Lro.5l

arhnce .r M.rch 31. 2024

Dcprialion / Amdisdion .rpos.

88.10

11429 40.70

ll.79

18.84

6.ra ll9.5r

393.2?

(10.10)

1rr.13

127.32

(69.20) (69.20)

Brlrn e.t March 31,2025 177.4a

C. N.l c...yhs .ooo.t (A-B)

turl M.nh ll. roL

A, .r MrRt il.202l

rRelir mre 35 lor d.r.ll.d dlrclo6uE Ellr.d b Lffi

5tE.0r l5a.ll t61,6' t0.55

807.0{

812.s!

t,7t9.t5

t,682.8t

,.15601

1.96&aS

2,ta6.ot l7rr.9

Amounlln l rrglbh under Dndopne lor. perlod oI

Prcj..i lqrD@' y scF d.d

Pbid hMilv sa*nd.d

1'',

9&46

rre m prcj.ft rhos. .ompl.rl.n ,r. or.rdu. or h$ .r.edrd rk .on .dnDmrl ro lis orlgln.l plrr

61.14

217.13

928.08

!0 
'11

"1.. I

@



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

10. Oth€r non finrnciil asr€ts

Uns€cured, considered good

a) Balances wilh statutory authorities

b) Advances to vendors

c) Prepaid expenses

d) Advances to employees

11. D€rivative financialinstruments

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

203.27

t25.82
660.22

4.18

99{.09

F.ir vxlue liabilitier
a) Derivative fnancial instumenls

rotar _!:l!941_

128.61

Tolal 128.61

Prrtic ars

As 3t March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

Notional amounts Notional amounts

Part I
(i) Currency derivativesl

Currency swaps

Subtotal (i)
(ii) Interest rate derivativ€s:

Forward rate agreemetrts and IDtercst mte swaps

subrotal (ii)
Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i) + (ii)

Prrt Il
Included in above (Part I) are derivatives held for
(i) Fair valuc hedging :

Cunency derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

subtotal (i)

(ii) Cashflow hedgitrg :

Cunency derivatives
hterest mte derivatives

Subtotal (ii)

(iii) Undesignsted Derivatives Currency S*eps :

UndesigMted Derivatives Curency Swaps

Sublotal (iii)

1,26,509.75 64.18

t,26,509.75

20,925.75

64.18

64.43

20,92s.7s 64.43

1,4?,435.50 r28.61

1,26,509.75

20.925.75
64.18

64.43

t,47,435.50 128.61

Total Derivative Financial lnstruments (i) + (ii) + (iii) 1,47,435.50 r28.61

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes- Derivatives held for risk management purposes include hedges that either meet tlrc hedge accounting

requirements or hedges lhat are economic hedges. The table above shows the fair values ofderivative financial instnrments rccorded as assets or liabilities together with

their rctional amoullts. The notional amounts indicate the value oftraDsactions outstandiry at the year end and are not indicative ofeither the market risk or credit risk.

t
t
G
C)

*

'7 5.31

414.02

629.69

11.36

lFair \aruc,sserv

lLiabilitie6

lFair ralue asrctr/

lliuriri,i*.

MUtvlBA,t
)(



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the Iinancial statements for the year endcd March 31, 2025 (Continued)

Particulars

12.
l2.t

Payables

Trade payables * #

a) total outstanding dues ofmiffo enterprises and small enterprises

b) total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and
small enGrprises

l2.l.l Trrde Payat l€ Ag€ing

As at March 31.2025

i) MSME
ii) Others
iii) Disputed dues-MSME
iv) Disputed dues-Others

As at March 31,2024

i} MSME
ii) Others

iii) Disputed dues-MSME
iv) Disputeddues-Others

Totd

Particulan

Tmde payables as per above ageing

Add: Utrbifled dues

# Refer note33: Duesto Micro, Small Enteryrises

Mrrch 31,2025 March 31, 2024

22.42

4,417.486.557.74

Totrl 6,557.74 1,1:t9.90

Less lhan I year l-2 years

183.14

2-3 years More than 3 years

22.42

446.98

469-40

March 31.202s Msrch 31, 2024

183.14

6,374.60
469.40

3,970.s0

oc
O ;

Totil 183.14

rorrl _____________.!ii!514_ ___________lE2q_

t lu\lBAl



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial stat€ments for the year ended March 31,202S (Continued)

Particulars

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at
luarch 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

13 Debt securities
13.1 At amortised cost

A. Secured (Refer Note 13.3)
a) Non convertible debentures (listed, fully paid and privately placed)

(A)
1,50,060.44 50,532.45
1,50,060.44 50,532.45

62,727.67
(B)

Total

1,03,743.50 62,727 .67

2,53,E03.94 1,13,zffi:L

13.2 Of the Above
i) Debt securities in tndia
ii) Debt securities outside India

2,53,803.94 t,t3,260.t2

Total 2,53,803.94 1,13,260.12

13.3 Terms of repayment of Secured Non convertible debentures As at March 31, 2025

Original maturity (In no. of days)

Issued at par and redeemable at par
365 days to 3 years

Interest accrued and impact ofEIR
Total

Original maturity (In no. of days)

Issued at discount and redeemable at par
365 days to 3 years

Interest accrued and impact of EIR
Total

Due within I
year Due 1 to 3 Y€ars More than 3 years Total

2,71I .98

1,35,000.00
(178.11)

1,35,000.00
2,533.8',7

2,711.9E 1,34,82t.E9 1,37,533.E7

Due within I
year

34.32

Due I to 3 Years More than 3 vears Total

12,500.00
(7.7s)

31.32 12,492.25 12,526.57

r'
1,': , r,

) --i

B. Unsecured (Refer Note 13.4)

a) Commercial Papers 1,03,743.50

r2,500.00
26.57

,z?n::

6tq-
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the Iinancial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

Scrip-Wise Details

Face Value
20,000.00

Types of Charge
Pari-pasu

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

ROI Amount
20.232.808.t7yo

Name
8.l7oZ Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
NCD Series A FY 22-23 Date Of
Matnnty 3010412026

8.75% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
NCD Series A FY 23-24 Date Of Maturitv
t8/01/202'7
8.02% Secured Rated Lisled Redeemable
NCD Series B FY 23-24 Date Of Maturity
t5/03/2027
8.60% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
NCD Series Cl FY 24-25 Date Of
Matity 25/ll/2027
8.60% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable

NCD Series C2 FY 24-25 Date Of
I^,.aturl^ty 25/09/2026
8.18% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable

NCD Series C3 FY 24-25 Date Of
Manrriq 30/t2/2026
8.35% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable

NCD Series C4 FY 24-25 Dale Of
Matunry 20/03/2028
8.35% Secued Rated Listed Redeemable

NCD Series C4 FY 24-25 Date Of
MaaJfiq 20/03/2028 (Further Issue I )

20,000.00 Pari-pasu

10,000.00 Pari-pasu

25,000.00 Pari-pasu

20,000.00 Pari-pasu

20,000.00 Pari-pasu

20,000.00 Pari-pasu

12,500.00 Pari-pasu

8.',75%

8.02%

8.60%

8.60%

8.18%

8.35%

20.350.00

10,037.35

25.748.08

20,876.49

20,412.36

20,054.90

t2,534.32

1,47,500.00 1,50,060.44

Note: The secured non-convertible debentures issued by the company are fully secured by way ofpari-passu charge in favour of
debenture trustee on the Standard Assets/re€eivables, investsnents and cash & cash equivalents to the extent required to maintain

Asset Cover as per debenture trust deed of debenh[e outstanding except those receivables exclusively charged against which

refinance is availed or will be availed from goverrunent bodies.Futher the Company has at all times, for the non-convertible

debentures issued, maintained asset cover as stated in the respectiv€ information memorandum which is sulficient to discharge the

principal amount, interest accrued thereon and such other sums as mentioned therein.

8.3s%

Less: EIR and Discount on Issue Impact
Total

( 185.86)

$(



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

Terms of repayment of Secured Non convertible debentures As at March 31, 2024

Original maturity (In no. of days)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Due I to 3 Years More than 3 years Total
Due within I

year
Issued at par and redeemable at par
365 days to 3 years

lnterest accrued and impact ofEIR
Total

Scrip-Wise Details

Name
8.17% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable

NCD Series A FY 22-23 Date Of
Matjurity 30/04/2026
8.75olo Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
NCD Series A FY 23-24 Date Of Maturity
t8/01t202'l
8.60% Secured Rated Listed Redeemable

NCD Series B FY 23-24 Date Of Maturity
t5/03/2027
Less: EIR Impsct
Total

630.50

50,000.00
(e8.05)

50,000.00

532.45
630.s0 49,901.95 50,532.,15

Face Value
20,000.00

Types of Charge
Pari-pasu

ROI Amount
20,236.628.1'70/o

20,000.00 Pari-pasu 8.75% 20,353.83

10,000.00 Pari-pasu 8.60% 10,040.05

50.000.00 50,532.45

Note :The secured non-convertible debentures issued by the company are fully secured by way of pari-passu charge in favour of
debenture lrustee on the Standard Assets/receivables, investments and cash & cash equivalents to t.he extent required to maintain

Asset Cover as per debenture trust deed of debenture outstanding €xcept those receivables exclusively charged against which

refinance is availed or will be availed &om government bodies.Further the Company has at all times, for the non-convertible

debentures issued, maintained asset cover as stated in the respective information memorandum which is suflicient to discharge the

principal amount, interest accrued thereon arld such other sums as mentioned t}lerein.

o<)
st

(98.0s)

&
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the firancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

13.4 Terms of repayment of Cornmercial paper As at March 31, 2025

(Currency : lndian Rupees in lakhs)

Due I to 3 Years More than 3 years Total

1,02,833.13
910.37

Due within 1

year
Issued at discount and redeemable at par
upto 365 days

Discount accrued
Total

Original maturity (In no. of days)

Issued at discount snd redeemable at par
upto 365 days

Discount accrued
Total

1,02,833.13

910.3'7
1,03,743.50

Terms of repayment of Commercial paper As at March 31, 2024

1,03,743.50

Due within I
year Due I to 3 Years More than 3 years Total

62,196.87

530.81

62,196.87
530.81

N-otel

Iflterest rate ranges fr om7 .52Yo p.a. to 8.09 % p.a. as at 3l March 2025. (Interest rate ranges from 7.28% p a' to 8 70 o/o p a' as at

3l March 2024.)

Face value commercial paper is 1,07,500 lakhs as at 3 t March 2025. (Face value commercial paper is 65,000 lakhs as at 3l

March2024.)

\

s
(:
ao

*

Original maturitv (ln no. of days)

&

62,727.67 62,727.67

l<
lto



Godrej Finmce Limiled
l'{otes ro the fidn id srlr.n.nh for rhc rerr..d.d nhrch 3l,2025 (Continued)

(Cu@cy . I.dio Rup.6 in IaIh,

P..ticuLd

14 Bo@*tng! (Olh.r rhon d.br !(uile)

l4.l Al rDordr.d .ost
Seurcd r, (R.Lr NoG r43)

a) TmlMsimbmtr
b) t m Epayablc on d@&d nom banks

5,07,045 9:

7_00151

2,16,:52.95

:0,182.02

5,1.1,0.17.4,1 2.56,434.97

It,2

ii) Borowings ou6ide India

256.43r.97

'Not€r l,Ds iokm non bmks m seuftd by 6sl pdi p6su chdge on nddad r€eivabls oftne conpmy, both pEsenr md tutm excludios lbose B€ivrhl* wnich e/will b.
excluively .hdged lo govmmenl bodi6 ud fr61 pui'pssu charse od cuft.i ss.ts including c6h dd 6b equivalnt ofde cohp&y p@nt dd tur@,ro the exr6t .equned b
mak€ y shon fall in stipulat€d secuirty covd

' T1,. q,urroly .t -vrtr*-ts ofcuE€.i sseB 6led by rbe Compey vith lhe bdts re in ageD€ol wilh lh€ b@k of eounts

l4J R.E ym.,l l.m! ol Borowir$ (OtI.r rlBn d.br seuiii6)

T.ms oa rcp.ynent of Boro{lns, (Otber dEtr drbi seuridB) Ar rl M.nh 3r. 2025

dslDl mrhrtt! ol rocn (No.

Inl6l a(med ad inp&l of
EIR

10,000.00
84:9314

I 4,1I6.10

7,000.00I

7,500.00
1,63,635.62

2 8,13:.19

l
l

55,529.91
51,307.59

89 1,12,443 83

8,731.r0

r7.500.00
3,60,3?259

l!,08r l9

?,000.00

55J29.91

1,155.9?

TOTAI 5.1t.t47.45

Lr6r ar6 @C. noo 7. l8o/. p.. to 9.I 0% p.a

T€mr of rp.ru€ ofBom*ing. (O$..ih.nd€btseuit 6)Ar M!nn3t,20,l

Orisiml m.tuity oflo.n (No.

Intd6t &tued dd iop.ct of
EIR

21.160.00

44,869.10

5l^595.01

69 89.655 26 ll 48,s12.ll

21.160.00

.14.869.30

1,38.t87.37

5l_595.0-1

623.27

TOTAL

lnl6r 616 mE 606 7.400/0 D.& to 9.90% p..

o:

o3a
*

3
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the tiinancial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

Particulars

15. Other financial liabilities

i) Book overdraft
ii) Payable to Employees

iii) Advances received from customers

iv) Other Financial Liabilities

Total

16. Provisions

a) Provision for Employee Benehts
i) Gratuity (Refer note.39)
ii) Compensated absences (Refer note.39)

Total

17. Other non-financial liabilities

i) Statutory dues payable

Total

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

As at

March 31, 2025

As at

March 31,2024

tl,066.02
3,106.28

t7 .67

970.81

13,247.16

1,623.66

t7 .53

492.13

15.160.78 15,380.48

3s 8.86
207 .26

189.40

63.13

252.53

538.50 391.92

538.50 391.92

aro

*

t

o

566.r2
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the linrncial stttcmcnts for the ye.r ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

lE. Equity shrre capital

r) Shrre capitf,l authorised, issu€d, subscrlbed tnd prid up :

(Cuncncy : lndian Rupccs in lakhs)

Prrticulars
As rt Mrrch 31, 2025

No. ofshrrer Amount

As rt Msrch 31. 2024

No. ofsharcs Amount

Authorired Shrrc cepital:

Equity shares of Rs.l0/- each

Totrl

Issued, Subscribed rnd fully paid up:

Equity Shares ofRs. l0 each

Totrl

b) Reconciliations ofthe number ofshrres snd equity share capitel I

2,00,00,00,000 2.00.000.00 2.00.00.00,000 2.00,000.00

2,00,00,00,000 2,00,000.00 2.00.00.00.000 2,00.000.00

l,15,03,63,373 I,r 5,036.31 9t,81.86,630 91.818.66

t. t5.01.63.-173 1,15,036.1-1 91.{r t.It6.630 91.818.66

As at M.rch 31.2025

No. ofshares Amount

As rt Mrrch 31, 2024

No. ofsharcs Amount

Equity Shsres

Balance at the beginning ofyear

Add: SharEs issued during year

Balancc st the cnd of (hc ycar

91,81,86,630

23,2t .16,143

91.81E.66

23,217.67

55 .4',7 .03 .291

36.34.81,339

55,470.33

16.348.33

1.15.03.63.371 l,l5,0l6.ll 9 t.{i t.86.630 9l.ElE.66

Particulars

{\=v



Godrej Fiuance Limited
Noi€s to ahe finrncirl strtcmelts fo. the year erded Mrrch 31, 2025 (Contlnued)

(Currency : lndian Rupees in lakhs)

18. Equity shf,re capitrl

c) Detsils ofShrres held by Holding Entity, Ultimrte holding Entity, lheir sobsidiaries snd associates :

Name of thc Shareholder
As rt Mrrch 31, 2025

No. ofshrres 7o Holdinq
As at Msrch 31,2024

No. ofshare$ 7o Holding

(i) Equity shsres held by holding entityi
codrci Capital Limited (including 1 share

€ach held by its nominees)

d) Detrils ofShsreholder holding more thin 59/. shsres as rt the cnd ofthe year in the comprny :

I,t5,03,63,373 100.00% 9l,81.86,630 100.00%

Nime ofShrreholders
As st March 31. 2025

No. ofsheres 70 Holdins
As at Msrch 31,2024

No, ofshares 7o Holdinq

Equitv Shrres ofRs. l0 erch Iullv paid uo
Godrcj Capital Limited (including I share

each held by its nomine€s)

e) Delailsof Shareholdingof Promolers :

1. t5,03,63,373 100.00% 91.81.86,630 100.00%

Chrnge durirg the
period

As at Mrrch 31,2025

No. oflhares 9/o Holding

As at Msrch 31, 2024

No. ofshsr€s 7. Holding

codrej Capital Limited (including I share

each held by its nominees)

1,r5.03,63,373 r00.00% 9t,81.86.630 100.00%

Name of Promoter

7:\
E
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Godr€j Fin&trce Limited
Notes to the financhl strtements for the yerr ended Mrrch 31, 2025 (Contlnued)

(Currency : Indian Rupe€s in lakhs)

It. Equity shrre crpitrl

f) Termrrights rttached to Equity Shrres

Cornpany afler distribution of all prefer€ntial amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

g) There are no equity shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitmmts for the sale ofshares / disinveslment.

bought back any of its equity shares.

i) There are no calls unpaid on any €quity shares, and fortaited sharcs.

,{
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Godrej Fi[ance Limited
Notes to the finlncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

19. Othcr equity

a) Securities premium

b) Special rcserve u/s 45lC ofRBl act, 1934

c) Retained E{trings
d) Cash flow hedge rcserve

e) Impairment r€serve

(Curency : Ldian Rupees in lakhs)

A. rt As.t
Merch 31,2025 Mrrch 31, 2024

96,239.49
2,446.46

(4,000.54)
(r,537.75)

45, r64.35
402.37

\t2,t46.t2\

Totsl

A. Nrture snd purpose of rcs€nes

s. Securities premium

93.147.66 33,420.60

Securities premium repr€sents the amount ofpremium received by the Company on the issuance ofshares. The
utilisation ofthe Securities premium is in accordance with the provisions ofthe Companies Act,20l3.

b. Sp€cial reserve u/s 45IC ofRBI act,1934
Sp€cial rcserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, I 934 (th€ RBI Act).
Appropriation from this rcserve fimd is permitted only for the purposes sp€cified by RBl.

c. Retrined Ermings
Retained eamings comprises ofthe CompaDy's mdistsibuted eamings after laxes.

d. Crsh flow hedge reserv€

It r€prcs€nts the cumulative gainy(losses) arisirlg on rcvaluation ofthe derivative instruirnls
designaled as cash flow hedges tbrough OCL

e. Impdrm€nt rcs€lva
Ihpairment reserve is created when impairmefl alowance lmder lnd AS 109 is lower lhan lhe provisioning

required (including slandard asset provisioning) lmder pnrdential norns on Income Recognition, Asset

Classification and Provisioniry (IRACP), as directed by RBI vide circular DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.10612019- 20 dated l3th March, 2020.

B. Movcmcnt in Other equity

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

r) Se.urities premium
Balance as at beginning ofthe year

Add : Premium Received on issue ofshares
kss : ShatE issue expenses

Bslance rs at.nd ofth€ yerr

b) Spccid reservc u/s a5IC of RBI rct, 1934

Balaflce as at beginning ofthe year

Add : Transfer from rebined eamings
Bslancc ss ri cnd ofthe yerr

c) Rel.ined Ermings
Balance as at beginning ofthe yeat

Add i Profit / (l!ss) for rhe )€ar
Add: Other comprehensive hcome/(loss) for the year

kss:Transfer to special reserve

Bshnc€ as rt €nd of th€ yetr

d) C.sh flow hedge reserv€
Balance as at beginning ofthe year

Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Bslsnc€ ss ot €nd oftheyesr

e) Imprirm€ni r€serve
Balalce as at begior ng ofthe )€ar
Add : Transfer from relained eamings
Bshl|cc rr rt €nd oftha yarr

45,t64.35
51,078.88

o!4
1,550.39

43,613.96

(a) 96.239.49 45.r64.35

402.37402.37

2.M4.09
2,446.46 102,37

(r2,146.12)
1022o.42

(10.75)
(2,044.09\

(9,158.87)
(2.920.s7\

(66.68)

(c) (.1,000.54)

(d) (r,sl7.7s)

(e)

(12,146.12)

(b)

0.537.75)

Totll (r+Fcrd+c) 93.141,6 33.420.60

7a 
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March .11, 2025 (Continued)

20. Interest lncome

a) On financial assas measured at amonised cost
i) Interest income on loans

ii) Interest income on investments / debt insmrments
iii) lnterest income on deposits

b) On financial assets measured at Fair value through pro6t and loss (FVTPL)
i) Interest income from investments

Total

21, Fee atrd Commission lncome

a) Fee income and other charges

b) Other commission income

Totrl

22. Net gain on fair value changes

On traditrg portfolio
lnvestments at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
a) Profit on liquid mutual funds
b) Profit on debt securities and other investments held for tlade (net)

Total

Fair value changes:
a) Realised

b) Unrealised

Tot!l

224. Net gritr oo derecogoitioo oflintncial instruments under amortised cost category

a) Net gain on dsrecognition offinancial insfuments undel amortised cost category

Totsl

23. Other ldcome
a) Interest income on security deposits
b) Gain on trase Modifications
c) Interest on irlcome tax refund
d) Profit on sale ofassets (net)

e) Service Charges

0 Miscellaneous income

For the
year ended

March 31,2025

|,297.00

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

For the
year ended

March 31,2024

83,141.99
83.30

310.3t

34,206.92

I14.25

25.36

_________--g,gt2il

3,684.99
6,450.65

3,1,3,16.53

I,t55.17
2.263.48

r0,r35.64 -l!418.65

826.03
109.54

76'1.39

l2.0rJ

935.57

794.71
(15.24\

830.58
104.99

935.57 779.47

t,420.58 473.88

1,j120.58 ,173.8E

20.27
5.9 r

92.8',7

12.50

t1.30
19.55

4.53
'730.'121,237.63

0.07

Total rJ56.75

*

7E4.60

Psrticulars

779.47

l\
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the linrncirl stlt€ments for th€ -ve!r ended Mrrch 31, 2025 (Continued)

Total

For the )e!.erd€d For the yctr ended

Mrrch 31,202s M.rch 31,2024
24. Fi[rrce costs

a) On Financial liabilities m€asurcd ai amonisd cosl

i) Inleresl on bonowings (other lhan debl s€curilies)
ii) Inleresl on debt se.urilies
iii) Inleresl exp€nsc on leases

iv) othcr Bor.owing costs

29,1 .70
14,087.8t

170.40

131.44

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

12,994.93

4,931.14

t44.05
r40.01

1J.186.35 18,216.13

25. lmprirmetrtoffitrrnci!l instrumerts
a) On Financialassets measured at amonised cosl

i) Loans (Refer nole:s)
b) Write otr(Refer nole: 5)

4,480.08

3.',l92.t1

2,645.95

t05.26

Toral

Totrl

26. Employee Benellts f,rp.dse.
a) Salaries. botrus and allowances (Ner)'
b) Contribution to providenl fund and olher fuDds

c) Gratuity expenses (Refer note: 39)

d) Sharc based payments (Refer note: 38)

e) Stallwelfareexpenses

i8,393.98
592.17

111.55

121_34

1,107.15

|,9t6.52
409.49

56.93
81.60

499.80

Totil

Salaries, bonus and allowances is n€t ofsalary cost recoveredheimbursed frornTto related parties. Refer relaled pany hnsaction Note- 37

Salaries, borus and allowances net ofsalary cosl capitalised to Intangible Assets Under Dev€lopment during the current year Rs.678.68

Ialhs. (Previous Year: Nil).

27. Othcr exp€nscs

a) Advenisement and Sales Promotion expenses
b) Auditor's fees and expenses (Ref€r note b€low)
c) Commission and Brokerage

d) TmvelliDsandConveyance
e) Computer & lT Exp€ns€s

t Sitting f€es and commission lo Direclors
g) CommunicalionExpens.s
h) Electricity Expenses
i) Hous€ke€ping Expenses
j) l.€gal and Professional Fees

k) Iran sourcing cost

I) Membqship and Subscription F€ts
m) Ofnce expenses

n) Printing and stationery
o) Rales, dulies and taxes
p) Recruitment Expenses
q) Rent expenses

r) Repair and Mainlcnance- Ohers
s) Loss on sale ofassets (Neo
r) Lans related othe, charges
u) Miscellaneous Expenses

1,01 t.l0
20.60

38.80
'776.32

t,228.41

52.32
91.16

112_86

419.34

3,061.80
5,998.45

362.52

186.50
102.97

27.85

224.15
224.t7
116.94

8.32

1,139.93
18.69

26.98

660.29
I,rIl.r3

43.69

45.75
70.47

167.15

t,143.30
2,070.81

38.1I
73.16
48.97

23.16
r38.4r
12t.98
122.t3

1.04

35.5235.17

27.1 Auditon' fe€s rod cxp€trses
Paynenls lo auditor
a) Audit f€€s

b) Ceriificalion fees

t9.62
0.98

t7 _44

L25

,8.69

cc
O

'Iotal 20.60

o.

t\

______________ga2 ____________-2t3)L

t4-220-95 7-100.73

_____________n;29.p -_______-122!Si!_

Ira



Godrej Financ€ Limit€d
Notes to ahe finitrcial ststements for the yerr ended ]ltarch jl, 2025 (Co tirued)

28_

(( urenc}: lndian RuEes in hrhsJ

I.x dp.!s. atrd relsterl b.l,nc6

A. Amoonts reosnir.d in starem€ of prcfir .od toss

paniot B

Ch ees i. esdnaled .elar€d to prior yeas
Tot l cuftDt trx exp€nk (A)

Defernd hcone trx lhbluty / (a$€t), trer
O.ieination dd reresal oftempoBry diflqences
D.f€rEd t x erpens (B)

Deferred Tar Assers (DTA)
Business loss md oihs

Defen d T.r LLbilid6 (DTL)
wDv oltargible od iniangible 6sts ed ofi6
Iorll DTL

Totd rd €xp€ns€ for the rear (A) + (B)

B. Amourts recosnised in olhe. conpftheNiy€ income

C. R6onc i.non of etretive tax Ete

D. Deferred tlx b.bn.eg

(791.61)
(791.61)

(791.6')

2.885.66

(6,050.3r)

i79t 5t)

M...t 31,2025

t,6:7.91 :.t39.99
3.627.91 1,7E9,42

E32.E0

913L

MsrcL3l.2024
(a) Items $at will ml be Elasifi.d to prcfit dd loss

(i) hcome td relali.s to ilms that s iU nol be leldsified to pro6t dd loss

(t) Iim 0rat will b€ rclNified ro prort ed loss
(i) h6n6 ta, relatiq ro n@ lhat will be Blasifed to pro5l dd los

41.t9

41.t9

Prcfit{L6d before ter ac Der S!.temtrt of Drofit .nd k s
appt .ble dolaiic tax nre
In.me lax expd* calculred al applisble h@me taa 81€

Eff€.t of€xpos€yprcvisims nor dedudible in detmining ta\abl.

M.rb3rr025

9,424.41

25.l6AYo

2,373.04

M.rcb 3rr0z

(2,920.51)

25_168%

DefaEd td asset on uabsorbed deF&iation, businss los$s d others d€ nor deared on etrwative bais but ih€stacied to 1n. def@ed td liabilily m t gible md
inldrgible dfts for de litucial Ye& 2021-24.Ior FiDdcial Yd 2024-25, bastd on plobability of tulue la\able profits, Defered ld 6st has b€€n reoglised.

N.t DTA r.ognlsed ln Bd.nc. sher

Curmt llx as!! (r.O
Ad@ce In6rc T4es (net)

lNet of prdisid for incme ia\ Rs.l49-24 L.$s (As at Meh 31. 2024 -tu,149,24 kkn!)l

Mrfth 31.2025

973.2t

-

\r

-_a 
\

2,192.32

*

41.19

(2.795.14) (1.769.42)

rr-795.141 | l-?89-:lrl



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

29. Earning per Share

Basic and Diluted earning per share
a) Profit(Loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for Basic EPS (Numerator)
b) Weighted average no. of equiry shares outstanding during the y€ar for Basic EPS (Denominator)
c) Nominal value of equity shares (Rs. per share)

d) Basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) (Rs. per share)

B. Capital commitmeDts

Particulars

i) Estimated amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
ii) Undisbursed commitments in respect ofthe loan agreqn€nts

(Curency : Indian Rupe€s in lal$s)

For the For the
year ended year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

30. Commitments and contingencies

A. Contingentliabilities
The contingent liabilities ofDisputed Income Tar which are pending against the company as at 31st March,2025 are Rs. I5.02 Lakhs (As at 3lst
March,2024: Rs. 12.21 Lakts).

10,220.42
1,05,87,49,583

10.00

0.91

\2,920.57)
7 I ,31 ,06,824

10.00
(0.41)

As at
March 31,2025

1,385.14

I,20,525.53

As at
March 31,2024

897.34

60,230.31

31. lnvestor Education and Protection Fund
There arc no amounts due and outstanding to be qedited to lnvestor Education and Protection Fund As at March 3l , 2025 (As at 3 1 st March, 2024:
Nil).

32, Unhedged foreign currency exposures
The Company has unhedged foreign cunency exposure ofRs. Nil as at March 31, 2025 (As at 31st March, 2024: Nil).

33. Dues to Micro, Small Enterprise$

During the year micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) have

been identified by the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company. The disclosures pursuant to MSMED Act based on the

books of account arc as under:

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end ofthe accounting year;

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the md ofthe accounting year;

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

As at
March 31,2024

22.42

iv) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paym€nt (which has besn
paid but b€yond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the inte.est specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006;

v) The amount ofinter€st accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ofaccounting year;

vi) The arnou.t of further interest due and payable wen in the succeeding year, until such date when the

interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose ofdisallowance as a

deductible expenditurc under section 23.

Disclosure of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise under Trade Payables is based on the infomation available with the Company regarding

the status of the suppliers as defined under the Mioo, Small and Medium Entqprises Development Ac! 2006. There is no undisputed amount overdue

during the year ended and as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 to Micro, Small and Medium Enterpdses on accouflt ofprincipal or interest.

34. Segment Reporting
The Company is angaged primarily in the business of financing in India. Accordingly, there arc no separate reportable segnents as per Ind-AS 108

As at
March 31, 2025

i)
iD
ii,

dealing with Operating Segment. m
\z\ ' );
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

35. Leases

Particulars

Opetritrg Right of use Asset
Add: Addition for new leases

Less: Reduction for temination / closure
Less: Depreciation charge for the year (net ofdeduction)

Closing Right of use Asset

(ii) Movement in Lease liabilities

Particulars

Openitrg lease liabilities
Add: Addition for new Ieases

Add: Interest on lease liabilities
Less: Reduction for termination / closurc
Less: Lease pa),rnents

Closing lease liabilities

(iii) Amount recognised in Statement of ProIit and Loss

Particulars

(a) Depreciation charge ofright-of-use assets (Net ofdeduction)
(b) lnterest on lease liabilities
(c) Expense relating to short-tem leases

Total

(iv) The totsl cash outflow for leases for the year:

Particulars

The total cash outflow ofleases

(v) Maturity rnalysis (undiscoutrted amoutrts)

P.rticul.rs

Less than one year

One to five years

More than five years

Total undiscoutrted lease liabilities

Lease liabilities included in the statement offinancial position
Current
Non-Curent
Weighted averuge effective interest rate %

(Currency : lndian Rupees in Iakhs)

As atAs at

March 31, 2025

2,156.01

629.46
(r 58.70)
(658.32)

March 31,2024

I,362.92
1,655.17
(588.s8)
(2',13.s0)

1,968.45 ______________2Ji

As atAs at

March 31, 2025

2,203.20
608.33
170.40
(92.0',7)

(812.1',7)

March 31, 2024

I,406.14
I,584.24

144.05
(3 r5.30)
(615.93)

For the
year ended

March 31,2025
658.32
t'I0.40
224.',l't

For the
year ended

March 31, 2024
273.50
144.O5

121.98

1,053.49 539.53

For the
year ended

M.rch 31, 2025

For the
year ended

March 31,2024

812.17 615.93

As at
March 31, 2025

813.08
t,544.87

As at
March 31,2024

1,600.72
951.51

______________24il

6',76.32

|,401.37
6.5OY. to 8 .5Oo/"

543.18
1,660.o2

6.5OYo to 8.50Y.

2,552.23

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:
(D Right of use Asset

_______________?p ___________2&20
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to th€ linancirl stalements for ihe year ended March 31. 2025 (Conrtnu€d)

lE.

lE.0!

36.02 Mov€ments in the nomb€r of.hr.e optioDs outst.rdirs uDd€r the ESOP Sched€ 2021 k s€t out below:

As ,l i\t.rch 31,2025

Sh.re brsed prym.nt rrrrngemeDt (Employe Stock OptioD Phn)

Tne Godrej Capital Employee Slock Option Sch.me 202 I f ESOP Scheme 202 I ") of the pareni company w6 approved and adopted by its memben ar m Exrraordinary cenemt Meetins
held on January 5, 202 1 and Employee Sbck Oprion Scheme 2022 ( ESOP Scheme 2022") of the parent company was apprcved and adopted by its membeE at an Anuual GeneBl Meetins

company or any Subsidiary of lhe such parcnl Company. on dte date ofcrant ofoplioDs. The Compensation Commine€ of the parenl company would decid€ th€ entirl.menr ofeach

Comp€nsation Commne€. The Options Smnlcd would vest afier twenty one months but nol laler than fifty seven months fiom the date ofcra ofoptions or as maybe decided by
Compensation commine€. Exercis. period is 7 (seven) yes from lhe dal. of Vesting of Oplions or such olher period as may be decided by lhc CompeMtion Commine.. wilhin which the
Emplore should exeris€ his risht lo apply for 

'"arfer 
of Equity Shares of lhe Compay ro him pursuant lo fe Oprion Vested in him in accordance with lhe ESOP Scheme 2021 and ESOP

straight line basis.

(Currency : Indian Rupes in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024

Oprioirs outstandinS ar rhe begirming ofthe y€ar

Grant€d

Exercis€d

Forfeited/Cancelled

t4s€d,Gxpir€d

1.926 t0 00

(295)

10.00

10.00

(30)

(3r2)

10.00

l0 00

3t.03 Movement! in the nunb€r ofshrre optioN outslrodlng ooder lhe ESOP Sch€me 2022 lt let out b€low:

As rt Mrrct 31,2025

r,439
88

97,011.9r
1,44,154.00

Opdons ouislanding ai the end ofthe year' 158.1 t0.00

Opdons exercisable al the e.d ofthe yeal peno( 1,179

926

979

(231)

10.00

89.242.31

As at Mrrch 31. 202:l

750
920

80,496.49
1,08.556.00

Opiions outsranding ar rhe begiming ofthe y€ar

Gnnl€d

Ex.rEised

Forfeit€d/Gnc€U€d
Irps.d,E\pired

Options oublandirg al the end of the ye{t

Options exercisable at the .nd of lhe )t{, p€rio(

3t.(X v.,rlng period

V{.rtDg p€riod

(28) 92.521_99

1,,199 99.E82..19 1,439 97.031.9r

8

As rt Mlrth 31.2025 As et Ntrrch 31.2024
No. of Oplions

I lo 3 years

r,865
715
481

t,451

991
923

Total 3.0t3

w€ish€d avems. contra.tul life ofoptions rcmaining oulstanding al€nd ofvear is 9.43 )€ars.

3J65

t

I

'Opriofls oustandins al lhe end ofprevious yerr penains 0o employee tansferred during lhe year Fom Group Company.

",ut4A4l



3t.05 F.ir vrlo€ optiotrs

imnt are ,s followsl

c.rtD'rc sh'reprice Erercrseprrc' 

'lj:lT," :rffifi,lT ,f"*t:,",l, ,'"'ffi'ff :ffiT r[J,*:
drte) yietd

f,sop 202r Januarv 2q' 4.2q r0 5.7rco ro 6.6rqo ? yeh 3 y€ars 0.000o 0.9 ro r o

Esop 202r "or'#l' 4.ze i0 s.Trooroooreo 7 yea^ 3 years or;;,.* 0.00"" 0cror.6

Esop2orl Febunry I l' 4.2g t0 5.?lobro6.6r% 7yea 3yea* 4l4oo!o 0.00o/o 0.9101.6

ESOP202I l,{ay 10.2021 4.2s to 5.116/0 ro 6.6tyo 7 yea^ I ycars o,-:l;." 0.00% 0.9101.6

ESOP2O2I ttlllc22,2(,t 4.2s to s.1t% to 6.61o/. 7 yea,s 3 yea$ 42':l;to o.oo% 0.910l.6

Esop2022 t""rTl;'' s0,4e6.4s ao.4e6.4e 6.6syoto.t.34% 7y€m 3 yca," ,"r;y;: o.0{r/o ';::|ili
EsoP 2022 March 10.2023 80,4e6.4e 8o,496.4s 7.26%toi:3% 7 yea,s 3 y.,rs 'iil?;"' 0.000/" ']iii;lli
EsoP2022 Ju1y03,2023 1,08.556.00 1,08,556.00 6.eol"to6.e8% 7 ye{s I y€rrs ::::{:: 0.00"/. '1i1';1.'rf

Esop2022 S"lt"tht&' r,o8,sso.oo 1,08,5s6.00 ?.0?%ro7.o9% 7 yea,. 3 y€a$ l9'71"/'to 0.0090 '::iir::r.o
Esop2022 Januarvo8' 1.08,556.00 r,08,556.00 ?%io7.08% 7yea,s 3years :\ni. 00o./" 'fiiir:ij"
EsoP 2022 MarEh23,2024 r,08,556.00 1,08.556.@ 6.e27oro6.e4% 7 yea$ J years 'ill?": o.w. ';;:;r:lr"
asoP 2022 July re,2024 1.44.154.00 t,44,154.N 6.77% to 6.$r/o 7 )r,rs 3 yea,. tl:i?": 0.o0o/" '3ilir1ir'

F.sop2022 oc@ber422' r,44,154.00 t,44,ts4.oo 6ss%tn6:v/. 7yea.s 3yean tTll?": 0.0ff/o tili:;if

Esop2022 F"bffifll8' r,++,rs+.00 1,44,1i4.00 6.ss%to6.6to/o Tyean 3ye$s 'ii.ZiX: 0.00% ':::lr:;r"
Esop2022 F"b;gl8' r,r+,rs+.0o r,44,154.00 6.s3"/.1o6.60% Tyears 3y€ars '1:::';; 0.00% 'iili:if

on th. hislorical volatility of list€d companbl€ companies.

38.06 frpenss rRoqrised ir (atement ofprolil rnd loss

As at iuarch 31,2025 As st llrr(h 31.202:l
ESOP expenseysharE based paymenls

rccognised if, prc6l md loss
l2l.3,l 83.60

ffi
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39.

39.1

Godrej Finance Limited
Notes ro the linatrcial statements for the year ended March jl, 2025 (Continued)

(Cunency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Employ€€ brrcfits - Disclosure pursusnt to lnd AS l9 'f,mployee B€trefits,

Defin€d conrributiotr plans
Tbe Company nakes Providenl tund conlributions which are defined contrjbution plans for qualirying employees. Under the scheines, rhe Company is
required to conlribute a specified percenlage ofrhe pa)rcll costs ro fund the benefils

The Conpany has r€cognised the followins amounls in the statemenl ofprofir and loss rowards contriburion ro define.l contribulion ptans whicn are
included under contribution to provident and other tundsl

39,2

Year lhded Mrrch 31,
2025 2024

Provid€nt tund Sg2.l1 409.49

Defired B€n€nt Plsn
The Company has an obligation lowards g.atuiry, a non fiDded defined benefit plan covering eligible employ€es. Vesring for gmtuity occuD upon
complelion offive y€ars of seryice. Details ofth€ non tunded posl retirement benefil plans for ils employees are given below which is as certified by the

Gmtuiry Dsclosure Srarement as Per Indian AccouDtins Srandard 19 (tnd AS t9) as b€low.

a) Chatrses in Pres€Dt Vslue of Dcfined B€n€ftt Obligation

P.esent Valu€ of B.nefii Obligstioo st the [rd of the year

Year f,nd€d March 31,
2025 2024

189.40 83.34

97.99 50.92

D.56
4_\',]

(4.96)

6.00

8.61
(3.21)

(13.25)

12.25

9.53

50_1',7

(22.94)

46.53

35.9 7

(r5.84)

Chanse iD pl rssets:
Frir value of platr !s!ets, begioning of th€ year

Exp€.ted retum on Plan Assets

Contrib'rtions
B€nefits paid
Actuarial Gain (loss) on platr assels

Iair value of plan assets, end ofthe year

b) Amou recogniz€d in the balance she€1 consists ol
Pres€nl value of defi ned benefi t obligadon
Fair t"lue ofplan assets

Netlirbilitv

As at March 31,
202s

(358.86)

A! st Mrrc[ 31,
202/

( r 89.40)

Year Ended March 31,
2025 2021c) The amounts recognised in the Statement ofProfit and lrss arc as follows:

Service Cosl
Curent se ice cost

Past service cosl

Tot6l Senice co6t

Nel interest cost

lnlerest expense on DBO
I erest expens€ / (income) on plan assets

TotBl lrt€rest cost (i,

(ii,-(i+ii)

(iv)
(v):(iii+iv)

13s6

llls5

'71.95

6.00

56-92

66_6',1

91.99 50.92

(i) 97.99

13.56

50-92

6.00

Delin€d b€neflt cost lncluded ln St&tement of Prolit snd l,oss

Total remeasuremenl in oth€r comprehensive income (OCl)
Total D€fi.ed benefit cost included in Starement ofProfir and loss and OCI r83.50 123.59

Pres€Dt Vrhe of Benefit Obligation at the B€ginnitrs ofthe year
Current Serice Cosr

Iilerest Expense(Income)
Liability transferred in
Liability transfened out
Settlenent Cost (Credit)/Cost

Ben€fit Paid Dr€cdy by the Employer
Actuarial (Cains),4n,ses on obligarions - due ro e\p€rience
Actuarial (Gains),{.ss€s on obligations - due ro change in demographic assumprions
Actuarial (Gains)flrsses on obligations - due to change in financial assunptions
Experience (sainrrosses

___$!.q6 ____________.u9!L

(358.86) (189.40)

ffi
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Codrej Finance l-imitcd
\otes to the financill slatcmetris for thc tear ended llarch Jt,2025 (Conrinued)

d)

LI

The amounls recognised in rhe Balance Sheer are as foltows
Op.nltrC Ne. Lilbilit
Expenses Recognized in Slalement ofProfit or Irss
Expenses Recognized in OCI
Net tjability/(Asse0 Transfer ln
Nel (Uability)/Assel Transfer Out
(Benefil Paid Drecdy by the Enployer)
(Employels ConEibution)
Net Lhblllt]4Aiset) Recognized h tne Balam€ Sleet

83.34

56.92

66.66

8.61
(3.21)

122.94)

(Curency:lndian Rupees in lakhs)

As st \Iarch 31.

2025
As ,t M{rch 31,

2024

189.40

1l1.55
71_95

4.17
(4.96)

(r3.2s)

358.86 189.40

39. f,nployee benefits - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19if,nptoy€€ Benetits' (Continued)

g) Mdrrlty
Thc defin€d b€nefit obligations shall matue after year €nd as follows: As at Mrrch 31,

Psrlicol.rs 2075 2024
i) | st Following Year 38.80 17 .23

ii) 2nd Following Year 41.51 21.69
iii) lrd rollowins Y€ar 4s.19 28.13

iv) 4th Following Y€ar 55.91 29.64

v) 5rh Following Year 55.76 31.84

vi) Sumof Ye.rs6ro l0 168.50 90.08

vii) Sum ofYears I I and above 94-32 q-42

The wciShted averaSe duration ofthe defin€d benefit obligation is 6 y.3rs (prEviou! yerr - 5 yearc).

h) RIsk Erpo.urc
C,ntuity is a defined benefil plan and Company is exposed lo the FollowiDg Risksl

Interest mle risk A fall in the discount lale which is linked ro the Govemment Se.urity Rate will increas€ the present value ofthe liability rEquinng
hisher provision.

Salary Risk: The presem value ofthe defined b€nefit pian liability h calculated by reference 1o lh€ futwe salaries ofmembers. As such, an incr€ase in

the salary of fie memb€rs more than assumed l€r€l will increase the plan s liability.
Asset Uability Matching fusk: The plan fac€s the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to adage pay-out based on p6y as you go basis

fiom own funds.

Mortality dsk: Since rhe b€nefib under the plan is not palable for life time and payable till retirein€nt ag€ only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

l) Accumul.t€dConpedstatedAbcences
The Company pmvides for accumulated compensat€d absences as at th€ balance sheel dat€ on th€ basis ofan actuarial valuation. The Company

r€coSnizEd l?0.91 lakls (hevious yerr 63.2? labs) for Compeflsaled Abs€nces in th. Stat€meDt ofPmfil and Loss..

Impsct of Code od Sochl Secrrlty, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on social s€cudry, 2020 which may imlact the contributions by th€ Company towards Pmvident Fund and

Gratuity. The €ffective date ftom which the changes arE applicabl€ is y€t lo b€ notifi€d and $e rul€s for qMnrirying and financial impact ars yel to be

det€rmined. Thc Compary will conpl€te its e!"hation ard will give appropriale impact in lh€ financial saatements in the )€ar in which, the code

beom6 effective and the relaied rul€s 10 delermine lhe financial impacl arE notifi€d

N
lqt \ i

4z

39J

O

*

e) The prlnclprl rssumptiotrs used in d€terminlng g.atuity obllgstlons for the Comprny's Dtrns are shown betow

Wilh lhe objective ofpresenling lhe plan assets and plan liabiliries of the defined benefils plans and posr retiremmt medical benefils at lheir fair value
on lhe balancc she€1, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by r€fermce to market condirions ai the \,"tuation dale.

As s. Mcrch f,1,2025 As at March 31,2024
Ds.ount rate 6.54% 1.t6./.

Salary growih rale 8.00o/o 8.Or!/o

Employee .tEition rate 23.00t/. 25.U)n/o

Monality rate during anploynent lrdid AssrEd Liv6 Morrrlity 2012-14 Irdie AssuEd Liv6 Moflaliry (20 12- 14)

(U'be) Uftan

A!€rag. expected futurE s€rvice ofemployee 3 Y.a$ 3 Y€ers

f) lmp.cl oo d€fiaed b€mfit obligrfon - Sensitivity Atrrlysls M$ch31,2025 Mrrch3l,2oz
P.rtlculrr. Imr.!s. Decr€rse hcr€'le Dccres
i) Discount lare (l7o movemero (15.13) 16.47 11.39) 7.9
ii) Chans. in salary so\r,th rare (l% movemen, t6.08 (1s.06) 7.85 (7.40)
iii) Chanse in employee atEition rate (l% rnovernen0 (6.81) '1.06 (3.65) 3.76

It€ s€nsitiviry analysis have b€€n &termined based on rEasonably possible changes ofthe resp€clive assumptions occming at the end of the r€poning
period, while holding all olher assumptions constant.

The sensilivity analysis present€d above may not b€ rcpres€nhtive of the actual change in the berefil obligation as il is unlikely that the change in
assumplions would occur in isolation ofone anolher as some ofthe assumprions may b€ correlated.
Funhermore, in presenling the above s€nsitivily a&llsis, th€ pr€sent value of the b€nefit obligation has be€n calculated lsing the projected unir crcdir
method al the end ofthe reporting p€rio4 which is th€ sane nelhod as applied in calculaling the benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sh€el.
Thcr€ was no chanSe in the methods and assumptions used in preparing th€ s€nsitivity anal)6is from prior yean.

i.j

'7/



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the finan(ial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025 (Continucd)

40. F.ir Value lllersurement

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

50,300.62
1 ,67 7 .09

9,12,463.98

22,288.17
2,091.88 1.88

--2Jf,!llfl ------]Z&JL : -----2&$21t-4 9,88,82r.74

128.61

The fair value is the amount al which financial instruments could be sold on fair lerms as ofthe reponing date. where market prices (e.g. for marketable
securities) were available, we have used these prices without modification for measuring fair value. Ifno market prices were available, the fair values for
loan9receivables and liabilities were calculated by discounting using a maturity-matched discount rate appropriaae to the risk.

40.1 Classification offinancial assets lnd firancial li.bilities:

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values ofFinancial assets and Financial liabilities which are classified as Amorlised Cost. Fair
value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) and Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD.

40.1.1 As at March 31,2025

Particulars At Amortised
cost

FVTPL FVTOCI
Total carrying

V.lue
Total l'air value

Flnaocial Assets
Cash and cash equivalorts
Receivables
lrans
lnvestments

Other financial assets

Tot!l

Fin.nci.l Lisbilitics
Derivative fi nancial instruments
Trade payables

Debt securities
Bonowings (other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Totrl

40.1.2 As at March 31,2024

Particulars

Financisl Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
[rans
Other financial assets

Totrl

50,300.62
t,677.09

9,12,463.98
22,288.17

2,091.88

50,300.62
1,611.09

9,12,463.98

22,288.17

6,557.74
2,51,803.94
5,14,M7.44

2,077.69
15 160.78

128.61

6,557.14
2,53,803.94
5,14,M7.44

2,077.69

t28.61
6,557.14

2,51,801.94
5,14,O4t.44

2,077.69
l5 160.78 l5 160.78

Totrl carrying
Value

Totfll Frir value
At Amordsed

co$t
FVTPI, FVTOCI

25,765.M
I,184.98

4,80,612.96
888.48

25,165.M
I,184.98

4,80,612.96
888.48

25,765.U
t,184.98

4,80,612.96

888.48
5,08,451.46 5,08,.151.46 5,0E,451.46

Finlncisl Lirbilities
Trade payables

Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Othe. fi nancial liabilities
Told

4,439.90
1,13,260.12
2,56,434.91

2,203.20
15,380.48

4,439.90
t,t3,260.12
2,56,434.97

2,203.20
15,380.48

4,439.
1,13,260.12
2,56,434.97

2,203.20
15,380.48

____jpJJJg.67_ _____!Ju.!!.62_ -____]pLJJt.67
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the fitrancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Contitrued)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Jak:hs)

Fair Value Measuremetrt (CoIltinued)

Fair value hierarchy offinancial itrstruments

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e. Level l, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuationtechnique The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurements) andIowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurcments).

40.

40.2

Level l: Financial jnstruments measured using quoted prices and that are traded in active market are categorized under level l.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using observable market data and not the
entio, specifi c estimates.

Level 3: Ifone or more ofthe significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The instruments
are valued based on quoted prices for the similar instruments but for which significant observables adjustments are required to reflect the
difference between the instruments.

40.2.2 Valuation techniques used to determine fair value:
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Company has an established con&ol fiamework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Board / Audit Committee has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value offinancial assets by valuation technique:

i) Investments in Mutual Funds
The fair values ofinvestments in mutual funds is based on the net asset value ('NAV') as stated by the issuers ofthese mutual fund units in the
published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents thg price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the
price at which issuers will redeem such units fiom the investors.

40.2.3

Debt securities are short-term in nature and hence carrying value approximates their fair value.

40.2,1 Finrtrcial itrstruments yalued at carrying value:
The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair value. These financial instruments
include cash in hand and bank balances, receivables, trade payables, overdraft facility payable on dernand, certain other assets and liabilities
that are considered financial instruments. Carrying values were assumed to approximate fair values for these financial insauments as they are
short-term in naturc and their recorded amounts approximate fair values or are receivable or payable on dernand.

ii) InYestments in Treasury Bills
Treasury bills are valued based on market quotes.

iii) Investments in G-Securities
G-Securities are valued based on market quotes.

iv) Derivative linancial instrume[ts
The Company enters into forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk offirm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their
fair value at the end ofeach reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless

the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing ofthe recognition in the Statement ofProfit and

Loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature ofthe hedged item.

Fair value offinancial instruments carried at amortized cost:

i) Loatrs
Substantially all loans are at floating mte ofinterest, the carrying value ofloans approximates their fair value.

ii) Borrowings and Debt Securities - (other than Market linked debt securities)
The Company's borrowings are at floating mte of interest and the carrying value of loans approximates their fair value.

l.L.iil:
@



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial ststements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

40. Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

40.2.4 Transfers between Lcvels
There are no transfers between Level I, 2 and 3 offinancial instruments.

10.2.5

Level I
Fimncirl Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Recievables

Loans

Other financial assets

Totsl

50,300.62

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total

Level I
Finatrcirl Ass€ts

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Loans

Other financial assets

Totrl

25,765.04

25,765.04

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented
below lt also includes the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amounr is
a reasonable approximation offair value.

Total

50,300.62
|,677.09

9,12,463_98

2,091.88

_______{r!9.61_ I,t6,232.95 9,66,533.s7

6,557.',14

2,53,803.94

5,14.047.44
2,0'77.69

15 160.78
1,91,647.59

6,55',1.74

2,s3,803.94
5,t4,047.44

2,017.69
15,160.78

7,9t,647.59

As at Msrch 31,2024
LeYel 2 Level3

1,184.98

4,80,6t2.96
888.48

Total

25,765.M
1,184.98

4,80,6t2.96
888.48

__1i2fi!!2_

4,439.90
1,t3,260.12
2,56,434.97

2,203.20
15,380.48

5 51.46

4,439.90
|,t3,260.12
2,56,434.91

2,203.20

15,380.48

3,91,718.67 3,9t,718.67

c///
_--.'-/

Fair Value
As at March 31,2025

Level2 Level3

FiDancisl Lirbilities
Trade payables

Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Totsl

I,6',77.09

9,12,463.98
2,091.88

\
G
O
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 202S (Continued)

10.2.6

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Fair Vslue Messurement (Cotrtinued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented
below. It also includes the fair value infomation for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is
a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair Value
As at March 31,2025

Level 2 Level3
Financifll Assels

Investments

Total

Fitrrtrcirl Assets
lnvestments
Total

Level I

22,288.1'.l

Totrl

22,288.1't
22,28a.17 22.2a8.17

Level 3
Financial Liabilities

Derivative fi nanacial iiability
Total

Level I

128.61

Level 2 Total

128.61

128.61 128.61

Lerel I

Fair Value
As at March 31, 2024

Level 2 Level3 Total

Level I Level 2 LeYel 3 Total
Financial Lisbilities

Derivative fi nanacial liability
Totsl

t

\
ccoo =

o
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financi.l statcments for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Continucd)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

41. Risk i\lanagcmcnt frameNork

Iotroduction
As a financial institution, Godrej Finance limited is exposed to various qpes ofrisks namely credit risk, liquidity risk, market risks, operational risk,
strategic risk (including emerging & external risks) and compliance & reputation risk.

We have adopted a holistic and data driven enterprise level risk managemeot approach which includes monitoring both internal and extemal
indicators. We as an organization periodically adjust our strategy, incognizance with industry risk dynamics and emergmce ofnew challenges and

opportunities. Godrej Finance's risk management fiarnework has been laid down wilh long term sustainability aod value creation in mind-

Important pillars of the risk management approach are developing a strong risk management culture within the Company, alignment of risk with
business shategy, cr€ating, preserving and realizing value. The key risks are being monitored by way ofvarious policies covering these areas.

The policies provide guiding principles by setting various guardrails, procedures, risk assessment and control frameworks etc. which are regularly
tracked and reviews are presented to various senior management committees and board committees. An effort is also made to understand the best
practices in risk managernent across industries which are then customized to our business requirements.

41.2 Company's Risk Management Framework for Measuring and Man8ging Risk

Risk manrgemcnt framework
Risk Managern€nt forms an integral pan of the Company's operations. The company's Board of Directors with support ofrisk function has overall
responsibility for the establishment and ov€rsiglht of the risk maragsnent framework. The Board ofDirecton has constituted following committe€s
and defined their role for monitoring the risk management policies ofthe company.

Board levcl committees

Risk Managcment Committee of the Board (RMC): The purpose ofthe Committee is to assist the Board in its oversight ofvarious risks

i) Credit Risk
ii) Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk
iii) Operational Risk (Process, HR, T€chnology and Fraud)
iv) Strategic Risks (including emerging and extemal risks)
v) Compliance and Reputation Risk (compliance risk and reputation risk are covered through compliance risk maragement charter)

Borrowing and lnvestment Committee: This committee has been constitut€d to €nable decisions with respect to borowing & investrnents ofthe
Company. The decisions are govemed as per Board apprcved Bonowing & Investrnent policy ofthe Company.

Asset Llabillty ManrgeDena Committec ofthe Board (ALCO): ALCO constituted under Annex Vl of Master Direction Reserve Bank oflndia
(Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working thgein. It deals
with all matters related to Asset-Liability and matters prescribed under Board approved Asset-Liability Managernent Policy and Borrowing &
lnvestment Policy.

The Risk ManagemeDt Committee constituted under Paragraph 39 of Master Direction - Res€rve Bar ( of lndia (Non-Banking Financial
Company - Scale Based Regulation) Dtections, 2023 and undertakes all matters prescribod for its working therein. Among other tlings it quarterly
reviews risk which impact the organization and actions taken to mitigate thern.

The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by lnternal Audit. lntemal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews ofrisk
management controls and procedures, the results ofwhich are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit Committee (CCC): The Cornmittee has been constituted to take decisions with respect to credit. Among other things committee approves
cases above defined limit, reviews subsidiary credit policies, manual, products ac.

ffi
(v;:
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for thc year ended March 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

41. Risk Management framework (Continued)

Company's Risk Management Approach for hrndling various type of risks
Credit risk managemetrt:
The credit risk is governed by defi.ed credit policies and Board approved DOA which undergo periodic review. The credit policies outline the type

of products that can be offered, customer categories, targeted customer profile, cr€dit approval process, DOA and limits etc. Each business unit is
required to implement compaiy's credit policies and procedures and maintain the quality ofits credit portfolio.

Credit Risk assessment methodology
The Company has a structured credit approval process, which includes a well-established procedure ofcomprehensive credit appraisal. The credit
appraisal process involves critical assessment of quantitative and qualitative parameters subject to review and approval as per defined DOA. The
credit assessment involves detailed analysis of industry, business, management, financials, end use etc. An intemal rating is also assigned to the

borrower based on defined parameters. For retail customers, the credit assessrnent is based on a parameterised approach. Credit risk monitoring
and portfolio review. The company measures, monitors and manages credit risk at an individual borrowsr level. The credit risk for retail borrowers
is being managed at portfolio level.

The credit assessment is carried out based on an internal risk assessment liamework which rates the customers accordingly to various parameters.

Data anal)dics is extensively used for effective risk monitoring.

(B) Merket Risk
Risk due to change in market prices - e.g. interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads, but not relating to changes in the
obligor'Vissuer's credit standing and will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective ofthe
Company's market risk manageme.t is to manage and conftol market risk exposures within acc?table risk tolerances levels to ensure the solvsncy
while optimising the retum on risk. ALCO sets up limits for each significant t}pe ofrisk/aggegated risk and various products in the portfolio, with
market liquidity being a primary factor in determining the level of limits.

Ilterest rate risk
Core business of the Company is borrowing and lending as psrmitted by the Reserve Bank of Indi4 exposing us to interest rate risk. Interest rate

risk is measured through lnterest rate ssnsitivity repo.t whe.e gaps are being monitored classirying all rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive

liabilities into various time period categories according to earliest ofcontracted,/behavioural maturities or anticipated re-pricing date. The Company

monitors interest rate risk through above measures on a monthly basis. The interest rate risk limits are approved by the ALCO. A regular stress

testing on liquidity scenarios and interest rate scenarios is caried out and presented to the ALCO.

Interest rate risk on inYestmcnts

,1.\\

\r\\
t\_-/&//
\'!-/o

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars

22,288.17

Carrying value

lnvestmcnt at FVTPL

222.88 (222.88\lnvestment at FVTPL

As at March 31,2024

Particulars @ loobps chatrgc
increase

@ loobps change
decresse

@ l00bps change
increase

@ t00bps change
decrease

:ru$i

Exposure to Market Risk

h,
iE

.\,
i

Carrying value



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Icar ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

41.

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Risk Management framework (Continued)

lnterest rate risk (Cotrtinued)

Below table illustrates impact on eamings on account of 100 bps change on in interest mte on the loans and borrowings due for repayment / rate
reset in one year.

As at March 31, 2025

Rate sensitive
l-ess than 1 Year @ l00bps chsnge

increase
@ l00bps change

decrease

i) Loans
ji) Debt Securities

iii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
iv) Net Gep (iv) = (i{ii+iii))

As at March 31,2024

Rate sensitive

i) Loans

ii) Debt Securities

iii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

lv) Net Gap (iv) = (i-(ii+iii))

Variable rate borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings

Less than 1 Year @ l00bps charge
itrcrease

5,11,939.40

30,836.41

3,85,671.85

1,55,43r.r4

4,40,546.02
10,034.60

2,56,434.97
1,74,076.45

5 7tq lq
308.36

3,856.72

l,554Jl

4,405.46
100.35

2,564.35

1,740,16

(5,7r9.39)
(308.36)

(3,856.72)
(1,554.31)

(4,405.46)
( 100.35)

(2,564.3s)
(1,140.76)

@ l00bps change

Thc following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of borrowings into variable ratc and fixed rate

Particulars
As at March 31, 2025 As !t March 31, 2024

46%
t000

28%
to00/o

Equity price risk
The Company does not have any exposure to equities and hence it not exposed to any equiry price risk.

Currercy Risk
The Company has exposure to Foreign currency pursuant to ECB.The Company has fully hedged the risk through Currency

derivatives.Accordingly, currorcy risk is being mitigated. _/_-:=--
zt, .:. -.:- , >
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Godrej Finance Limited
\_ote$ to the finrncial strtemcnts for the Jesr €nded March 31, 2025 (Continu€d)

(Currercy : Indiatr Rupces in takhs)

zll. Risk M.n.gematrt fr.mework (Cotrtinued)

(C) Liqddity risk
A risk lhal lhe Company will encouter difficulty in me€ting its day to day fmancial obligalions is known as liquidiry risk. Managem€nt of liquidity risk is
done as follows:

i) AICO seis the stategy for managing liquidity nsk commensumte with the business obj€ctives.

ii) ALCO has delegaled the .esponsibility of managing overal liquidity risk and inreresr rat€ risk to Treasury. ALCO has set various gap timits for tracking
liquidity risk. The CFO afld head oftr€asury monitor the gap limits with aduals and pres€nr the same to the MD & CEO.

iii) Treasury deparlment manages lhe liquidity position on a day-to{ay basis and reviews &ily reports covering the tiquidity position of rhe Company.
Treasury team ensues the regulatory compliance lo the liquidity dsk related limits approved in the ALM policy by ALCO.

iv) The Company's approach lo managing liquidity is to ensure sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when th€y are due without ircurdng unacceprable
losses or risking damage to the Company's r€putarion.

Th€ key elemenb of rhe Company's liquidity risk management stmregy are as followsl

i) Maintaining a diversified Rrndmg drough markel and benk bonowings .esources such as deb€ntures, comrnercial pprl sutrordinared debt, p€rpetual debt,
lnier_corporate deposits (lCD's), overdraff ard benk tern loans. Unused bank lines consriruie thc main liquidity back up to meet the conringency firtrdmg
plan. Addrdonally, bascd on Market scanario, the compatry also maillt.ains a portfolio ofhighly Iiquid murual fimd units.

ii) Undcr lhe ALM guidelines, the dlramic liquidity statement and structural liquidity statemenr arc being prepared periodicaly to nonitor the maturity gaps

in &e Ass€rs and Liabilities cash flows.

iii) The company carries out sEess l€strng of cash flows on periodic basis and shares the resuhs wirh ALCO to gauge the adequacy of liquidity

The b€low table analyses the Company's financial liabiliti€s a lmarcial assets into rclevafl! maturity groupings based on lhe rernaining period as ar the
.eponing dare !o the contractual matudty date.

As at Nl.rch 3l 2025

Particulrrs Totrl

Contractual cash flows

Less than 6

monlhs
6lo l2 nonihl I to 2 years 2 to 5 years

More thrn 5

yerrs

Financid lirbilitie.
Derivative Financial Instrunents
Tra& payables

Debl securi(ies'
Borrowings (olher fian debt s€curiaies).

I-eas€ Liabiliiies
Other lmancial liabilitics

128.61

6,551.74

2,53,803.94

5,t4,M1.44
2,077.69

r5,160.78

6,557 _74

@228.63
58,l r7.r3

328.88
12.040.18

4626t.n
49,646.57

34t.44
2,788.84

90,000.00

97,575.90

637.55

128.61

51.314.14

3,03,747.85
763.82

314.09

4.959.99

17.61

Total 7,91,116.20 t)7,277.56 99.04,1.02 1,88,213.45 3,62,268.51 4,9t7.66

tlmpact ofElR on Borrowings (orher than debt securities) & Debt se.urilies is showtr in "More than 5 years" bucket.

Pirticulers Total

Contrrctual cash flolrs

Lesr than 6

months
6 (o 12 months I to 2 years 2 to 5 years

More thln 5
ycars

Financirl rssets
Cash aDd cash equivalents

Receivables

Other fiilancial assels

50,300.62

1,677.09

9,12,463.98

22,288.17

2,091.88

50,300.62

1,67 7.09

84,023.79

22,288.11

l0l. t 0

76,6t3.34 r,32.230.95 228,109.02

351. r4

3,91,486.88

1.639.64

Total 9,88,821.74 r,58J90.77 76,61.1.14 1"12,230.95 2,28,460.16 3,93,126.s2

i-

o
tql'

MUI"IBAI

01i)n

o(
)1

'Itnpacl ofElR on toans is shown m "More thatr 5 years" bucket

i\
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Godrei Finance Limited
Notes to thc financial stateme[ts for rhe vear ended Ntarch 31, 2025 (Continucd)

11.

(c)
Risk Ifanagement framework (Cortinued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at l\larch 3l 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakts)

Contractual cash llo\ys

Particulars Total Less than 6
months

6 to 12 months I to 2 years 2 to 5 years More thln 5
years

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Debt securities*
Borrowings (othsr than debt s€curities)+
Lease Liabilities
Oder fi nancial liabilities

4,439.90
1,t3,260.12
2,56,434.91

2,203.20
r 5,380.48 l5 380.48

4.439.90

68.752.18
21R 26

63,358.17

49,495.42

324.92

47,744.30
563.40

49,901.95

87,568.08
1,096.63

2,875.00

Total 3 t 118.67 790.82 178.51I I 07.10 00rM
*lmpact ofEIR on Bonowings (other than debt securities) & Debt securities is shown in "More than 5 years" bucket.

Particulars Total
Contractual cash flows

Less than 6
months

6 to l2 months I to 2 vears 2 to 5 veers
More than 5

years
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Loans*
Other financial assets

25,765.O4

I,184.98
4,80,612.96

888.48

25,765.M

4t AO2.9t

1,t 84.98

36,587.55
456.68

70,286.14 1,28,930.77

431.80

? ol40s {q

Total 5,08,451.46 67,167.95 38.229.21 70.246.U t,29.362.s1 2,03,405.59

*lmpact of EIR on Loans is shown in "More than 5 years" buck€t.

(D) Operational Risk

The risk of direct or indirect potential loss arising from a u,ide variety of causes associated with the company's processes, personnel, systems, or fipm
external factors other tian credi! compliance, reputation, market and liquidity risks. Managernent of operational risk forms an integal part of the
Company's enterprise wide risk manageflent systerns. Clear stmtegies ard oversight by the Board ofDirectoG and senior managemen! a strong operational
risk managerneit culture, effective internal control ard reporting and contingency plarning are crucial elernents of the Company's operational risk
management frdmework.

Cyber Securlty Rlsk
Various measures are adopted to eflectively protect the company against phishing, social media threats and rogu€ mobile. Company ensures s€arnless

accessibility ofqitical systerns through virtual private network (VPN), t}ereby minimizing the risk of security/data breaches and cyber-attacks.

(E) Regulatory and Compliaoce Risk
Company being a debt listed NBFC is required to comply with variety of regulations such as RBI regulations, SEBI regulations, Companies Act, 2013,

labor law and other administrative regulations. These regulations are undertaken by respective teams and are reviewed through central compliaoce

management systern.

t\NAI
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the linancial strtements for the year ended Msrch 31, 2025 (Continued)

42.

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Maturity analysis of asseis 8nd lisbilities

The table below shows an analysis ofassets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particulars 
within 12 months After 12 months Total within 12 months After l2 months Total

I Assets
A. Financial assets

a) Cash and cash equivalents

b) Receivables
c) Loans
d) Investments

e) Other financial ass€ts

B. Non-financial assets

a) Current tax assets (net)

b) Deferred tax assets (Net)

c) Property, plant and equipment

c) Right of use asset

d) Intangible assets under development

e) Other intangible assets

0 Other non-financial assets

Total Assets

II Liabiliti€s
A. Financiallisbilities

a) Derivativefinancialliabilities
b) Trade payables

c) Debt securities

d) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

e) Lease liabilities
f) Other financial liabilities

B. Non-IinancialLiabilities
a) Provisions

50,300.62
1,6'77 .09

1,60,637.t3
22,288.'t7

101 .10

50.300.62
|,677 .09

9,12,463.98

22,288.17
2.091.88

25,'765.04

1,184.98
76,882.85

25,765.04
I,184.98

4,80,612.96

8 8 8..18

973.21

7,51,826.85

1,990.78

2,192.32
832.80

1,682.81

1,968.45

30.13
4,406.12
1,130.44

4,03.730.11

431.80

973.21

1,7t9.16
2,156.01

3,209.99

135.85

2,192.32

832.80
r,682.81
1,968.45

30.13
4,406.t2
1,130.44

456.68

98.46

858.24

I,7 t9.16
2,156.01

98.46
3,209.99

994.09

2 5 04.1I 7 060.70 I I I 46.258l t2 56.t3 t7 602.38

6,557;74
r,06,489.80

t,07 ,7 63.70

676.32
14,829.02

128.61

I,47 ,314.t4
4,06,283.74

1,401.37

331;16

415.34

128.61

6,557.74
2,53,803.94
5,14,047.44

2,077.69
15,160.78

4,439.90
63,358.17

|,18,247 .60
543.18

1s,380.48

49,901.95
1,38,187.37

1.660.02

2l'1.96

4,439.90
I,13,260.12
2,56,434.97

2,203.20
15,380.48

J.t.) I
391.92

90.78

53 8.s0
252.53

391.92

s PU

\^\)N-B

non-financial liabilities

Total Liabilities

o\

934.96 7

566.12

538.50

967.30 3 9 .12

€(J;YZ

2,02395.82



Codrej Finance Limited
\olcs to tbe fitrancial slalemetrts for thc ) crr rnded trtarch 31. Z02S (Contitrued)

(Cunency : lndian Rupees in lakhs)

.13. Capitalluanagement

The Company s assessmenl ofcapilal requiremeDt is aligned to rts plamed growrh which forms pan ofan annual operating plan which is approved by th€ Board atrd atso a
long rarge sftlegy. The Company's obje.tiv€s when managing capital are to safeguard thet ability lo continue as a going concem, so thar rhey can conrhu€ to provid€
retums for sharcholders and benefils for other staleholders and maintain aD optimal capital structrre to reduce th€ cosr of capital.These growfi plans arc aligned lo

rnanagemeDt committ€e (ALCO). Company has formulated an ICAAP document which tests the capital adequacy in siress sc€narios. These include srress on loan ponfolio,
operational risks, liquidity dsk. The objeclive is to define capiral planning and budgethg approval which shall demonstrare rhal lhe capilal is commensurale with rhe risk
profile ir normal and stressed sc.narios.

43.1 Analytical Ratio

Ralio Denominator
As et 3lst March

2025

As .t 3lsl Mrrch
2024

Rerson! for
Vrrirncc (if25%

rbove)
Capiral to risk weighted ass€ts ratio (CRAR)
Tier I CRAR
Tier I CRAR
Debl Equity Ratio

2,05,869.50

2,00,652.18

5,216.72

7,67,851.38

8,9t,656.48
8,9t,656.48
8,91,656.48

2.07,554.30

23.090/0

22.50r/o

0.59r/o

3.10

26.27n/o

25 _64yo

0.630/.

2.97

-12.12%

-12_23%
-7.71o/.

24.670/o

NA
NA
NA

44. Other stetutory information

i) The Company does not have any Benami prop€rty, where any proc€edhg has b€etr hitiated or pending against tle Croup for holding any BeDami property.
ii) The Compary does not have any transactions with sEuck offcompades.
iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yei to be registered with Registlr ofcompanies b€yond the statutory period.

iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Cry!,to currency or Virtual Curr€ncy during the fmaDcial ye3r.

v) Th€ Company has not advarced or loaned or invested funds to any other pcrson(s) or e Mies), including foEign eDtities (Intennediaries) with lhe udestanding that
the lDtermediary shall:

(a) dirccdy or indiroctly lend or invesl in other persons or entities identified i! any mann6 whatsoevd by or on behalfofthe company (tltimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide 6ny guarant€€, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Benericiaries.

vi) The Company has not received any fimd Fom any person(s) or €ntiMies), including foreign €ntities (Funding Party) with lhe mderst ndi.g (whelher recorded in
writiDg or otherwis€) that th€ Company shalt:

(a) dirc$ly or indirectty lend or invest in other p€rsons or entities identifi€d in any manner whatso€ver by or on behalfofthe Fuding Party (Uhimat€ B€oeficiarics) or

(b) provid€ any guarantee, s€curity or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries. \
vii) The Company has not entered iDto any such transactioo which is nor record€d in the books ofaccount that has been sunender€d or disclosed as income durinC lhc year aal\

in the tar ass€ssrnents urder the lacome Tax Act, I 96 I (such as, s€arEb or survey or any olher relevanl provisions of Oe lncome Tax Act, 196l ). 8,,'\/i
viii) ThcrE ar€ Do unspeDt amours in respe{r ofongoing Fojects, that are r€quircd to b€ transierred to a special accounl in compliance of provision of sub s€dioo (61 of /

section 135 ofcompanies Acr.

ix) Io respect ofoder lhan ongoing projectr, tbere arc nd rmspent arnounts thst arc rcquired to be trafsfered to a frnd sp€cifed in Schedul€ Vll of the Companies Acl (lhe

Act), in compliance wilh se.ond proviso to sub section 5 ofsection I35 ofthe Act.

x) The Compaoy has obtained vadous borowings from bsnl, FI on b6sis ofsecurity ofcurreDr ass€rs wherein the quanerly r€tum, starements ofcurr€ assets &s filed
with banks/ Fl are in agreement wirh the books. The company has used the bonowings ftom b6"ks snd financial inslituliotrs for fre specific purpose for which ir was

taletr at th€ b6lanc! sbeer alate. The corDpany is not d€clared as wilfu] defaulrer by any bank m finarcial lnstitution or orher lender as at 3 | March 2025-

xi) The Company is not having any irDmovable propErty in its narne. TherEfore, there is no such immovable property, lille de€d of which is nol held in name of the

CompaDy.

xii) The Company is nor having any subsidiary. Thercfore, th€ provisions of claus€ (87) of s€ction 2 ofthe Act rcad wilh Companies (RdEiction on number of t-aycrs)

Rules, 2017 h respect ofNurnbd of l-aye6 is not applicrbl€ to the Company.

xiii) Thers is oo such scheBe ofaraDgemcnts bas been approved by the Competed Authority in terms of sectiors 230 to 237 oflh€ Compades Act, 2013.

xiv) No loans were gmnted to p'romole6, dtectors, KMPS and rhe related parties (as defined under Cornpa cs Act,2013), €irher sevrally orjoirtly with any other person

during the year.

45. Events .fter reporting drt€

There have been no major events which will cause cbrnges to atry numbers rEponed in the financial stalernents.
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Nol6 ro lh. rh.ftbl nd.ments ror th.l..r.nd.d ll...h 3I,2025(Conttru.d)

(cur q. lndia Rup6 in latls)

46.1 Dk l6ue und.r Lilritrg ASrEm.nr lor D.br S.curldc
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Godrej Finsnce Limited
Notes to the financial strtements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (CoDtinued)

46, SEBI disclosures (Continued)
46..4 Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 as amended, for the year ended March 31, 2025

Debt-equity ratio = (Debt securities + Borrowings (other than debt securities) + Subordinated liabilities) / Net worth.

Net worth is calculated as defined in section 2(57) of Compa esAct2013.
Total debts to total assets = (Debt securities + Borrowings (other than debt securities) + Subordinated liabilities) / Total assets.

Net profit margin = Net profiy(loss) after tax / Total income.

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered under the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934, hence these ratios

are not applicable.

Debt service coverage ratio and interest service coverage ratio shall not be applicable for Non Banking Financial Companies

registercd with the Reserve Bank oflndia as per Regulation 52(4) ofthe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Provision Coverage Ratio = (Gross Stage 3 Loans - Net Stage 3 Loansycross Stage 3 Loans

Liquidity Coverage Ratio = Stock ofHigh Quality Liquid Assets(HQlA)/Total net cash outflows

Notc:
I
2

3

4

5

6

'7

8

J

Sr. No. Particulrrs !\larch 31.2025
I Debt equity ratio (No.of Times) I

2 Debt service covemge ratio6 Not Applicable

3 Interest service coverage ratio6 Not Applicable

4 Outstanding redeemable prefcrence shares (quantity and value) Nil
5 Capital redemption reserve/debenture redemption reserve Nil
6 Net worth I (t in lakhs) 2,07,554.30
'7 Net profit / (loss) after tax (a in lakhs) 10.220.42

8 Eaming per equity share (Annualised)

(a) Basic ({) 0.97
(b) Diluted ({) 0.9'7

L'urent mho _ Not Applicable

l0 Long term debt to working capital t Not Applicable

l1 Bad debts to account receivable ratio 5 Not Applicable

t2 Curent liabilitv iatio t Not Applicable

Total debts to Total assets 
l 76.',loyo

l4 Debtors tumover ratio 
5 Not Applicable

Inventory fumover 
5 Not Applicable

16 operating margin 
5 Not Applicable

t'7 Net profit margin (%) a 1036%

Gross Stage 3 Loans (t in lakhs) 4,',l12.36

t9 Net Stage 3 Loans ({ in lakhs) L77 SO

20 Provision Coverage Ratio % ("PCR") {On Stage 3 Loans}7 5t.670/"

21 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 8 158.71yo

3.10

13

l5

l8
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Godrej Finatrce Limited
Notes to the financial stateme[ts for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

41.

47.1

(Currency : Indian Rupees in takhs)

Regulatory disalosures - RBI

schcdule to the Balance sheet or a NBFC as required in terms of Paragraph 3l of th€ Master Direction - Res€rve Bank of lndia (Non-Banking
Financial Company - Scate based R€gutation) Directions, 2023:

Schedule to th€ Balance Sheet47.1.1

Particulars As at Msrch 31,2025 As at March 31,2024

Liabilities side Amount
outstandinq

Amount overdue
Amount

outstanding
Amount overdue

l Loans and advances avriled by the non- bsnking financial
company inclusive ofinterest accrued thereon but not paid:
a) Debentures:

Secured

Unsecured

b) Defered Credits
c) Term t ans

d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
e) Commercial Paper

f) Public Deposits
g) Otier Loans (t an repayable on demand from banks)

1,50,060.44

5,07,M5.92

1,03,?43.50

1,001.52

2,36,2s2.95

62.727.67

20,182.0;

50,532.45

2 Break-up of(1X, .bove (Outstanding public deposits inclusive
ofinterest accrued thereon but not paid):

a) In the fonD of Uns€cur€d debentures

b) In the form ofpartly secured debentur€s i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of security

c) Other public deposits

Assets sid€ Amount outstanding
As at March 31,

2025
As at March 31,

2024

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables lothe. than those included in (4) belowl:3

a) Secured

b) Unsecured

6,20,584.40
2,99,930.31

3,60,E13.14
t,23,370.47

4 Breakup of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset linancing
activities

i) t ease assets iDcluding lease rentals under sundry debtoE
a) Finarcial Iease

b) Operating lease

ii) Stock oD hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

a) Assets on hire
b) R@ossessed Assets

iiil other loans counting towards assel financing aclirrlies
a) t-oal|s where assets have been repossessed

b) Irans oiher than (a) above

Z
I1A,

9,948.02
12,340.15

5 Break-up of Investments
Current Investments

Quoted
i) Shares

a) Equity
b) Preference

ii) Debentu€s and Bonds
iii) Units of Mutual Funds

iv) G- Securities
v) Treasury Bills
vi) Ohers
Unquoted
i) Shar€s

a) Equity
b) Prefermce

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii) Units of Mutual Funds

iv) C- Securities
v) Treasury Bills
vi) Others

Cc ilt N\

O
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

17.1 Schedule to the Balance Sheei of ! NBFC as required in tcrms of Parrgrsph 3l of lhe Ntaster Direction - Resene Brnk of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company - Scale based Rcgulation) Directions,2023 (Continued):

.\nlount outslaDdingAssets side (Continued)
As at l\rarch 31,

202S

As at llrerch 31,
2024

Long term lnvestments

Quoted
i) Shares

a) Equity
b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

iii ) Units ofmutual funds

iv) Govemment Securities
v) Others

Unquoted
i) Shares

a) Equity
b) Preference

ii) Deb€ntures and Bonds

iii ) Units ofmutual funds

iv) Govemment S€curities
v) Ohers

Borro\r'er qroup-rrise classirica(ion ofassets financed as in (3) snd (4) above:
Amount nel of provisions

As at Nlarch 31.2025

Securcd Unsccurcd Total

Cat ory
6

6.1',7,995.'73 2.94.468.25 I,t 2,463.98

Related Parties

a) Subsidiaries

b) Comparies in the same group

c) Other related pa(ies
Other than relate{, pafties

Amount net of provisions

As at l\tarch 31,2024
Category

Secured Unsecured Total
Related Parties

a) Subsidiaries
b) Companies in the sarne group

c) Other related pani€s

other than related panies 3,59,35E.13 1,21,254.83 4,80.612.96

'7 Invcstor group-* isc .lassificati on of sll inyestments (current and long term) in sheres 6nd securitics (both quotcd and unquo(ed) :

As at ]tlarch 31.2025 As at March 31.202,1

Book Vllue (Net

ofProvisions)
Category Msrket Value /

Break up or fair
vrlue or NAV

BookValue (Net

of Provisions)

Msrkea Velue /
Bresk p or fair
value or NAV

Relat€d Parties

a) Subsidiari€s

b) Companies in the same group

c) other related panies

Other than related panies 22,288 0 22,183.18

8 Olher information
Particulars As rt Mrrch 31,

2025
As at l\larch 31.

2024

i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

a) Related pani€s

b) Other than related parties

ii) Net Notr-Performing Assets

a) Related parti€s

b) Other than related parties

iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

4,712.36 979.78

4e1 ;3

i:l

MIJI",iBAI I
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Codr€j Finance Limited
Notes to the nnanciat statements for the year ended Ntarch 31,2025 (Contitrued)

47.

47.2

(Cuncncy I India. Rup€es in lalhs)
Reeulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

Disclosure io notes to Financial ststem€Dts r. required under Annexure Il of Master Direction R€serv€ Bark oflndia (Notr-BaDking Finarciat company - srate
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

comparison ofprovisions required und€r Incom€ Recognitioq Alset classificarion sDd Provisioning (IRACP) ard Impairmert a,to*s.ces mad€ under Ind As t09
17.2.1

AS 109

Ner Carrying Am@nt Ind AS 109

AS IO9

(l) (2) (3) (4) (5F(3t(4) (6) (7)-(:r)-(6)

Slandard Stage-1

Stase-2
9,11,182.8,1

4.619.51
5,2\6.t2

399.24

9,05,966.r2
4,220_27

3,351.99

18.21
1,86,1.73

381.03
Subtotal 9,15,802.35 5.615.96 9.r0.r86J9 3J70.20 2.245.16
Notr Performlns Assrts NPA)
Substandard

Doubttul

I to 3 Y€ars
More lhan 3 years

Sub total forDoubtfirl
Irss

Slage-3

Stage-3

Stage-3

Stage-3

Stase-3

4,446.90

230.39

35.07

265.46

2,302.01

115.20

17.53

132-73

2.144.86

I15.19
t7 _54

132.73

439.',t',l

46.08

10.52

56.60

1,862.2',7

69.t2
7.01

15.13

Subtotsl for NPA 4.11236 2Ay.77 2.277.59 19637 r.93E.40

Olher items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. *hich are in th€ scope
of Ind AS 109 but nol cover€d under
currenl lncom€ Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP)

Stage-l
Siage-2

Stage-3

Subtotal

Total Stas€-l
Stage.2
Stase.3

9,11,182.8,1

4,619.51

4.112_36

5,216_72

399.24

2434.7 7

9,05,966_12

4,220.21
3,35r.99

18.21

496.31

1,864.73

381.03

,,938.40
9.20.5r4.7r 8.0s0.73 9.r2..t63.98 3.866.s7 4.184.15

Gr6s C.rryitrg Amount

AS IO9

N'etC.rryiog Amount
IdAS !09

AS I{D

o) \2) (3) (4) (5F(3!(4) (6) (7F (4)-(6)

P€rformins
Standard Stage- l

Stase-2

4,82,324.68

879.15

2,986.51

95.98

4,',l9,338.1 7

783.17

1,781.08

3.4',1

1,205.41

92.51

Sub total 4.83.203.83 3.0E2.49 ,t.80.12134 r.784.55 1.297.94

Non PerformiDq Alset! (NPA)
Subsrandard

Doublful

I to 3 YeaE
More than 3 yeals

Sub tor.al for Doubttul
Irss

Stage-3

Stage-3

Stage-3

Stage-3

Stace-l

979.',]8 488.16 49t.61 93.68 39.{.48

Subtotal for NPA 919.7E 488.16 .191.63 93.68 394.48

Other items such as guara ees, loan
commitments, elc. which are in the s.ope
of Ird AS 109 but not covffed under
curenl lncome Recognition, Asset

Classification and Provisioning (IRACP)

Stage-l

Stage-2

Stage-3

Subtotal

Total Stage.l
StagF.2

StasF.3

4.82,324.68

879.15

919.18

2,986.51

95.98

488.r6

4,79,338.17
'783.l',I

491.63

1,781.08

3.41

93.68

1,205.43

92.51

394.48

Total 4.Er.lE3.61 3.570.65 4-80-612-91 l_878.23 1.692.42

3t 2025

at March 3l 2024

Company conducted sale ofits business portfolio as per details provided at Note No.47.3.6 as per Policy for Tmnsfer oflran Exposure app.oved47.2,2

17.2i There ar€ no accounis which are past due beyond 90 da)r but not treated as impaired.

Directors.

Gr6s C0ryingAm@nt

I

\" \__-./ 6vt



Godrej Finance Limited
Not€s 10 the financial slatementr for rhe ]ei. endcd Ntirch Jt,2025 (Continued)

(Curency : Indian Rupees i. lakhs)
47. Resulrtory disclosrr€s - RBI (Cortinued)

47.3 Disclosure pursuant to RBl Master Direction - Rcserve Bankofhdia (Non-Banking Financirt Compsry- scate based R€gutation) Diretions,2023:
47j.1 Capital to risk assers ratio (CRAR)

As at luarch 31,

2024
CRAR (%)

CRAR - Tier I capilal (%)
- Tier 2 Capital (9/o)

of Subordinatcd debt Eised as Ti€r 2 capital

23-09%
2250%
0.59%

26.27Yo

25.64%
053%

11.3.2 Inv€stmetrls

47.3.3

k at arch 31.

2025 2024

I) valu€ of lnvestment

(i) Gross vdue of investments*
(a) In Ldia
(b) Outside I ia

(ii) Provlsions for deprerlatton
(a) In India
(b) Outside l.dia

(iit) Ner value of inv€stmetrrs
(a) ln tndia

o) ourside India

U) Moyement of proyisiom held towards depreciatloD otr ltrvestments.
Openitrg baliDcc
Add : Provisions made during the year

l-ess : w.ile-olT / wrinen'back of excess provisions during the year

Cloritrs balaDc€

22.244.17

22.288.17

'(lncludes Mark to Market sain of Rs. I 04.99 I2kls (Previous Year: Nil)

D€rivatives

a) Fonard rate agreenenl / irtere.t rate lwap

Pariiculars
2024

i) Th€ notional principal of swap as€€menrs
ii) lrss€s which would be incurr€d ifcounlerpani€s failed to tulfil lhen oblgations under th€ aereem€ntr
iii) Collateral requi.ed by lhe NBFC upon e.tering jnlo swaps

iv) Concentration ofcredit risk arisif,s from the swaps '
v) The fair Yalue oflh€ su,ap book @

1,26,509.75

I Examples ofconcentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps wilh highly gearcd companies.

@ lfthe swaps are linked to sp€cific assets. liabilities, or coffnitnents, the fair value would b€ rhe eslimated amou.r lhat the NBFC would receive or pay to terminal,e the

swap agreemeds as on rhe balanc€ sheel da!e-

b) Etchrnee traded inter€st rat€ (IR) d€riratives

\'\ I!
,q
C

As at March 31.

2025 2024
t,26.509_15

1.26.509 _',75

i) NotioMl pnncipal amou ofexchange traded lR denvatives udertaken during the year

ii) Notional principal amount ofexchange traded IR derivatives outstanding
iii) Notional principal mount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not 'highly etrective"
iv) Mark-to-market value ofexchaflse traded lR derivatives outstddinq and not ihishly effective'

a
*

| 2o2s



Codrej Finance Limited
Notes to th€ financial statemeDts tor the year eDded March 3r,2025 (Continued)

(Curency : lndian Rupees in lakhs)

47. Reerlator} disclosures - RBI (CoDtiDued)

c) Disclosures on risk €rposure iD derivatives

Quelirative disclosure

Th€ Company enten inro swap contncis and other de.ivarive financial instruments ro hedge ils exposur€ lo foreiSn exchange and inlerc$ Etes Hedges of foreigr

exchange.isk on firll commit nents a.e accounred as cash flow hedSes. Thc Conpany does nor hold deri'ative financial insrumenls for speculative purpose.

dare. The resuking Sain4oss h rccognised in lhe slalement ofproft and loss immediaiely unless ill€ derivalive is desigrated and is efectiv€ as a hedging insnumenq in

which eveflr the dminS ofth€ rccognirion in th€ shlemenr ofprofit and loss depends on rhe nature of th€ h€dge relationship. The Company designates ce.Lit derivatives as

hedses of highly probabte forccasr rraBactions (cash flov hedges). A denvadve wirh a positive fair value is rccogised as a financial asser whenas a denvative wirh a

ne8?tive t ir ralue is recognrsed as a financtal ltabilrr)

Hedge AccouDtltrg Policy
The C-ompany nakes us€ of derivative instruments lo managc exposurcs ro intercsi mle and forcign currency. In order lo manag€ panicular risks. lhe Company applies

h€dge accounting for ranscriom thar m€er specific crireria. Ar lhe inception of a hedg€ relationship. thc Company fomally designates and docum€nls the hedge

rclationship to which ihe Company wishes ro apply hedge accoundng and rhe risl managemenr objeclive and sbateE/ for undenaking lhe hedg€ The documentation

iDcludes the Company s nsk
managemenr objedive and strare$/ for undenaking hedge, lhe hedSinS./ economic rElrtionship. the hedg€d ilem or lransaction. lle naturc of lhe risk being hedged. hedSe

mtio and how the Company would assess lh. etrectiveness ofchanges in the hedginS instrumcnl's fair value in offsetting ihe exposure to changEs in tle hedged item's fair
value or cash floes altributable to the hedsEd risk. Such hedaes are expected ro be highly etre.tive in achievinS otrs.dns chanses in fair yalue or cash flows and arE

assessed on an on-soins basis ro deremine tnar ihey actually have been hisNy efrecdv€ rhmughoul the financial r€ponins pdods for which ftey were designated.

A cash flow hedse is a hedse of the exposure ro variability in cash flows that is aiibutable ro a panicular risk asso.ialed vilh a rccognisd ass€l or liability (such as all or

som€ tunrrE int€rEsr paym€nb on rariabl€ late debo or a hishly probable for€casr ran$cdon and could aff.ct profil and loss. Fo, dcsisnaled and qualiryins crsh flow
hedses, the etretive portion of rhe cumulative gain or loss on th€ hedging insEument is initially r.cosxised dire.dy in OCI widrin equity (cash fhw hedge res€rve). 'nt€

inetrective portior of rh€ gain or loss on fi€ hedgitrg insEumcnt is recognised immcdiarely in Fin nce Cosl in the scalem€nt of profit and loss. Wh€n ihe hedged cash flow
aff€cls lhe stalement ofpmfil and loss. lh€ eftective portion ofd. gain or loss on $e hedging instrument is rEcord€d in the corrcsponding incom€ or expense line ofth€
slalement ofprcfit and loss. Wlen a hedging instrument expir€s, is sold. terminared, exerci!€d. or when a hedgr no lonSer meels lhc crileria for hedge accountin& any

cunulative gain or loss thar has bc€n Ecosnis€d i. OCI at that time rcmains in OCI and is recognis.d when thc hedscd forEsst ira,saclion is ultimarely recos sed in lhe

statemenl ofprofii and loss. When a for€.asl Fansaction is m lon8e. expectcd lo o.cur, th. cumulrtive gain or loss thal was rcpon€d in OCI is immedialely transferrEd to

lhe statement ofprcft atrd los. The Compmy s hedging poiicy only allows for effective hedginS r€lationships lo be consid€rEd as h€d8es as pe. lhe rElevant Ind-AS.
HedSe efectiven€ss is delemin€d al ihe inception of the hedge rclationship, and firough penodic prosp€cdve effectiveness ass€ssments lo ensurc lhat an €.onomic
relrtionship exists beNeen lhe hedg€d it.m dd hedsi.s instrumenr. The Company enters into h.d8E relationships wherc rhe crirical r€rms of rhe hedsiDs inst'umen! match

wilh the lerms oflhe hedged irem. and so a qualitative ud quanrit tive assessm.nt ofetrectiveo.ss is p.rform.d.

Crsh Flon Hedgcs

OurntltaliYe dlsclosur€

(

cl
c)

*

A. rl \lrr.h 31.2025 AMI \tr..h ll- 2024
atrrr€n.v D.rir:ri!6 Cnrren.r Drri$riY6

Derivrtives
Derivatives (notioMl DrinciDal amounl)
For Hedging
Mar*ed to market Dosilions

Uability (-)

t,26,509 75

(61 r8)

20.925 75

(64 43)

'i c'
lmI



Codrej Fin.nce Limitcd
Noter lo th€ finrtlcirl slatemenls for the lear e'ded Mr.ch 31,2025 (Contitrued)

defrull swaps:

47. Resulatory dhclosures - RBI (Continued)

17.3.1

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

\N\

t

As rt March 31,

2025
As at lrarch 31,

2024

No. oftrsnsections drring thc yerr
Amount of pmtection bought duritrg the year
No. oflr.nsactions wher€ crdit event pryment was received duritrg th€ yerr
a) p€tuining to currEnt yea/s tran$crions
b) penainiDg lo previous yea(s)' tnnsactions
Outstrnditrg tr8nsactions as otr Mrrch 3lsl
a) No. of Tmnsactions

b) Amount ofprotection
Net income / profit (expenditure / loss) in respcct ofCDS transactiotrs during y€rr-todate
a) prcmium paid

b) Credil evenl pa}Inents receiv€d (nel ofvalue of deliverable oblisation).

473.5 Disclosure pursu.nt to RBI Mrrter Directiotr - Reserve Brnkoflndi. (Non-Batrkiog Finrtrcial Comp.ny - Scele brsed Rcgulatiotr) Dircctiotrs,2023: pertrining
to drtr r€grrding pledged sccuriucs:

The Compatry has trot giveD any losns again$ securities.

\ime ofthe Lcrder \BFC N,/A

PA\_ N/A
Drt€ of Reporting N/A
Sharc-holdin g Informrtion N/A
Nrme of
the
Comornt

ISIN
against loans

Type ofBoffower

promoter)
Name ofthe borrower

PAN of the
Borrower

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

473.6 Dlsclosu1€3 punuatrt to RBI Notification - RBI/DOR202r-22/86 DOR.STR.Rf,C.5lnI.04.gtr021-22 dat€d Septcmber 24,2021

a) Delails of loans acquirEd through assignm.nr in rcspect of loans not i. defaull during the year ended:

*.R€bined by rhe dginator

b) Del.ails of loans Eansferred through assig n€nr in

2025 2021
i) E.aity
ii) Cou oflm accou s assisned (in numb€E)

iii) Amou oflo3n accounr assisned (in lakhs)

iv) Retention of beneficial economic intercst(MRR)*.
v)Weishted avense maturity (rcsidual maluriry in mo hs)

vi) Weighted av€rag€ holdins period (in mo hs)

vii) Covemge oftansible s€curity

viii) Rrting-wise distribution ofrated loaf,s

NBFC

583

3,775.46

10.00%

133.82
8.02

100.00%

N/A

NBFCs

1522

5,361.93

I0.00%
2t.61
12.23

N/A

of loans not in defauh dunns rhe )ear ended

?025 2021
Enlilv

of loatr accouts assigned (in nurnbers)
Amount of loan ac.ount assigned (in lakhs)
Retention of beneficial economic int.rest (MRR)*+
Weighted avemge maturity (residul maturiry in months)
Weiehted avemge holding period (in months)
Covemge of tangible security

ise distribution of mted loans

Bank
210

21,053.31

10.00%

156.41

19.01

r00.00%

N/A

Bank

40t
6,815.21

10.00%

25.33

1_87

N/A
'*Relained by the oriSinator

c) The Company has not transferrE{yacquind any srEsssd loans duins lh€ year ended March I I , 2025 (prEvious y€ar: Nil).

d) Th. Company has nol t ansfeEld/acquir€d thDu8h f,ovation and loan participation during thc ys eDded MarEh 3 I , 2025 (PrEvious Yerr: Nil)

Dbclocure. purlurut to RBI Notittcrdon - RByDOR202l-22/tS DOR.STR.REC.5!t2l.U.n7no2l-22 dated ScpreDber 24, 2021.

No secuntization h6 ben done by the cornpsny dunng fi€ Far (previous r/ear: Nit).
,T
-,oo
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Codrej Finance Limited
fotes lo the tinancial strlemetrt for lhe tear ended March 31, 202S (Conlinued)

17

.17 ] i

(Cunency:lndian Rupees in lakhs)
Regulalory dhclosrres ' RBI (Contirued)

Ass€t lirblllty man.gement

a) vltoril} olnem of certai, llems of assets ,nd ttabitities As rr March 3l- 2025

b) ]l'Irlurilr paltern ofcertria ilem of asicls lId liabilitics As a! M.arch 31. 202:l

l-iabilitier

Deposits Borrowings from llank Market Borrowings
Foreign Currencl

Llabilities

I day to 7 days

8 dals !o 14 drls
l5 dals to l0/3I dar.s

Over On€ motrdr up ro 2 monlhs
Over 2 monlhs up to 3 months
Over 3 nonths up !o 6 monlhs
Over 6 months up to I yeat

Over I ,€3r up lo 3 y.rrs
Over 3 yeas up to 5 ycals
Over 5 years

121.29

I..118.43
4,045.55

15,795.65
3r,823.29
49.646_57

1.7t.t35.62
1,06.823-46

4,959.99

29,748_92

29,565.86

913.85
4626t.17

|,41.3t4.14

299.59

523_55

7i.68
4,t 16.10

t.15.069.69
8294_98

'I-oral
3,E5,671.85 2,s3.E03.94 1,28J75.59

Foreigr Currency

I day to 7 days

8 days to l4 days
15 dals io 30/11 dals
Ovcr One month io 2 monrhs

Over 2 motrths up lo 3 Inonrhs

Over 3 months up lo 6 months
Over 6 months up lo I year

Over I y€ar up to 3 years

Over 3 yeals up io 5 years

Over 5 years

t4A2t_98
514.3t

l,4l1.73
l r.849.10
13.554.97
40.2t t.1t
76,613.34

1,22,846.19

3,91.486.88

22.288.17

'Ioral 9,I 2,,163.9E 22.,2EE.17

l-irbilities

Deposit! aorro*irg! from Bldkr ]Irrket Borro{ings
I-iabilitie!

I day to 7 &ys
8 da)r !o 14 days
I 5 dals to 30/3 t days
Over One month up io 2 monlhs
Over 2 motrths up to 3 months

Over 3 months up lo 6 months

Over 6 months uD lo I year

Over I year up to 3 yeals

Over I years up !o 5 years

Over 5 yeas

12,440.00
ll,8r5 00
22.426.07
20,804.89

48,872.15

89,655.26
45,676.98

2.744.62

t0,1t 8.50
29,383_42

23,615_25

49,942_95

loral 2,56,.r3.r.97 r,13,260.r2

lorelgr Currency

I day !o 7 da)6

8 days to 14 dals
I 5 days io 30/3 I days

Over On€ monrh ro 2 monlhs
Ov.r 2 months up to 3 months

Over 3 months up lo 6 months

Over 6 mostk up to I year

Over I year up to 3 yean

Over I yei,s up to 5 ycars

Over 5 ,€a]!

7,092.18

641.71
r,568.17
6,666.17

6,115.20
r9.l19.49
16,587-55
70.286.14

1,28,930.71

2,01,405.58

Tolal 4,E0,612.96

& Pt,
.9

!(
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Codrej Finance Limited
llotes lo the linancirl itrtern€ots for rhe )ear erd€d M.rch 31,2025 (Continued)

47. Regoblory disclosures - RBI (ConriDued)
{Cunency : Indian Rupees in lal(hs)

[]\ re 10 real eslate sector

47.3.9 Erposur€(Contitrued)

Cal€gory
202s 2t)21

r) Direo erposure
R6id€trti.l mortgag€s -
I?Ddi.g tully securcd by mongages on nsidenrial prop€rry that is or will be occupied by lhe bomwer or lhat is renr.d.
Erposure would also include non-tund bas€d (NFB) limirs

Comme.cirl .€rl 6t.le -
bndinS securcd by mongaSes on commercial real estates (offce buildings. retail space, multipurpos commercial
premis€s, muhi-hmily residential buildings. multi-reMnted commercial premises. industrial or warehouse space, horets.
land acquisition. development af,d construction, etc.). Exposure i.cludes non-tund based (NIB) limits.

IntestmedG in mortgage backed secrrllle. (ttBS) and others€curlth€d erposur€s -
- Residential

Commercial Real Estate

b) Indire.l erpolure
rund bas€d and non-tund-based € Bank and

:1.52.520 97

r.08.860.80

2.12.0t9I

98,122 4_l

Total erposure to Real Estate Sector 5.6r3Er.77 tJ0,16r.74

2025 2021
Dircct invesunent in equity shar€s. convenible bonds, convenible debenturcs and units of equity-onent€d mutual tunds
the corpus ofwhich is not exclusively inv€sted in corporate debt

Advances againsl shares / bonds / deb€nturcs or other seanties or on clean basis ro individuals for irv6trDenl in sharEs
(including IPOS / ESOPS), conv€nible bonds. convertible debeDturEs, and u.irs of equiry-oriented mutual tunds

b)

Advanc€s for any other purposes wheE sharcs or cof,vetuble bonds or convenible debentuEs or uits of equity o;ented
mutualftnds aE taken as pnmary secfity
Advanc€s for my otier purposes ro th€ extent sured by the collareEl secunry of sharcs or convenible bonds or
convenible debentures or unils of equity o.iented mulual fu.ds i.€. wher€ th. pnmary *curity other thas shares /
convetibl€ bonds / cony€nible debenturcs / uni$ ofequity orietrted mutual tunds does nol fully cove, the advances

d)

Secured and unsecured advances to sloclbroken and guamntees issued on behalf of stockbrokeN and ma*et make6

r') tnans saflctioned to corpor.les againsl fie s€curity of sharcs / bonds / debentures or olh€r s€curities or on cl€an basis for
me€ting pmmotels cofltribution io lhe equity ofnew companies in anticipation ofr.ising Bources
Bridge loam to companies against €xpected equily flows / issu€s

Underwriting commitnenis cak.n up by rhe NBFCS in respecr of pnmary issu€ of shares or convenible bonds or
convertibl€ d€beDtws or utrits ofequiry onenred mutual tunds

Financing 0o slockbrokers for ma.gin tradins
AU exposurEs to Altemativ€ Invcsinenl Funds:
(i) Caiesory I
(ii) Category tr
(iii) Category Itr

8)
h)

i)
i)

Totalexposure lo Capilrl ]ltarket

re to ca

473.11 Detrlls ofSlngl€ Borrower Limil (SBLy C.oup Borrower Llnir (GBL) erce€ded by the Company:

The Company has not exceeded prudential exposurc limit stipulated by RBI prudenlial f,oms applicable lo NBFC as on r€poning date (Pr€vious Year: Nil)

473.10 Derrlls of lirirciDg ofparert comp!try p.oducts:

No parent company products were financed durins rhe year (Pnvious Year: Nil)

47J.12 Un.e.urcdrdv.rc6
Th. Company hrs uns€.uied adr€rres of Rs 2.99,910.1 I lakhs As at March 3 1 . 2025 (Prcvious Yer: Rs. | ,23,370.46 laths). The Compao

intangibb colaGl"l.

& ,r,

)Niu
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Codrej Finance Limitcd
Notes to rhe finrnciat strtements for tle yeir erded ltrarch 31,2025 (Con(irued)

47. Resulrtotu- disclosures - RBI (Cotrtinu€d)

47.3.1J Erposur€ to group colnpani€s engagd in re.t 6rate businGs

Godrej Housing
Finance Limited

r00_00 %

4?.1.1E

Description As at Marrh 31.2025 As rt llarch 31.2024

i) Exposure to any single €ndty io a goup ensased in real €sral€ business

ii) E\posurE to all entities in a soup engaged in realestate business

(Cumncy: lndian Rupees in lakhs)

\1,-
,=o g/

473.14 Regist.ation obtain€d from other finrnclrl sector regrlators

The Company is rcgisrered wirh following resulaton efiective As al March 31,2025

Regulator Reghtration No.

i) MinisEy ofComDan! Allails u67r 20MH1992P14065457
ii) Resene Bank oflndia 13.00368
iii) Lasal Entitr ldentifier 3358005CV1EXBUW5X978
iv) I$urance ReSulaiory Developm€nt Authonry oftndia
(TRDAI)

c40873

47.3.15 Disclosure ofFnrltles imposed by RBI rnd other regulators

Therc were no penalries impos€d on the Company by RBI or any olher.egulator during the yed (PEvious Year: Nil)

47J.16 Relrt€d Party Trrn3aclioos

Derails ofall marerial tran$ctions with relaled panies ar€ dis.losed in Nole 37 to Financial Sblements.

47.1.17 Gmup St.ucture

ulrimte Holdins company
Holding Company

Subsidianes of Holdins Company

GodrEj lndusties Umit€d (w..-f24 August 2021)
Godrej Capiral timir€d (w-..f24 Augusl 2021)

Godrej Housing Financ€ Umitcd

Codrej Industries
Limited

90.71%

Godrej Finance
Limited

t00.00 %

'at

.9F\ i
\'\$\

2025 2021
Migrrtlotr in Rrlings

Drrirg the ye.rCredit Rrling Agencr_

CRISIL A-d/Stable

ICRA A1+
CRISILAI+

CRISIL A-d6table

CRISIL AA+/StabIe
CAI(E AA+/Slable

ICRA A1+
CRISILAI+

CRJSIL AA+/Siable
CARE AA+,61ablr=

No
No

CRISILR thgs Ild.
CARE Ratings Ltd.
ICRA Ltd,

CRISIL Ratinss tld.
CRISIL Ratinss ttd.
CARE Ratines Ltd.

Bank BoFowitrss (lncludins ECBS)

Bank Bonowinss (lncluding ECBS)

Non Convenible D€bentures

Non Conveniblc Debentur.s

0rtfit0

)

a ,/

Godrej Capital
Limted



Godrej Finance Limired
\otes to thc finrncirt srrtements for lh€ year €nded March jt,2025 (Conritrued)

Resulrlory dirclocrres - RBI (Conrinued)
Remurention of Dtre.tors
Delails ofall wirh Non-Execulive Diredors

Ther€ are no oiher pecuniarv hnsacdons wirh Nonrxecutive Indep€ndenr DirEctors dunns rhe year (previous yearj Nil).

473.20 Mrnagen€nt Dlscusslon rrd Anatysk

Ref€r to the Manasemenr Discrlssiotr and Analvsi report which is pan of Direcror Repon for rcrevanl Disclosure.

47,3.21 Net Profit or Loss for th€ period, prtor period lrems and chrng€s in iccouDttrg potict€.

There ,r€ no Prior p€riod nems dal have impact on the current yeart profit and loss. Th€ accounting poli.i€s resarding key areas ofopentions arE disctosed in nore I & 2 to rhe
Financial Statem€nl for the year end€d March 31.2025.

473.22 R€venue Re.ognltlon

Th€re have b€€n no instances in which revenu€ rccognition has been poseoned pendins rhe rEsolutjon of significant uDcerrainris. (pr€vious ye3r Nit)

473.23 Conrolidlt€d Flo!ncl.l Srrremenrs(CfS)

The Company does nor have any Subsidiary (tncludign Oveseas subsidiaries)roint VenrurE/Associat.s As at March 1t,2025.

473.24 Prorisions and continsen.i6

shown u.der lhe head

41.
413.19

' This includes provision lowards Stage I & Stiage 2 assers

473.25 Bre.kup ofLoar & Advrnc6.od Provisiors thereor

in the Stalemenl of Prcfit and loss

(Currency : Indbn Rupe€s in hkns)

1\
-t

Y€ar Ended iuarch 31,
2025 7011

i) Provision mad. for d€prEciation on investrneot

ii) Provision mad. lowards non p€rfomitrs assets

iii) Provision mad€ bwards income tax

iv) Provision mad€ for gntuity
v) Provision made for leave encashE€nt

vi) Provhion mad€ for standard assets: *

1.946.6t

183.50

170.91

172 66

r2t.58
63_21

2,113_29

2025 2021

Manish Shah

Hemanl RatBkar Adarkar

sittin8 fes lrd Commksior paid to

10.00
r8.00

27.00
I4.00

As at Yarch 31.202,1As rt lUlrch 31,2025

4.84.181.61

70.6s)

4.83,203.83
(3,082 49)

979 78

(488.16)

9,15,802.35
(5,6t5.96)

9.20,514.71
(8,050.73)

4,446.90
(2.302-O4)

230_39

(l15.20)

15.07
(17.53)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

Yi)

r{t)

i) Strdrrd As,et6
Total OuBianding Amounr

Subst!ndird Assel!
Total Oursrandi.g Amounr

Doubtful Arsetr - Cal€goryl
Toral Oursranding Amounr

Doubtful Ass€ts - Calegory-Il
Total Oulslanding Amount

Doubtful Ass€ts - Crleqory-Ill
Tolal Oulslanding Amoufll

Tor2l Outstanding Amount

Tot.l
Toial oubtanding AEounr

t
S

(#-_



Godr€j Finrnce Limited
Notes to lte linan.irl strtemerrs for rhe lear ended }tarch 31,2025 (Conrinred)

(Cudency :Indian Rupees in lalhs)

47. R.sulrrory dbclosrrcs - RBI (Contirued)

47J.26 Dra$ domr from res€rvE

No dmwdown from lh. resenes during lh€ ye3r. (PRvious Year Nil)

.{73.27 Concenlrrtionof ur.'s and \PA asrels

4?J.27 Cotrc€ntrullor ofdrporils, rdv!nc6, elposures atrd liPA rsseti (Cortinued)

47.3.28 lUolemeni h n

2025 2014
gs4e4E!&s-er-pcuis-dlpeds

Tolrl deposils of h{enty largest deposirors

Percenragc of deposils oftwenty largesr deposiroB to total depositi oflh€ deposit raking NBFC

gs!s9!.l4g9!-s!]4!!!-&-4drc!!s!

Total loans & advances to twenty larSest bonowels

Perc€nrag€ of loans & advances to twenty largesl borrowen to Total Advances of the NBFC

Concenrntlon of rll Ermsure (i.cludinq orl-bal, nc:e sheel erpo!urel

Total ExposuEs io twe.ty larSest borowers / Custome6
P€rccnrage of ExposurEs to twenty largest borroweE / Customers !o Total Exposur€ oflhe NBrc on bonowers /

gsEslrr&!-eINl4!

Tol]al E eosures lo rop four NPA accounb

D

ii)

iii)

iv)

916 38

62.517 -2A

7.260/0

64-237 _28

6_540/0

341 80

N.A

70.4t5.72

15.51%

72,962_66

t2.9to/.

Perc€orrg€of NPA!roTorrl AdeaDc€3 ir

As sl Mr.ch ll.Sr \"o

2u21

0.1I%

I
2

l
4

5

6

E

Agricuhu. & .lli.d &dvities
MSME

Unsued p.son l 106

Oii.r llms for hNin€ss

As rt luarch 31.

2025 :024

0.25%

979.78
7,923_06

(4,190.48)

0_t0'/"

29_87

t.058.68
(108.77)

4.112.36 979.78

491_62

4,622_86
(2.836.89)

t4.37
512.45
(3s.19)

2,277.59 ,191.63

488.t6
3,300.20

(1.353.59)

15.50
346_24
(73.58)

2,434.77 .lEE.l6

(iy) Movement ofprovlslon. for NPAS (€rcludins provirion on slatrdrrd rss€ts)
(a) Openins Balance
(b) Provisions made durins lhe year

(c) Writ€ oIr/write back ofexc€ss provision
(d) Closinebalance

(i) Net NPAs ro n€t idvrtrces (%)

(ii) Movencot of NPA, (Gror.)
(a) op€nins bal2r'ce
(b) Additions durins d'. year

(c) R.doctions durins lhc y.lr
(d) Clo6ing balarlc-.

(iii) Movement of NPAS (Net)
(a) ODeninq balance
(b) Additioff during fie year

(c) Reductions durins the year

(d) Closinsbalance

\
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Godrej Finance Limited
\oles to the financial slalements for rhr ]ear ended \Iarch 1r,2025 (ContiDued)

47. Resulator,! dkclo.ures - RBI (Continu€d)
473.29 Ov€n€rs Asels

(CuEency r Indian Rup.es in lakhs)

N.m€ of tn€ Joint Vefl ture/ Subsidiart Other Prrtner in the,I\
]llarch 31.2025 )larch.ll.202r

The Company do€s Dor own any oveBeas assels As at March 31. 2025 (Prcvious Year: Nil)

.l7.lJ0 Off-brlaDce Sheel SPvs

:17.3.31 Dctailsof cuslomcrs

2025 7n71

i) No. ofcomplainb pending at the besimins of$e year

ii)No. ofcomplaints rcc€ived dunns the y€ar

iii) No. ofcomplaints redrEssed during lhe year

iv) No. ofcomDlaints D€ndins at $e end ofthe y€ar

Nil
56

56
Nil

Nit
1

Nit

47J32 Mrrter Dlrectlor! on Frrud Rilk lttrnrqem€nt in Nor-BrrHrg rinrncirl Conp:nl6 (NBrCi) (ltrcllldltrs Housins Firrrc€ Comp ies) drted July I5, 2014

TheE werc no clscs as fraud r€poned !o RBI during lhe financial year .nded March 3 | . 2025 (Previous Yen Nil)

As al ]lrrci ll,
2025 202.1

NA
Nit
Nil

Nit
Nit

Nem€ of (h€ SPY spoosored

@



N.b b rf,. nd lrl ftr.m& for ih. yar .d.d llLfri ]1, 2025 (coid.ed)

aTJJ] Ixldoru. Drdu ro Ral M.n.r DlEdon - R*F. B.nl of l,tdl. (Nora. lm nurd.l comp.n - sEl. b$.d R.rd lon) D,r..t.B, ,024r

rh. figlB ofsi.ndd R6hhurd A&.!G *hi:h do mr .hd hitlE p@aioniry - rnk wiahr (iflppltabl.)

(\li A

q

a

(CMt*y: l.d@ l!p6 in hLhsr

Undd SM E D.br R.,rtu.rurl tra'type olR6lndunn3 (ln lrlds)

I

R.snuduEd AccounB s on April I of th. FY (op.ning

FBh ctructunng drn.B rh. yd

I r2.t9

Ur$adaio6 ro ftlruduEd stddard

.dv&c.r {hich c.e to alttur higho

.ddirionahstw.idr (h. od of lh. FY dd hdc.
oed mr b6homa GftcruEd sllndad
ad@.6 tr h.b.8inniryonh. ncxl

Do*TEp&lioD of 6rD.ruEd .@unb

tully G6vcGd/ Wnl+ofsof Gnldurd e@urls

Rdtlu.luEd AeounB 6 on Meh 3l ofrhc FY (clcing

I

1

I

I

T-----r----t---r--
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-
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c,odEj nn.re Lioh.d
No(6 lo rb. firtudd n.(tudt! for lh. ra. 6d.d Mt(t 3t, ,025 (Co.rirftdt

(Cu*y Indi,, Rup6 i! laUE)

R.gul.lort dL.lotu6 - RBI (Cotrrinn.rl)

Dirbsft of d.6lk a t qoi..d oldd P.ngnpn 6 of AnDq X)(I- Grid.lir6 oo LhEidlry Covd8. Xltio (raR) o, M.nd DiHrio" - Ir*d. B. orlrdh (No.-BirEtrg
Flrto.Ll Coop.r! - Sob Brs.d R.gublior) DiBrio,s, ,021

47.,1.1.1 Li{rldlty Cotdge Rrtio

lliSh Quiliq Liqu Assrts

l
Toral HiSn Odny Liquid

20.:110.57 20.310.57 21.603.01 ,t,50f,.of, 20,835.46 20,8t5.46 24.141.6r

Dcpdng (for d.posil rali4

UDgu.d *hol6alc lundi.g 20.666.61 13.766.6? 15.5.1148 26.902 17 10.91? 50 35.831.31 ,11.108 3l
Saur.d *holslc tundinc 15.6:]7 72 40.981.18 l2.l9t 82 37,r15 60 18.411?5 2l_2.13.66 15.258.19
Addilion l r.qui@6rs, of

(i)
Oll6os rdd.d ro &ivdir
dPo&c dd orha coIr6.l

Outdouscl .d io los of

Cr.dn ad lhudny t&ililis 1,468.78 r,689 r0

0116 codadual tundiig
577.q] 66155 2.209 r8 2,J4056 1.442.31 2.808 ?3 :.070 0o

olIE onringqn irditrg

TOTAL CASH
s83s0.r7 67,r02.70 57.551.16 11,411.29 54,9E9.69 5t,E91.72 50,325.,t3

1,05,116.6? 78,837.50 70.535 63 5r.90r ?, 1.14.154.35 85.615 ?6 LII.IlI ll 8l.llt tl
t0

li0os Eo6 tuny Ffomjrg 13.93260 76.4126' 19.809.47 t3,!57.78 9,868.34 3.976.05

lt 4.83r 39 52.806,10 t9.604 80 r:?.102 09 20.476.57 ?6.490.26

l2 'rorar. aaslr lNt t,()ws 1,25.19r.r2 94,1tt.34 t.l2_:ll5.99 r.15,Er0.6? r.91.517.42 1.4t.631_06

20.1t05? 2 t.6010l 20.835..16

t,r ouTrl-ows 16.715.61 t3,14141 !J,:06 t7

LrQrlrDrTY covE&{cE
121.19v. r51.56%

tllgt Qu[V Uqrld As.tt
(EQr-a)

:.tx.I.69 l_5t2 95 l.6l L86 1.611.E6

r8.285 88 la.!15.aE 20.070.08 10.070.03 r9,:11.60 r9.2:3,60 1t 716 6r 2t.7t6.61
Anv oth6 - DLa* tritu

(!) Tt. tu|. drlt6 ot rt.lr LcR r@i! .od th. ooLdon of th. onrribufF! ol lrp.l! ro ln. l-Ct'3 ot uLrto. ovd aD.;
RBI b.d auo<lu..d rnc &udny @ve.gc .alio GfR) 1o dls@ rhd NBFC he d rd.qrn. net of uffiubd.d hiehudity liruid asas {HQI-A) lo wiv. , sis,i6ul liqurdity slB
bsins for. p-dd of30 drt!. LCR b d.6.d 6 a ftro olHQI-a ro $e rol'l nd.ath o llo*s diB.l.d for lh. en 30 cildda daF
Thc Compe, b6 a Asla U.bilty MEagmt C.Imitte (AraO). ! DElg@dr lcvcl co@nrc rc bandL liquidly risl. Th€ ALO @ls al pciodc d@ab. Ar ln. spa Lv.L llt
r.!L Me.g@d Cominc (n]'lo, s snb{omtuc of 6. Board of Dtdo6 of rh. Conp6y, old!6 th. liqudny rist Maladt. Ite RMC st6.qudv updn6 th. Boad of
Dn.doE on rhc @c

(b) Th. @npo.ttlon ol HQLA.:

2025
2421.00

21,716.61

-------72;',iiar
c\v

&

r 1!..,,8A1o



Godrej Finance Limited
Noles to the finrnciel rtrtements for the vear ended March 31, 2025 (Continucd)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

47. Regulator! disclosures - RBI (Continued)

47.5 Dis.losure on liquidity risk und€r Msster Direction - Reserve B.nk of Indir (Non-Bsnking Finatrcial Company - Scrte Bescd R€gutsrion)
Dir.ctions 2023:

i) Funding Concenlration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and torrollings)

Particulars
NIarch 31,2025 March 31.2024

No. of Signifcanl Counterpanies

Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits
Percentage of funding concenlration to total liabilities

20
'7,36,541.56

N,A,
92.Agyo

2t
3,69,695.09

N.A.

Particulars
Mrrch 31, 2025 llarch 31,2024

Total amount oftop l0 bo[owings
Percentage ofarrounl oftop l0 borrowings to total borrowings

5,56,781.66
't2.5tvr

3,00,326.04
81.24yo

iv) Irundin coItc€ntr!tion bascd on instrument /

v) Stock Ra.ios:

outside sources such as tunds raised by issue of Commercial Papen, debentures etc. but excludes funds rais€d by

*Ottrcr sbort term liabilities include all the ftrarcial liabilities as per IndAS rnaturing within next 12 months other than Debt securities and Borrowings (olher

than debt securities).

vi) Institutiond set-up for Iiquidity risk mrnrgement:

The Liquidiry Risk Management fi'aDework ofthe Company is govemed by its Assel Liability Management Policy ofihe Company. The Asset Liability

Cornrnittee ofrhe Board (ALCO) ovenee the implementation of liquidiry risk manag€ment strategy ofthe Company and msrm adherence to the risk

tolerance/limits set by the Board. Meetmgs ofALCO arE held periodically.

Note.:
I A "significant couoterparty" is defined ss a single counterparty or group of connected or affliated counterpanies accouDting iD aggregate for rnorE lhan I % of

6e Coqan/s tot l liabilties.
2 Toral Liabiliries has b€en computd as sum ofall liabilities (Balance Sheet 6gure) less Equities and Reserves/Surplus.

3 Public Funds includes tunds raised either directly or indirecdy tbrough public deposils, inter-corporate deposits, batrk

Particulars
March 31. 2025 Mtrch 31.2024

a) Commercial Papers to Tolal Liabilities
b) Commercial Pape6 to Total Assets

c) Comn€rcial Papers to Public fuarls

d) NCD (Original Maturity < lyear) to Total Liabilities
e) NCD (Original Maturity < I ,tar) to Total Asseb

0 NCD (Original Maturity < l,€ar) to Public fimds

g) Other Sho( Tefm Liabilities to Toal Liabilities+
h) Olber Short Term Liabilities to Tolal Assets*
i) Olher Short Term Liabilities to Public tunds*

j) Borrowing frorn Bank(Short term Borowings) to Tolal Liabililies
k) Bonowine from Banks(Short term Borrowings) to Total Assets

l) Borrowinq from Banks(Shon term Borrowinss) to Public fimds

13.08%
t036%
13.510/d

N,A
N,A
N,A

0.88%
0.7oyo

0.9tyo

24.87%
2t.880/"
30.640/0

N,A
N,A
N,A

s.190/r

1.93%
5.5tvo

18.'13%

t4.20yo
t9.88yo

Mirch 31,2025 Mrrch 31, 202{Particulars
I in lakh Yo ofTot l

liabilities
{ in lakh

7. of l otal
liabilitics

a) Term [.ans
b) working Capital Bank Lines
c) Non{onvertible Debenturcs

d) Commercial Papers

63.950/0

0.88%
18.93%

t 3.08%

5,07,049.E0

6,997.64
1,50,060.44

1,03,743.50

2,362s2.9s
20,182.O2

50,532.45

62,'72'7.67

6021%
5.14./o

t2.88%
t5.990/0

convedble into €quity sharcs within a period not exceeding five yea.s from the date ofissu€.
compulsorily

ii) Top 20 lsrge deposlts

Since lhe Company is registered as a Non-Def,osit laking Non- Banking Financial Company, liis is nol applicable.

iii) Top l0 Borro*ingt

2.84yo
2.25yo

2.93%



Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financill statements for the ye&r ended March 31, 2025 (CootiDued)

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
47. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

47.6 Disclosures ln Financial Statements - As per the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Batrkiog Financial Compaly - Scale based
Regulstiol) Directions, 2023:

47.6.1.a Exposure to real estate sector
Refer Note. 47.3.9

47.6.I.b Exposure to capltsl market
Refsr Note. 47.3.9

47.6.1.c Intra-group exposures
Nil

47.6.1.d Unhedged foreign currency exposure
NiI

47.6.1.e Sectoral exposure

Sectors

As at March 31,2025 As at trIarch 31.202,1
Total

f,xposure
(includes otr

belance sheet

and olT-balance
she€t exposure)

Percentage of
Gross NPAS to
total exposure
itr that sector

Total
Exposure

(itrcludes otr

balance sheet

and olf-balaDce
sheet exposure)

Gross NPAs Percentage of
Gross NPAs to
totsl exposur€
in that sector

l. Agriculture and Allied Activities 8,763.23 90.09 1.03v" 2,336.62 0.00yo
2, Industry (2.1 to 2,2) 2,06,618.47 810.50 0.39. 1.12.520.23 399.t9 0.350/0

2.lTextilcs 51,1',76.38 183.0,1 0.35% 29,284.86 48.6t 0.1'1%

2.2 Otherc I,54,902.09 62'7.46 0.410/o 83,235.3',7 350.78 0.42%
3. Services (3.1 to 3.3) 5,34,663.53 2,023.17 0.38% 2,66,336.5s I15.5-l 0.040/0

3.1 Professional Services I ,',7 3,'7 89.'12 560.30 0.320/" 98,259.20 0.00%

3.2 Trade 1,79,584.85 t,t t6. t5 88,253.92 115.53 0.13%
3.3 Other Services t,81,288.96 34't.32 0.t9yo 79,823.43 0.00%

4- Personsl l.osns 56.000.18 0.000/" 16,327,44 0.00%
5.Retail Loans 0.000/" 69,143.77 ,1.1.98 0.010/"

6.Other Non-food Credit, if any t,75,732.23 1.78E.00 t.02yo 98323.22 1t9.89 0.430/0

Total 9,81,837.64 1,112.36 s,64,987.83 919.79

Gross NPAs

0.620/"

U
4t

'dll



CodreJ rhrncc Lihired
Nor6 io (he llmncirl st t€nentr lor tte yqr.nd€d M.rch l l. 1025 (Co inued)

a7. R.goLlorydl$b$n - RBI(Co lno.d)

a?.6 Db.hqB'E fh..ct l Sllld66 - l, F rt. Msl.r DlrEr,otr - l*n. B.nk of IndL (NoGE nlha rhrd.l CMp.try - Sob b.!.d R.t.Ld,Dn) Dlrrdo.r.,023:

47,6.2 x.bt d P.ny Di!.hNE

a Dbclosus for dndo6 dd r.laliv6 of dir..lorc shoutd b. Mde sepsarly in 3@s.lc colmro 6on othd I(Mls md Elaliv6 ofolhd (MPs.
I 

The out$@d4 ar th. }te dd dd thc msim6 dui.g lhc ,@ e lo b. di*lolcd

(Cmy r l.die Rupes in lakh)

Assclrres/ Joint venturcs
M.n.genent PeBontrcl"

31.2025 Jl.lotl fI.2025 tt.702/ lt. 1025 31,20r4 11.2025 f,t,20r,t 11.2025 Jt.202t

ExD.ce' R.inbucdd PadTo ll1.t2 81.60

Erens€J R.inbuml R4ovqd From rirJ.80 t9 0l
: 5.1

Rmunmrion ro K.y Mm.x@di P6onn.l t0l..r2 474 22 47.121

\--lgv
)



C.dEj ilnine Llnlt d
Nor6 to rhc fimNi.l .titddti ad tt. y6. dd.d M.nt 31, 2025 (Cotrtl.uql)

(Cudcy r lndla Rup6 in lalk)

i . direlor or nir Eldirci
n. s k.y m,r,gdial pdomd or hb rctdilc:
in, . 6rn\ in which a di,Blor, Mrsd o, hk rcl&rivc 6 a pdrDdi
i!. a privar. @6p6ny if, which a dneror or deEgd or his reldivc is a dmbd or dtdror:

v. a public compey i, which adirelor or 
'ea86 

is a dndo.ed or holds alonS with his r€lativ6, mor€ lh two F cdl. ofncpaid-up shm c.pial:
vi. &y bo4 coQoratc vho* aoad of DtdoB, @aging dn.dor o. ftMgd i! ecuslom.d to rl in rcordoc. win rh. advic., dt cio.e or iGttucrions of a djre.tor o. Mas6i
vii. aly p€Mn on whosc dvic., dira]lion. o. iBitucliotr a dndor or Mae6 i! ecstom.d lo &t:
Provi<Ld thal mlhing in c1666 (vi) ed (vii) sh.ll apply io ln advie, di@tioro or irotruciiom gn'6 in a profsioi,l cap*ny.
viii. dry compdy which iF

(A) . h.kh8, $b6idiry or e N.'ar. .onpa., oash .onpdn or

{B) a ohodidy of6 holdin8 conpary 
'o 

which n is als. r soh6iii4y:

(C) e i.e6ring @np@y or th. t6tuc oflh. conpey;"r

ix A dir.clor olha 1han d indcpadol dtdor or k.y @.goial pdsnncl of lh. holdin8 conpmy or his relativ. with eaeoce ro a company

As ps S Eal (Lisrina Obli8atio,s a l)iscl,Ntrrc Rqtu&rnLnt, RLluhtn)N.2015

sh.ll b. &qo.d ro b. a rcht.d pany

"8..lal.d pony llr.@ a Elar.d p&ry e d.fin d undd suEs*rioi (76) of sdoo 2 of fi. Conpali6 A..l. 201I or udd rh. ,ppli.sbl. &.o6rin8 srar&r&:

(a)!iy pdsn or mlny tuntri8 . pd oflh. promotd or promol.r group of th. lirl.d aliry; or

t: MUMBAI

!D

(ffi
\y t)



Codrei Fintne Limited
NotBto lh. linln.i.I slrlements for the y6r ended Mrrch 31,2025(Co lnued)

(Curdcy : Indian Rup.B in lrlh,

2. Ar ! binimun r,!a MaEsanqll P@ul (KMB) stll i$tu& foloeins kcy f,rEedi.l pqsmla !6 idion 2(t l) ortlE comp6ni6 a.t. 2013.

i. 1be chi.f Exauriv. omca or rhc @.gi!g dir*lor or tlE @.ga
ii. rh€ oDD@y 6ady
in. rh. *lDlcrirc <tirdror

iv. d. Cti.tFMi.l Otrts

v. srch o0Eoffica. @r @Edr6oeLwlb.low th. DneloE who b in who,Fli@c,rploFEl. &.ig.acd a tc,Mre6i.l !a$Dr.l bylt Bodd&d

u $cn o$q o6ca a E yb.FBntEd

(i) Ib y @ ltmt6 of . Hi.d! U.divlld rdily;
(ii) rh.y e huhdd dd wiEi or

(iii) oE Fsn i! rddcd b rh. otbd ir $ch trr,lc a day h. pr*n-b.(

AFsribr!b.da.drobcrhcrdniwoferhd.ifb.or3lEirdd.drotuthainth.fo[owii8nlI,E,uE:
(I) Fabdj Provilcd dul dE rm Fdn6- iFlud6 n.rtonq.

G) Mornq Prcvid.d rhd th. rm 'Morbd" inctr<le $. n.+mthd

(3) son: Prcvilcd fiar tlE r@ Son inclu&. tlE ncpe.

{5) Dausha.

(7) Bturha: Provid.d th3l thc r@ Brclho irclud.. t. nlpbolhor
(8) S,st6: ftovi<Ld th,l rh. tm Sirts irctudd thc al+.i$d.

-\
\\7_/1lI

*

l!'1Ul,4tJAl
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the fin.ncisl statements for the year ended Mrrch 31, 2025 (Continued)

(Cunency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

47. Regulrtory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

47.6 Disclosures in Fin8ncirl Statements - As per the Mrster Direction - Reserve Bsnk of India (Non-Brnking Financial Company - Scsle based Regulation) Directions,
2023:.

47.6,3 Disclosure of comphints

l) Summsry inform&tion on complaints received by the NBFCS from customers rnd from the Offices ofOmbudsmsn

Sr.
No

Particulars
As at

March 31,2025

As at
March 31.2024

I

2

3

4

Complsints received by the NBFC from its customers
Number ofcomplaints pending at beginning ofthe year

Number ofcomplaints received during the year

Number ofcomplaints disposed during the year

3.1 Of which, number ofcomplaints rejected by the NBFC
Number ofcomplaints pending at the end ofthe year

56

56
22

7

7

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office ofOmbudsman

Sr.
No

Particulsrs
As 8t

March 31,2025
As at

Mrrch ll, 2024

5*

6*

5.1.

5.2

5.3

Number ofmaintainable complaints received by the NBFC fiom Office ofOmbudsman
Of 5, number ofcomplaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman

Of5, number ofcomplaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of
Ombudsman
Of5, number ofcomplaints resolved after passing ofAwards by Office ofOmbudsman against the NBFC
Number ofAwards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed)

28

28

3

3

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in lntegrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-

Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit ofthe Scheme.
* lt shall only be applicable to NBFCS which are included under The Reserve Bank - lntegmted Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

t
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Godrej Finrnce Limited
Notes to the lin8ncirl statementi for the yesr ended Mrrch 31,2025 (Continued)

2) Top live grounds2 of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

2 
The list ofgrounds ofcomplaints given below are indicative only.

1. Credit Cards

2. Difficulty in operation ofaccounts
3. Mis-selling
4. Recovery Agcnts/ Direct Sales Agents

5. Loans and advances

6. Levy ofcharges without prior notice/ excessive chargeV foreclosure charges

7. Non-observance offair practices code

8. Staffbehaviour
9. Facilities for customers visiting the office/ adherence to prcscribed working hours, etc

10. C)thers

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

)&

Crounds of complaints, (i.e. comphints relating to)

Number of
complsints pending
st the beginring of

the year

Number of
complaints received

during the year

Yo increase/
decrease in the

number of
complaints

received over the
previous year

Number of
complaints

pending at the
end ofthc year

Of5, number
of complaints

pending
beyond 30 days

I 2 3 5 6

As at Msrch 31,2025

Mis-Selling
Loans and advances

Recovery agents/Direct Sales Agents

Credit information related

Others

40

2

9

5

0%
'1000/0

200%
900./"

400%
Total 56 7000/0

As at March 31, 2024

Mis-Selling
Loans and advances

Staffbehaviour
Others

5

I

I

-100%
500%
100%
100%

Total 1 6000h

t

\
,T

o

sAti
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Godftj Fi.rn.€ Linired
NotBrothefrtuci.lsr eDerrtorthey@rdd€d,rch31,2025(Conrinued)

Regubtory dis.lo$G - LEI (Cortinrcd)
Di*losrB ln fin.ncl.l st toents _ As per th€ Mastd DiBtion - R5fle B.nt of rrdia (No.-Blntdna fin&ciat comp&y - ssk bi*rt R€sd,rion) DiHrion* 2023:
A) CorDodte gor.mrtre

(Cun6.y lidio Rups in laUE)

SL Io
Captcit-v (i.eE!(utivc/ Non,

E!4utivd Ch8im&/ Pmnot€.
r om ir e{r' Ind epetrd€trO

Dr\-
NumbqofBo.rd Metitrgs No. ofsh&6 h€ld in lnd

.onv€rllble itulmments

I 25-08-202t
Notr Ex@tive Dnstor &

0011:981

2 27-10-2021 0I2i89l

09-01-2023 06913r93

2024-25)

2025-26)

:5-08,2021 Notr Exsulive Didor 06422647

'R6olm6ded by Boed for app.oval of M@bas ar t. Gubg 34th Amu.l Cadai Me€tiirg
Nolc ,1l. Bodd of Direb^ ofc.Dpsy hae agpoitrl€d Lrr. Pdlaj Cupia B Ma,agntg Dnelor & Chief Ermtie O6.a w....t M3y 5, 2025. snbjer 10 apFoval ofsna.noftbB d lne AGM,

D.&ils of ch.oge l, omposilion of the Borrd du.i.g tne cur€trt ud pryious fnocirl yoi
Curc rin.ocirl Ytu- (r02,Lr5)
Duing rh. c@@l 6)eial )@. lh6e w6 no cb se in the coDposilion of 1n€ Botrd

Previous fin.ncirr Ycr (2023.r)
Duiry the prsioN 6@cial ]@. lh6e wa no cbtrBe in the conposilion of lhe Boad.

\|l6e e indEpdd@l dicror rsiCrs behrc spny ofho/ hn to4 rhe r6oE for eigdio. 6 givo by ha/t!n, shal b. di*los.d.- Not ApplkibL
D.lrB of.ny rchdonhip rmo.gn tle di@to6 Not Applieble

2) CommlttB of oe B.&d rnd tneir .onposirion

iNldtion rhe nrn6 of tle conniftB of rh€ Board.

NM€ofrheComnine Sumnfi4d T.ms of Referne
Requted udo S<tion 17? of Ac! Challe VA - Regdarion 62F of Ltrin8 Regulario6 md l&agaph 94 I of Md6 Dnedon Rtsde Bdt of India (Non-Barting F@cial
Company Scale Ba*d Rellatior) Dtrarioc.202l a maded md mdqtala.Imu@ Feibed for ns working thftin.l r6ies ed romdds a[ Da1r6 r€Lted 1o

6.dcials, ediloE, coDplimcedrcCulalory @fl4, rclar.d pany n&s&1io. 6id & alproval, appoinnad oa CFO. im6n l cotuols, caiw of fr.uds valualion of ae.ts,
ow yigil meiai$\ risl ass.sdt, mtioy of lo$ ad iNstDans ed otb6 natt6 in iddnal thd6o.

r"ooination & Roudario! Comille

Re i€d udr Setion 178 of rh. Acl, 2013, C1lapt6 VA - Regularion 62c of Listing Regulatio6 dd Pdag@n 94.2 of Mala Dndion - R6@e Bmr of lndia (No.-Bel.jng
E@cr.l Compaiy Sc.le B6ed ReguLtion) Dn€diotr, 2021 6 moded ed urd€nalB aI na1r6 pr*ribed for its workins lh6€in. It rsiM &d reo@ods all tun6
rebted lo Dne.lor / K€y Mtuzgm@r P@n alrEinm@i lodq rdo of psfo@ & rar 6d dr alndiig dos preib€d udtr P&agmph 99 of DiElios, gralt oI
ESOP! @d olhe in ide al rutt6.It ale rdi* aspliee with 6r & props dnnia for DneloB dd dual d*laiion ro conplian.. by DftdoB du. dnigoc€ at de lim
of innial appoinlDar. fomulado! of6ir6i. for dalution ofBodd md mn6 inci.Lnral ilereto.

Risk Mdasdor Colmine
R€quned uda ldasFrt 39 of M&str Dretio. - Rffi. Banl of lndia (Non-Bari,g Fmcial CoDpaly S€al€ Bas€d R€gllation) D,t tioB. 2023 dd CIElre vA
R€suLtion 621 of Lislin8 RegulalioB, a mdcd md uddate all mr16 rrMb€d for ns wodin8 tn6ein. Anon8 otns lhinss n quol6ly rwiM tsl whtb inpa.l the
olgmialion @d aclios ralo ro nntat. fi@ aser qu.hy of lom ql@ded. 6ed1l pefo@c., ponfolio pdfoI]m, epoinlmat ed rooval of Chief Ris* Omca, elc.

R€qlircd uds Peagraph 6 oI Mdd Dnedon on Info@lion T{helogy Govffi, RjsL C.nlrcls d Asuoce lra.li6 dded Novmbd 7. 2023 d doded ed
u<tenala all @116 pl6ou for ns wo*ing lhsein. Ir r*is srking of II St6rB Coinirc & Infomlion Sffiity Colmine ed ra1t6 rel,red to Infomliotr
Tetnology such 6 Inlolmlion Sffity ed hDilB continuily. rwiw or q,ber suiry isti disla rtuldy, afugdols dd pEpddas.

Custo@ Sdice Conmille {Edwhnc Gri.v&c.
Retuircd s pd Mda Dndion - R€sd. Bel of India (Non-Bmling Fimial CoDpey Scal€ B6ed ReguLtion) Dn*do6,2023 @d 

"ith 
Mala Drctiotr - Rwe

B3nl of India (lnla.rl OnludsJ@ for Regular.d Enttts) Dt..doB, 2023 s @mded md un&nal6 a! Dand prsibed for ft vorling rh@in. It CoImine la b@
codturcd ro mft lna .I Ba16 relaled ro crstobq & thrir 9i*e6 de r.guldt r.viacd, nattd rel,red lo tntm,l OnbudsD.n romdd n6u6 to t'itini4
@hplai s @dgdce dd riq comuication chrels.

Asset Liabiijiy M@ag@ot Co]mille
Requircd ud6 Amq Vl of MEld Dterio! Rsr Banl of lndia (NoGBer.ins lilEtrial Cobpaiy Scdc Baed Pcgulalion) DnedoB, 2023 6 mmd€d ad udenaL6
aI nalrm Fesbed lor irs worting lnseia Ir deals *itn all mar6 r.lar.d ro As.r-Ljabiliiy ed mn6 pr6crfted ud6 Bodd alFolcd asa-Liab,liiy Mmagaal Policy ed
Borowing & Irr6tDar ?olicy ed s ps boad apgrov€d Tm of Relade of rhe Comine. Ass.t b6niy MeaSaot Colmine reporrs b Rist Manag@l Colmillc.

Tne Comitt* ha b6 constilurqt ro rrtc d{uo4 .olaii.g ro a€dir. Amo,g othd thi.ss comine approve cB abole defn€d [nn, rsi* $b6idiary d.dn polici6,

mm,l producls d6i,1io.\ colducr du€ diltae ofproposrd dehuh los gselc !@vid6 €tc. h rfli*s wo*ils of Prodlct Commte

<:

s

tt tc

2015. Non-[stel NBFCS a1 $e oininu should disloee tollowinS udd lne corporale govfl@e sdo! oflh. e.u.r E?on.

l) CoDpositlon oftne Bord

ru9v/



B!ro\mg & lnrsrn.nr Comrlre Tnis cominc ha b6 coGtitul.d lo mbt.
ltu6tmr polty of ihe Conp&v.

dcisiotr wilh r6Dd to borowi,8 & iN6r@rs of rhe Cobrer. Tt . d..tio6 e govm€d 6 F soud a?prov.<t BoEowing

I :01,1
I1

IT II IT

Inl6lrl Comine (codiot.d s F rh. Fovisio6

(Pro diioo. ftohibiiion &d Rer,rNl) Act, 201 3 i
S.rcl tialarat of WolE al Wo&pL.e

R.quir€d udd Sedo.4 of Sdu.l Hr6sol of Wol@ a wortph.e (Prworba Prclrlibn and RedBr.l) Ad. 2OIr ai !.ddl.t6.[ dr6 FMb.d fo' ns
rhdeir lt coiducts irqui.y i.lo co,4lairls. fomutn6 prosr@6, +@ds awllqB. k..riie ror& of .[ co.ehtur adion lakq tui aidry confd@iatiy of
trccedi.ss. lidings, onciliaion &d coqly -ti aI r@rtiDg 6d 6li4 r.qui,q@rs.

whi$l.blo*6 Comnre (mdq visil Mebain) PGlIircd u{t- Sation I77 ofrh. Act ed udqtrlB all dn6 ptsn:b.d for n! wo*ing lha.in I at6 d..isiore win cpat ro wlint bl)wa conphi s &d
iftitabl rhs6o. wtisrkt ow6 Cotmine vill r@n lo rh. Au<h Comnre

R.quircd a F RBr @dfrcrion on CoE lioe Fudion dd RoL ofchi:fconpli3re Otr q (CCO) NBFCS dr.d AFil I l, 2022 ed undd*6 an sai6 pffiib.d for
wortiog thmin. lr .pprov6 @ prorluts, chdnsB i, qnd!8 Foducrs ed .Fiq ibcn p6follre.. Prortucl Comitre rcpons lo Credn Comtue.

InfoMi.n Stuity CoMitte
R.quird a Fr P&agr4h 24(b) ol RBI Manq Dtedo. oo liforbario. TellDlogy cov@.. Rtk. Conrrols drd Asuec Pra.&6 dar.d Novflbq 7, 2021 6
od u&tal6 .I IdG Fsib.d for its vo*ins thd.i, h u!d6ral6 .!.t.lopltd r iEpl.,lddim of inforElion, .),t'6 wity policii .rF.\i.C .d mnnorins
i.forDdio. sduty Foi.Is dd tuity sw8os i.nidi!.., @idiig qtq iGi.t dr dc Lfotuion S€uit, CoMine r.rons ro IT Sd.g, Colmine

Corpomr. Social R6po6ibility Comirre R.quned uds S€.lion 135 of th. Act &d undcnat6 aI n 16 prsibed for ns Norting lhd.nr Ii fomularG and Bomod CSR Policy dd incidai.l @nd in6do
Bodd. oo.iror rh. inple,qlatioo of policy. fomullle ed 6,i* rh€ irplooralion of a.1ion plan. 6io surn@bii, rcpon od oind Mn6

R.quned unr,s clDprq VA - R.sulabn 62H oa LkiDa R.guldl,E dd ulddal6 aI E nd F6et d lor its wortiig 0E in. x spei6et, bols i o vrioc a+a15
iDlEEd of 3lE!!ol\4qs, ikiarE nou6 dd orh6 seuny houas tu! 6 @lvi.g grica@!., .f.ctiw dd& of votins igh5. Bi@ of ,l6lc dd iinialiv€ edSiat.noldm R.lalionship Comill€

willtul Debnno Idqrdtudion Colmnre (WDIC)
R.quned 6 F RBI Msid DiEiio. on TBhd ofwiltul D.f.uh6 ed Lsg. Defauhs. dared July 30, 202,1 od udelol6 an @n6 prenh.d for ils *orki!8 inftin x
di$ defEun botuwC bavilg orrstadilg b.l@ oc k. 25 hrns da@ia silh d.f.una!. l@madarioG ro Mmrl D.fauXs Rdi! Co@incq issllae of
c'r @rt...d lhc .l)@inc rc9otu ro MniI MDiE Rqi* ColMifte.

R.qun.d a Fr RBr Mdd Dirdion otr Tsrnnt of W ltul D.fault6 and L!g. Defaul6, dar.d Ju1y30.2024 md uddat6 all nan6 pMib.d ld its vo*in8ltdi.. h

rds Gom@drioa ol wiltul Defaund ld."dfcario. Comile vith 6pc.i lo ay siltul def.uh, pB ordd for dei8Mins &odl a v nn d.falllq, .dvi*wiltu Defadid Roi4 colMire (lrrDRc)

Speirl C.nmitl* of ih. Bodd for Monnornrs dnd

Fouow-up ofcM of Fre&( scBMF)

R.quir.d 6 F RBI Mda Dndio6 on F6!d RisL M@sd@l ia NosBsfiiDg FMisl Coo!@i6 {NBFCS) (iEludios HociDg FlllaG Cohp&i6), &l.d.lu}y t5. 2024

ed @d6l.k6 .! nrr6 F66h€d for ils vo ing t[ftin. lt ovo* eE€.tivG of Eald ri* n&9ffi1. nonnor G of i&&. tul eB @bsis, Dnieding

r6g1h6bg inidut o rolr. risk nanagdan td*ort &d miniFisir8 lhc incidtr of nedr rdiM calegori.tn (Ls of 6axis, ind6lry/selora!
.on drralion ofnauds, dcLy in d.re.rionr.l4$ficado. of frauds. .xdoariorco.cluion ofn.tr&co@bliliry dd is@ce ofd.laiLd Sto{ Caue Nolke lo lhos aganst

.leSdion of 6aud is b€ins qmin d ad prs l!&n d ot&t i. fit rcs.rd.
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C.prclty (a..Ex.cutiv./ Non-
Erdullv./ Ctaf mad Pmnot .

nomlnft/ Idep..dont)

\unber otlteerings of ths

NBFC

I 09-01-20!3
ChiirrEcon olconnine 5

09-01-202:l 5 5

Nonindion A.d R.nu.eation Comninee

C.p.ctl,a (ie.fxe lver' Non-
Erecutiv€r'Ch.ima Promo(er

Nmb.. oI ire.tin$ of rh.

Narc

09 0r 2013
Chai']mon olc()rmnr*

09-0r,2013
09-0r.2011

Rtk M.nagenenr Comnifl ee

i,iFor e.ch commiflee, nenllor O. sunmariad t ms ol rclerem€ rd prcvide th. folo*ine d.rdL.
Tms of refftM of @h mine pmvided al 2 (i)

SLNo
Crplcit! li.Er(utir./ Notr-

Er..trtive/ Ch.im.n/ Prooorer
.omind/hdept .trO

Nmb.r ol tteetb8! ol r[e

N6FC

1 09-01-2011

2 27-10-202:

27-10-2022

C.ptit! (i.crr.cutiv./ Notr-
Ercutive/ Ch.iman/ Pronorer

N@b.r oI M6dng3 of !h.

NBFC

I 21-ta-2022
ChairDeson oiCmnitte

l 09 01 20ll
l 2l-0t-2024

21-tA-2022 CTO lchi.lTahnolor O6q)

C6ron.r S.n ice Connitle (E6tlhn. Grievrn.e Redressd Commitee)

C.p..lt! (Lef, rmuthe/ NoF
Ererth./ ChrlrmrD/ ProEol.r

@mbc/ Indep.nd..r)

Nmb.r of Mfttbg, of lne

NB!I

I 09-0t-1021

2 l7-r0,2022
3 71-tA-2077 CEO {Cnierlxeutive Of6@)

A$.1Llrb0tyMr.4eme CommiflE

Crprclt! (LcErcutiv, Non-
Ereutiv, Chdm.n/ Pronol.r

Nunb.roIM.otrgs ofthe

NBFC

I 09-t l-2022
CEO & Chrirydson ofthe

Lr I3

-05-2022 ll l_1

3 ,05,2022 CFO (Chief Fi@ial Offiq) ll 1,1

Chief Credn & O@do6 OfEs 2

sL\o
Crp.clly (l-..Er{uliv.r' NoF

fr(ullve/ Cn.th.r/ Promoter
,onln../ Idep.d.nt)

Nmb€r of Medrgs of rte

NBFC

1 27 t0 totl Non Exsdve DiElor &
Orarpsson ofde C@nitd ll

7 2',7-tA-2077 l? ll
21-ta-2077 CIO lchief Ixdtive o6q) l2 l1

77lA-2022 ll l2
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C.prcig (i-eEt6utirr/ Non-
Itr(utne/ Chdm.', ft omoler

noni.€d lnd€pendenl)

Number of Mctlng! otthe

NArC

l 2l-r0-102ir CEO & ChairFson of$.
l

12 10 l0:.1
:t-r0-t0r,1 I

.l :l-t0,:014 L

willful Defrux€r R.\ ietr Connine

.Comni- \'6 .onsriul€d or Ocroba 21. 2014

Crplcil) (i.e.Er*utiYd Non-
Er<tridCh.imrd Prcmorer

nonimrr' Indep.ndenr)

Nlobq of Mctin$ of th.

NBFC

I :t-10,:0:.1 CEO & CtairFei oflh.
I

:l-10-t014 L

:1,t0,201{ Had CoUdioN. L.ral & FCU I

Conmitte ol the Bo.rd tor

T!?.of Meting (An l/ErE -

Amuzl Oqsnl MdEes

May 21,2024 d rh. R.3iea.d
Offi.. of$. CoDpey d Co&q
one Pnolh@s&. Eea ExF6
H4!wq. Vitholi (Eid). Mmb6i -

I P3,r!or of comisb. ro lid.F*lln
Dndo(s) or rh. Compary

2.1!.t6. ii rh. BoNwitrS lintu ofdt

l.AlrhoEiDg th. Boad to tun8lg?cEd.

4 lsu@ of NoFconvdibL Dan6
@<ts Prira. Ph.@r Bai3

r) Derrft of roINEDi.ra *itn Eq!i@@c ol CoEFri6 A.r, 2013
As of 3 t s It a.n 2015, Cor@@y i3 in orqliae *ith rcquifuls of Corpeis AcI. 2013. bctudinS *nh E!*r to .otrplia. rnh *courdB ed s6@id ndd&ts

5 ) D.diL o, pdrti6 .rd sEi.t.E
As ofl I s Mdt 2025, No Paanis e Lvin on rh. Coapa,

TbEE @ m iInM of tls.n of ov@r of loe .$iLd or d.tr sEnis isGd

n Rallialid of DirEto.
'nEe *@ & p6@nry rcldio,shiy'n@doc of any of thc Non-Ei@rir DireloB vith l[. Coryy lPdl toE siniog f6 ed @@ision Fi, ro bd.rad.d Dirdo6

'CoIMine s5 coNibr€d on Odob.r 22. l0:4

3)Cenenl Bod! \ratings

Sr.
6os NPAS 6 on Mdcb I I . 2025 a r@d€d ,v rh€ NBFC
Crcs NPA5 6 on Mdch 3 I. 20:5 a asar.d bv $c R.se. BelI

l Divdsac€ in Cros \PAs (2-l)
Na NPAS d on Meh 3 I. 2025 6 ra.n.d bv d'. N'BFC

Nel NPAS 6 on Mmcb 3 I. 1025 6 d6sed bv rhe Rs€ Bfll
Di!@6ce i! Nd NPAS (5-1)

ProlisioB for NPAS s on Met 31. 2025 6 r@n.d !v ihc NBFC

3
Provisios for NPAr 6 on Meh 31. 202t e esi.d by rnc Rc@. BoI

Dild.tuc€ in Dro\tioninc (8-?)

Repofled Proh before ld dd impiimdl los oi fiiecial iBtMds for
lh. ,€r @d€d Mmh 31, 2025

Rmned N€t lto6r afts Ta IPAI for rhe @ mded Meh I L 2015

Adjunal (@rioial) N.l ftoft an6 Ta (PAT) ror rh. ,@ 6d.d Mmh I I
2025 ana coGi(bine lh€ divssace in p.ovtioning

OI

lrlU

E) DirEg@e ir Asar Ch!ffofotr Dd PDviiotrin!
No Di\Es@ in 6d cbsificdiotr @d prrvisiodDs ha b@ ot6sr'€d od oeilhq condjlioN e. etfr.dl
a) ttE sddnbD, Fovisbri.g EquiEfu .ss.d by RBI dcedr 5 Frd of tb. Epon.d Foft5 bcfoE rq ed iftp.i@l los on fMrid iEnl1lj@s for th. rcfdtE !cio(
b) thc .rldnio.,l Cms NPAS i.l€.litu by RAI qc€dr 5 F cal of rh. Epon.d Crcs NPAS fo. tnc Efsft. Fiod

$
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Godrej Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 (Continued)

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)
47.6 Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

47'6'5 Disclosures in Financial statements - As per the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking I'inancial Company - Scale based Regulation) Directions, 2023:

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

Particulars

31 2025
As at March

31 2024
As at March

Directors and their relatives

Entities associated with directors and their relatives
Senior Officers and their relatives

47.6.6 Disclosures pursuant to Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Reyised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs
dated October 22, 2021 - DOR.CRE.R-EC.No.60/03.10.00112021-22

i) Corporate Govemance report containing composition and category ofdirectors, shareholding ofnon-
executive directors, etc. - Refer Note 47.6.4

ii) Disclosure on modified opinion, ifany, expressed by auditors, its impact on various financial items and

views of management on audit qualifications. - Not applicable

iii) Items of income and expenditure of exceptional nature- Not applicable

iv) Breaches in terms ofcovenants in respect of loans availed by the NBFC or debt securities issued by the

NBFC including incidence/s of default. - Refer Note 47.6.4

v) Divergence in asset classification and provisioning above a certain threshold to be decided by the Reserve

Bank. - Refer Note 47.6.4
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Codr.i Finr.ncn Llmlaf d
Xoler lo lh. llrrnchl ,artemcrrr for th. lc.r srdsd {.rch ll, 2025

(( urr!:r'r! : lodi,i Ruperis in kthsi

$ Regulilort dirclo re3 - (Con(inu€d)

47.7 Addhhnrl Dlr.lor{r.!
ThcC,om!6ryhasrloaStantedanyloqnra9ir61collarerr]ofgoldjcr.llaryduringoley..r(PreriousYear:Nil]rodcoosaqucfltlynoSoldloAnruclionlui
bc6 catried o{1.

Thtt! at! 0o ldverse aommerts during $e year oo thc Cornp.ny lrlad€ in wriring by the Bank or RBI on regrlsbry cornplirrccs wilh a slc{iric
codrml,tliclticn ao di.clo6c the s.oe ao Frbfic (Previotls Year: Nil).

Thc Cof,rp{y hls ooa issled .{y stn,ctud Foducts during lhc year.

llo 16. axr('ded by &e ComDatry tas b€g| rlstsrrcturd n dcr lo(rrtorium ofTdld urdrf C-ovid-

No divid6d n ! bctrl dcclarcd b!, (he ComFry.

47.4 Iledrib of !.8mcnt tixe lncom. frod i$sur.n.e p.rtn.r. rs requlr.d by lnrunnc. Regulrtory .nd Dcvelopmed Aulhorlrr- of lndir (lRDAf)

fic C.(nFay rcccirrd Ctrporalc Agcscy Ucctrrc fiom lnsurance Regularor) D.t.-lopnrd[ Aut]rority of hdia (lRDAl) od Ocrobcr I 2021. lh(
CmD.oy q*qtd itrlo.grecmat with v_ariors insuraace par&ers as corporrt ag.nl rnd rcceived commtsiro incoEe during the yc., rs disch6.d lborc.

,tE. fte Fevror$ tdiod/year lilul€s. which ale c@sid6rd to be nnna{crial hsve b.ql recL-asified/regroup.d to cofor,. to the figures ofahe cuflqrt

Fiod4t .r.

Ar pcr our raporl o, ctcn data atlaahad
For Bdlibol & Purohh
Cbrrltftd Ac.orrbntr
Firm R€ittedar No.: l0l04EW

l'or rrd on bahrlt of th. Bolrd of Dir..lorc
Codr€j fhrrc. Lilnltcd
CIN: t,67l20Mll | 992P14065457

{t Al

Xretbrl M.ktr
t'artrrr
M*nbcrslip No: ll!749

D!r€: Msy05,202t

M. rh Shrh
N0r-llrcutivt Dirtcr6
DIN,0642?627

Dare: M.y 05,2025

Prrk , CupL
M!!!gin8 Dirs:k'r & CIO
DIN: l0t9l5lt

llat : Mry 05.2025

\/
kunrl Krrn,lni
Chiefl'i ancial Ofticer
Placc:Munrhat
Drtcr lr4.y 05,202J

Chunnt Singh
Company Secrchry
Place: Mufibai
Dalcr Mry 05. 2025

!'or th. Y..r .nd€dPsni.uhrs
Mrrth ll,2025 lls.ct',ll.l0:.r

0) !r.oB. froE lncEr.rcr id.rEcdilior
Cor@iasioo locorne - Ufa hsursrce
Congliasioo IftoIr.. Hcrlth lrlumnce
Cdmri3silt lnaot'c - Othcrs

3,E76,22

2,814.14

0.2r

E6t.{l
1,09t.8t
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